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NORTH MAR¡N WATER DISTRICT
AGENDA - REGULAR MEETING

May 5, 2020 - 6:00 p.m.
Location: Virtual Meeting via

Teleconference
Novato, California

ATTENTION: This will be a virtual meet¡ng of the Board of Directors pursuant
to Executive Order N-29-20 issued by the Governor of the State of California.

There will not be a public location for participating in this meeting, but any interested member of the public
can participate telephonically by utilizing the dial-in information printed on this agenda.

Teleconference lnformation Call in Line: (4f 5)76f -8989
Access Code: 2580#

Bridge#:8894

For clarity of discussion, the Public is requested to MUTE except:
1. During Open Time for public expression item

2. Public comment period on agenda items

lnformation about and copies of supporting materials on agenda items are available for public review at 999 Rush
Creek Place, Novato, at the Reception Desk, or by calling the District Secretary at (a15) 897-4133. A fee may be
charged for copies. District facilities and meetings comply with the Americans with Disabilities Act. lf special
accommodations are needed, please contact the District Secretary as soon as possible, but at least two days prior to
the meetin

Time ltem Subiect
Est.

6:00 p.m. CALL TO ORDER

APPROVE MINUTES FROM REGULAR MEETING, April 21 ,2020
PUBLIC HEARING TO CONSIDER DECLARATION OF WATER SHORTAGE EMERGENCY
AND ADOPT WATER SHORTAGE CONTINGENCY MEASURES IN THE WEST MARIN
SERVICE AREA

G EN ERAL MANAGER'S REPORT

OPEN TIME: (Please obserye a three-minute time limit)

This section of the agenda is provided so that the public may express comments on any issues not listed
on the agenda that are of interest to the public and within the jurisdiction of the North Marin Water
District. When comments are made about matters not on the agenda, Board members can ask
questions for clarification, respond to statements or questions from members of the public, refer a
matter to staff, or direct staff to place a matter of business on a future agenda. The public may also
express comments on agenda items at the time of Board consideration.

All times are approximate and for reference only.
The Board of Directors may consider an item at a different time than set forth herein
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QUARTERLY FINANCIAL STATEMENT- March 31,2020

STAF F/DI RECTORS REPORTS

ACTION CALENDAR

Approve: Renew Declaration of Local Emergency Related to COViD-19 Pandemic

Approve: Text for Spring 2020 West Marin "Waterline", Volume 17

Approve: Rate lncrease Letter to West Marin Water and Oceana Marin Sewer
Customers

INFORMATION ITEMS

lnitial Review - Capital Project FY2'1 & FY22 & Equipment Budget FY21

Wildfi re Safety Prog ram

Public Communications lmplementation Update No, '1

NBWA Meeting- May 1 ,2020

MISCELLA/VEOUS
Disbursements - Dated April 23, 2020
Disbursements - Dated April 30, 2020
Hydrant Damage History
FY20 3rd Quarter Labor Cost Report,
2020 Flushing Program Update
Spoils Pile Removal
Annual Aquatic lnvasive Species (AlS) Report for Stafford Lake, 20'19

News Articles
State Water Board Adopts Monthly Water Use Reporting Requirements -Water Boards
Board approves budget with emphasis on reliable water delivery and infrastructure

improvements - SONOMA WATER
CLAM wins bid to develop Coast Guard property for affordable housing
Sonoma water might be Marin drought backup
Virus Lockdown - Ban lifted on some activities in Marin
Grand Jury Report: Public agencies fail on pay transparency

ADJOURNMENT
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CONSEA/T CALENDAR

The General Manager has reviewed the following items. To his knowledge, there is no
opposition to the action. The items can be acted on in one consolidated motion as
recommended or may be removed from the Consent Calendar and separately considered at
the request of any person.

Consent - Approve Water Agreement

Starbucks, 7145 Redwood Blvd., Novato
APN: 140-071-46

Tvpe DU EU

Consent -Approve: Amend Contract with Environmental Science Associates (ESA) -

General Consulting Services Agreement

CM 0 2 Resolution

7:15 p.m. 17





Item #1
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DRAFT
NORTH MARIN WATER DISTRICT
MINUTES OF REGULAR MEETING
OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

April 21 ,2020

CALL TO ORDER

President Joly announced that due to the Coronavirus outbreak and pursuant to Executive

Order N-29-20 issued by the Governor of the State of California this was a virtual meeting.

President Joly called the regular meeting of the Board of Directors of North Marin Water District

to order at 6:00 p.m. and the agenda was accepted as presented. President Joly added that there

was not a public location for participating in this meeting, but any interested members of the public

could participate telephonically by utilizing the dial-in information printed on the agenda. President

Joly asked if there were any members of the public on the line to announce themselves, and Jeff

McAndrew Jr., the lndian Valley Golf Club manager replied.

President Joly welcomed the public to participate in the call and asked that they mute their

phone, except during open time and while making comments on the agenda items. President

Joly noted that due to the virtual nature of the meeting he will conduct a roll call from the Directors.

A roll call was done, and all Directors were in remote attendance therefore establishing a quorum.

Participating remotely by phone were Directors Jack Baker, Rick Fraites, James Grossi, Michael

Joly and Stephen Petterle.

Mr. Mclntyre did a roll call of staff, participating by phone were General Manager Drew

Mclntyre, District Secretary Terrie Kehoe and Auditor-Controller Julie Blue.

District employees Tony Arendell (Construction/Maintenance Supervisor) and Robert

Clark (Operations/Maintenance Supervisor) were also participating remotely by phone. Puþlic

memþer Jeff McAndrew Jr., lndian Valley Golf Club manager was also participating by phone.

MINUTES

Director Petterle suggested the last paragraph in the first section of the minutes should be

moved up to the first line to make the public aware immediately that this was a remote meeting.

On motion of Director Petterle, seconded by Director Fraites the Board approved minutes

with minor specified revisions from the April 7, 2020 meeting by the following vote:

AYES: Director Baker, Fraites, Grossi, Joly and Petterle

NOES: None

ABSTAIN: None
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ABSENT: None

G EN ERAL MAN AG ER'S REPO RT

Mr. Mclntyre reminded everyone of the protocol of the meeting and asked all participants

to announce their name when talking and to mute their phone as much as possible unless they

are speaking.

Assistant General Manaqer/Chief Enqineer Position

Mr. Mclntyre apprised the Board that the current job solicitation for Assistant General

Manager/Chief Engineer closes on April 24th. He added that there were approximately 744

viewings and 8 applications have been submitted to date,

PRE Tank 4A Proiect Update

Mr. Mclntyre advised the Board that there have been two separate bird surveys conducted

for the PRE Tank 4A project. He noted one survey was done before the clearing of the trees and

the other survey was last week just prior to start of construction. Mr. Mclntyre shared that both

surveys were clear. He reminded the Board that the first task at hand will be to begin excavation

of the tank foundation.

Old Ranch Road Project

Mr. Mclntyre updated the Board on the Old Ranch Road Project and announced we are

using Point Blue Conservation Science out of Bolinas to perform the Northern Spotted Owl

surveys over the next couple of months. He added this work is required to address questions

raised by California Department of Fish and Wildlife (CDFW)when commenting on the draft lnitial

Study. Mr. Mclntyre stated that two surveys have been completed to date.

Website Design Update

Mr. Mclntyre announced that Kiosk continues to work on the new website design. He

added that Kiosk is also in the process of designing the Spring Novato and West Marin Waterline

newsletters. Mr. Mclntyre noted a new set of logo guidelines and NMWD brand guidelines has

been created. Once the new website is finished, Kiosk will pedorm a series of tasks associated

with increasing our social media presence including, but not limited to; a social media calendar

for the remainder of the year, creating a series of NMWD branded social media images and social

media post templates for future use.

Potter Valley Proiect Relicensing

Mr. Mclntyre apprised the Board that Sonoma County Water Agency (SCWA) and the

other Planning Agreement partners are working on submitting a document to the Federal Energy

Regulatory Commission (FERC) on May 14,2020 as required by FERC's Potter Valley Project

NMWD Draft Minutes 2 of 9 April21,2020
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schedule for relicensing. He added that WAC/TAC leadership is working to reschedule the May

4th WAC/TAC meeting to May 18th to better align with the May 14th FERC submittal.

Sonoma Countv Water Agencv FY21 Water Transmission Svstem Budqet

Mr. Mclntyre announced the Sonoma County Water Agency (SCWA) Board of Directors

approved the FY21 Water Transmission Budget (WTS) budget at the Board of Supervisor's

meeting on April 21't.

OPEN TIME

President Joly asked if anyone in the audience wished to bring up an item not on the

agenda and there was no response.

President Joly asked if staff or Directors wished to bring up an item not on the agenda

and the following items were discussed.

Mr. Clark advised the Board that the Stafford Treatment Plant has been in operation for

ten days and the water quality is good. He added there is limited staff available due to the shelter

in place order and they are working a rotating shift Monday thru Friday.

Mr. Clark apprised the Board on the preparation for the next fire season anticipating Public

Safety Power Shutdown (PSPS) events. He stated staff are working on lessons learned from last

year to evaluate what generators we need to rent and purchase to provide temporary power. Mr,

Clark added he is working with Herc Rentals, the same company we used last year, and they are

offering to charge us the same fees as before.

MO NTH LY PROGRESS REPORT

Mr. Mclntyre provided the Monthly Progress Report for March. He stated that water

production in Novato is up 9% from one year ago and up 3o/o year to date. ln West Marin, he

added that water production is up 18% from one year ago and down 9'/o year to date and actual

fiscal year to date consumption up 8%. Mr. Mclntyre informed the Board that Recycled Water

production is up 15% fiscal year to date and that while Stafford Treatment Plant had no production

during the month of March, total production is up 54% fiscal year to date. He added that Stafford

Lake is at 76% capacity, Lake Sonoma is at 89% capacity and Lake Mendocino is at 89%

capacity. Mr. Mclntyre noted the total number of summary of complaints and service orders were

down 34% for the month and down 22o/o lear to date; adding that the customer questionnaire

comments were incredibly positive and commended staff on their customer service skills. Mr.

Mclntyre stated the number of bill adjustments were down 10% from last year and the bill

adjustment dollar amount is down 36% from last year and down 50% from two years ago.

Ms. Blue reported on the March 2020 lnvestments, where the District's porlfolio holds
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$23M earning a 1.89% average rate of return. Julie noted that during March the cash balance

decreased by $192,666. She also noted the LAIF rate is 1.79%.

Director Joly complimented staff for doing a wondeful job with our customer service and

stated it was wonderful to see so many of our customers responding to our questionnaire,

CONSENT ITEMS

On the motion of Director Petterle, and seconded by Director Baker the Board approved

the following item on the consent calendar by the following vote:

AYES: Director Baker, Fraites, Grossi, Joly and Petterle

NOES: None

ABSTAIN: None

ABSENT: None

WATER AGREEMEruT - SPRINGBROOK GREEN HOMES. 1602 VALLEJO AVE., NOVATO

(APN: 141-221-74 and 751

The Board authorized approval of the water service agreement. The project is located at

1602 Vallejo Ave. in Novato and proposes to construct nine attached townhouse residential units

on a 1.3-acre site. There are two existing services on the property that will be removed after the

new water facilities are installed. Total water demand is 6.4 Equivalent Dwelling Units (EDUs)

with a credit of 2 EDUs paid by the previous owners.

ACTION ITEMS

RENEW DECLARATION OF LOCAL EMER Y RELATED TO COVID-1g PANDEMIC

Mr. Mclntyre requested the Board find that there still exists a need to continue the State

of Emergency due to the COVID-19 pandemic as reflected by Resolution No. 20-07.

Mr. Mclntyre reminded the Board that staff has been operating under partial Emergency

Operations Center (EOC) activation since March 18th and summarized various key measures

implemented by the District's emergency management team over the last five weeks.

He stated the District's staff are physically separated as much as possible by rotation shifts

and having some employees work from home, but all critical operations needed to maintain

essential services continue. Mr. Mclntyre also noted relocation of some staff back to the District

buildings, and certain other projects and activities are delayed until after the Marin County and

Statewide shelter-in-place orders are both significantly modified, suspended, or terminated. Mr.

Mclntyre provided the Board with an update on current coronavirus conditions in Marin County.

He apprised the Board that currently we have no employees who have been instructed to be

isolated or are self-quarantined. Mr. Mclntyre added with respect to operational status, we are

not experiencing any major issues. He advised physical Board meetings will be re-instated as
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soon as it is safe for Board members, public and staff to do so.

On the motion of Director Petterle, and seconded by Director Grossi the Board approved

the renewal of the Declaration of Local Emergency Related to COVID-19 Pandemic by the

following vote:

AYES: Director Baker, Fraites, Grossi, Joly and Petterle

NOES: None

ABSTAIN: None

ABSENT: None

SET PUBLIC HEARING TO COA/S/DER RATION OF A WATER SHORTAGE

EMERGENCY AND ADOPT WATER SHORTAGE CONTINGENCY MEASURES IN THE WEST
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MARIN SERVICE AREA

Mr. Mclntyre announced to the Board that the current water year rainfall through April '1't

was only 23.6 inches, which was less than the 28-inches required for normal year conditions. He

added dry year conditions in West Marin will trigger enactment of the Water Shortage Contingency

Plan and the adoption of an Emergency Water Conservation Ordinance. Mr. Mclntyre noted since

the State Water Resources Control Board (SWRCB) Water Rights Order 95-17 was first issued

in 1995, dry year conditions on Lagunitas Creek has only happened once before in2Q14, He

noted that the Ordinance has been drafted such that a drought surcharge is not mandatory, but

may be implemented by resolution of the Board of Directors simultaneously with, or after,

enactment of the mandatory stage effective July 1.

Mr. Mclntyre requested approval from the Board to set the May Sth Board meeting as the

date to hold a Public Hearing to consider declaration of a Water Shortage Emergency in the West

Marin service area.

On the motion of Director Fraites, and seconded by Director Grossi the Board approved

setting the Public Hearing to consider declaration of a Water Shortage Emergency in the West

Marin Service Area by the following vote.

AYES' Director Baker, Fraites, Grossi, Joly and Petterle

NOES: None

ABSTAIN: None

ABSENT: None

GALLAGHER RANCH STREAMBANK STABILIZATION PROJECT. AWARD CONTRACT TO

DIXON MARIN SERY/CES, INC.

Mr. Mclntyre stated the project will repair a bank failure along Lagunitas Creek that

threatens NMWD Gallagher well and pipeline facilities conveying water to the Point Reyes

NMWD Draft Minutes 5 of I April21,2}20



169

170

171

172

173

174

175

176

177

178

179

180

181

182

183

184

185

186

187

188

189

190

191

192

193

194

195

196

197

198

199

200

201

Treatment Plant via the Gallagher Ranch Bridge. He reviewed the bid phase process with the

Board announcing Dixon Marine Services lnc. (DMS) of lnverness, California submitted the lowest

responsive bid of $375,840, which was $17 ,840 above the Engineer's construction cost estimate

of $358,000. He stated a bid evaluation was performed by District staff, concluding that DMS

satisfied all bid requirements. Mr. Mclntyre added the updated total project cost is now $656,549

and includes higher costs for permitting, permit fees, construction and contingencies, and that

staff will need to negotiate a change order with the contractor to address post- bid phase design

changes required by the permitting agencies. Mr. Mclntyre announced there will be a Marin

County Zoning Administrator Hearing on April 30th for County Coastal Permit approval. He added

that as of mid-April all other permitting agencies are finalizing their approval documentation. He

noted that all permits except the Coastal Permit are expected by April 30th and the Coastal Permit

appeals process will not terminate until around May 21't. Mr. Mclntyre stated the original Natural

Resource Conservation Service (NRCS) project completion date was automatically extended

from May 22nd lo July 21 , 2020 due to COVID-19.

Director Baker reminded Mr. Mclntyre that he would like all bid tabulations to include the

home office location of each bidder, adding that Directors like to follow the players, especially the

new ones. Director Petterle noted he worked with Dixon Marine in the past and found them to be

very competent.

On the motion of Director Baker, and seconded by Director Fraites the Board approved

award of the construction contract to Dixon Marin Services, lnc. for the Gallagher Ranch

Streambank Stabilization Project by the following vote:

AYES: Director Baker, Fraites, Grossi, Joly and Petterle

NOES: None

ABSTAIN: None

ABSENT. None

INDIAN VALLEY GOLF CLUB LEASE EXTENSION

Ms. Blue reported to the Board that this lease was originally established in 1956, renewed

in '1988 and the current terms are set to expire in2026. She stated lndian Valley Golf Club (IVGC)

has requested a four-year extension in order to satisfy a requirement for IVGC to apply for a Small

Business Administration Economic lnjury Disaster Loan for those experiencing hardship due to

the recent COVID-19 Public Health Order.

Mr. McAndrew stated the memo says it all, and they need help since the golf industry is a

tough business now. He added they have been closed and are financially hufting, noting four
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more years on the lease will really help them out. Director Joly stated that he was deeply sorry

to hear this and NMWD is happy to be partners with IVGC and wish them all the best.

On the motion of Director Petterle, and seconded by Director Fraites the Board approved

the lndian Valley Golf Club Lease Extension by the following vote:

AYES: Director Baker, Fraites, Grossi, Joly and Petterle

NOES: None

ABSTAIN: None

ABSENT: None

OCEANA MARIN SEWER SYS FINANCIAL PLAN UPDATE

Ms. Blue apprised the Board that the 5% proposed rate increases are consistent with the

prior year's 5-year financial plan and budget to finance a portion of the CIP plan. She stated

these increases are needed to fund the capital improvement plan which will address deferred

major capital projects, which are necessary to maintain a well-functioning sewer system. Ms. Blue

noted these projects include the Treatment Pond Berm Rehabilitation Project and North Street

Lift Station Bypass Project. Ms. Blue announced that at the May Sth meeting the Board will be

asked to approve a letter which will notify the OM customers of the proposed rate increase. She

also stated that a public hearing to approve the rates is scheduled for June 23'd in Point Reyes.

Director Petterle advised that there should be flexibility in the letter, and phrase it in such

a way that we address the current shelter in place order and state that we may or may not have

a physical location meeting.

On the motion of Director Grossi, and seconded by Director Fraites the Board approved

the Oceana Marin Sewer System Financial Plan Update by the following vote:

AYES: Director Baker, Fraites, Grossi, Joly and Petterle.

NOES: None

ABSTAIN: None

ABSENT: None

WEST MARIN WATER SYS trINANCIAI PI AN I IPDATtr

Ms. Blue reported to the Board that a 4.5o/o rate increase is proposed for the West Marin

Water System. She noted significant expenditures in this plan include capital projects which

include completion of the Paradise Ranch Estates Tank 4A project; continued work on the State

Route 1 (at Lagunitas Creek) Bridge Pipe Replacement project and the completion of the

Gallagher Ranch Streambank Stabilization project. Ms. Blue announced that at the May 5th

meeting the Board will be asked to approve a letter which will notify the WM customers of the

proposed rate increase. She also stated that a public hearing to approve the rates is scheduled
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for June 23'd in Point Reyes. She added that the letter will include Director Petterle's suggestion

that we may have a virtual, not physical location meeting for the public hearing.

Director Joly asked if the proposed 4.5% rate increase is for one-year. Ms. Blue replied

yes, the five-year financial plan includes rate increases of 4.5o/o each year but that the current

proposed rate increase and customer notification letter is solely for FY 20121. She stated we will

revisit the financial plan and future rate increases the following year.

On the motion of Director Grossi, and seconded by Director Baker the Board approved

the West Marin Water System Financial Plan Update by the following vote:

AYES: Director Baker, Fraites, Grossi, Joly and Petterle

NOES: None

ABSTAIN: None

ABSENT: None

INFORMATION ITEMS

STP SOIA R POWER FACILITY

Mr. Clark provided a seven-year status report on the Stafford Treatment Plant Solar

Power Facility. He advised the Board that operation of the solar facility resulted in a net power

savings of $3,347 to the District during the 201812019 billing year.

Director Baker asked if we have had any vandalism of the panels. Mr. Clark responded

that occasionally a golf ball ends up in the solar field site, but these occurrences have been minor

issues. He added all in all, it is performing above design capacity and staff is incredibly pleased

with that.

MISCELLANEOUS

The Board received the following miscellaneous items. Disbursements - April 9, 2020,

Disbursements - April 1 6,2020, Rate lncrease Notice on Water Bill - Novato Service Area, Notice

of Public Hearing - Proposed Water Rate lncrease, Website Privacy Policy and Gallagher Family

LLC Coastal Permit - NMWD Streambank Stabilization Project.

The Board received the following news articles: Coronavirus: ls the drinking water supply

safe?; Virus Hunters Find Coronavirus Clues in Sewage; Pension portfolio jarred by outbreak;

Coast Guard Housing Update; Marin infections'flattening'CORONAVIRUS PANDEMIC; Editorial

- COM-Kent flap illustrates need for outreach and Western megadrought one of the worst.

Director Petterle commented on the rate increase message that will be included on each

customer's water bill, adding the message makes no mention of a virtual meeting possibility. Ms.

Blue responded that the message will be revised to address his concern.
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Director Grossi asked if staff thought of using the Zoom or GoToMeeting website

platforms, adding they have been using it at the school board meetings. He stated that it has a

button to raise a hand to talk and this may be an advantage. Mr. Mclntyre replied that we have

an internet bandwidth issue at the office and is concerned about internet speed if using remote

video access. He added that staff can research this more with our lT consultants to explore

options. Director Petterle stated that he does not mind Zoom, but his concern is that there may

be people who don't have internet access or are easily confused, and by providing access by

phone this will make us as open as possible. Director Grossi stated the meeting he was on, three

of the attendees were on phones, however if we do not have the bandwidth that is a concern.

Director Joly recognized Mr. Grisso for putting together an online website privacy policy

and asked if at the May 5th meeting the Board can have an update on the Kiosk rollout of the new

website. Mr. Mclntyre confirmed.

Director Joly thanked the Board for meeting under these extraordinary circumstances and

thanked staff for doing a great job. He closed the meeting and wished every to be safe.

ADJOURNMENT

President Joly adjourned the meeting at 7:13 p.m.

Submitted by

Theresa Kehoe
District Secretary
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MEMORANDUM

Item #2

May 1 ,2020To:

From:

Board of Directors

Drew Mclntyre, General Manager
Ryan Grisso, Water Conservation

RECOMMENDED ACT¡ON

FINANCIAL IMPACT:

nator

1. Hold a public hearing to consider declaration of a
water shortage emergency in the West Marin Service
Area

2. Enact the West Marin Water Shortage Contingency
Plan

3. Adopt Emergency Water Conservation Ordinance

$30,000 (Estimated)

Subject: Public Hearing to Consider Declaration of a Water Shortage Emergency and Adopt Water
Shortage Contingency Measures in the West Marin Service Area
v:\memos lo board\public hearing for emergency water conservalion ordinance wm 05.2020.doc

At the March 17th meeting, the Board was advised that Lagunitas Creek rainfall at the Kent

Lake rain gauge was at 21,3 inches (vs -18 inches in2018), and that absent significant rainfall

through the end of March, it was likely that dry year conditions would prevail on Lagunitas Creek for

the 2020 summer season.

Water Right Order 95-17, adopted in 1995, defined dry year conditions on Lagunitas Creek

and subsequent stream flow reductions based on the amount of rainfall received at Marin Municipal

Water District's Kent Lake gauge between the preceding six months from October 1 through April 1.

At the April 2l stmeeting, the Board was advised that this current water year, rainfallthrough April 1't

is 23.6 inches which is less than the required 28-inches for normal year conditions. Dry year

conditions trigger enactment of the Water Shortage Contingency Plan and adoption of a Water

Conservation Ordinance. At the April 21't meeting the Board set a Public Hearing for April 5th to

consider declaration of a Water Shortage Emergency, enacting the Water Shortage Contingency

Plan, and adopting a Water Conservation ordinance. Since the State Water Resources Control

Board (SWRCB) Order 95-17 was issued in 1995, a Dry Year Condition on Lagunitas Creek has

only happened once before in 2Q14.

At this time the Board is asked to hold a public hearing to declare a Water Shortage

Emergency in West Marin, enact the Water Shortage Contingency Plan (Attachment 1) and approve

an Emergency Water Conservation Ordinance (Attachment 2), A strike-out version of the Ordinance

compared to 2014 is also included (Attachment 3). The Emergency Water Conservation Ordinance

calls for Stage 1, 15o/o voluntary conservation, beginning May 5th and Stage 2, Mandatory 25o/o



Memo re Public Hearing Water Shortage Emergency
Page 2 o'f 2

conservation beginning July 1't, as compared to water use in 2013. Note that the mandatory 25o/o

reduction would be for the West Marin Service Area as a whole and does not necessarily impose a

25o/o mandatory reduction for individual res¡dential customers. lt is also important to note that

customers in the West Marin Service area have achieved considerable conservation since 2002and

continued conservation since 2013 as shown in the West Marin Consumption Chart (Attachment4).

The Mandatory Stage may trigger enactment of a drought surcharge to be considered simultaneous

with, or subsequent to enactment of the mandatory stage at the discretion of the Board.

The Public Hearing Notice was noticed in the Point Reyes Light newspaper on April 30, 2020

(Attachment 5) and these documents have all been made available on the District website. The final

Ordinance will be publicized on the website and in the West Marin Waterline newsletter, also

included in this Board agenda for review and approval.

Recommendation

1. Board to Hold a public hearing to consider declaration of a water shortage emergency in

the West Marin Service Area

2. Board to Enact the West Marin Water Shortage Contingency Plan, and

3. Board to Adopt Emergency Water Conservation Ordinance
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NORTH MARIN WATER DISTRICT

WATER SHORTAGE CONTINGENCY PLAN

FOR WEST MARIN SERVICE AREA

April 2016

Customer Notification

il

January '1 water year classification "dry"

A. NMWD notifies customer by bill message.

"There are dry year conditions on Lagunitas Creek which may trigger implementation of
water shortage contingency measures. Final determination will be made on April 1.

Please use water wisely."

B. NMWD issues press release in February and March informing that potential dry year
conditions exist and promoting customer participation in NMWD water conservation
programs.

April 1 water year classification "normal"

A. Spring edition of NMWD West Marin "Water Line" promotes conservation measures.

April 1 water year classification "dry"

A. Spring edition of NMWD West Marin "Water Line" informs customers of "Water Shortage
Emergency," public hearing and contingency measures. Water conservation programs
and giveaways to be on display.

B. Stages of Action published as required in Point Reyes Light and posted at Point Reyes
Station post office.

Specific Triqqers

Stage 1 Trigger:

Stage 2 Trigger:

Stage 3 Trigger:

When the total precipitation that occurs from October through April 1 of the
following year is less than 28" as measured at the MMWD Kent precipitation gage
and the period is April '1 through June 30, or when the NMWD Board of Directors
determines that Dry Conditions prevail based on advice from NMWD staff or the
State Water Resources Control Board.

When the total precipitation that occurs from October through April 1 of the
following year is less than 28" as measured at the MMWD Kent precipitation gage
and the period is July 1 through November 1, or when the NMWD Board of
Directors determines that Dry Conditions prevail based on advice from NMWD
staff or the State Water Resources Control Board.

When the total precipitation that occurs from October through April 1 of the
following year is less than 28" as measured at the MMWD Kent precipitation gage
and water demands in any preceding thirty-day period exceed an average of
433,000 gpd, or when the NMWD Board of Directors determines that Critical Dry
Conditions prevail based on advice from NMWD staff or State Water Resources
Control Board.

t:\gm\water shortage 2014\west mar¡n water shortage contingency plan 20i6.doc
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Consumption Limits (do not apply where private well or recycled water supply is used)

Stage l: (Request for up to _o/o voluntary reduction)

Residential

Commercial and
lndustrial:

_o/o voluntary reduction in water use from a prior year for
similar billing period to be determined by the NMWD Board of
Directors depending on circumstances in place at the time of
enactment.

_%o voluntary reduction in water use from a prior year for
similar billing period (exceptions may be granted in order to
preserve jobs) to be determined by the NMWD Board of Directors
depending on circumstances in place at time of enactment.

Stage 2:

Stage 3:

(Mandatory water use restrictions to enable reduction in water use up to _%)
Residential: Water use for certain purposes are restricted as determined by the

NMWD Board of Directors depending on circumstances in place
at time of enactment.

Commercial and Water use for certain purposes are restricted as determined by the
lndustrial: NMWD Board of Directors depending on circumstances in place

at time of enactment (exceptions may be granted in order to
preserve jobs).

(Up to 50% mandatory reduction)

Residential: _% mandatory reduction in water use from a prior year for
r¡m¡tar billing period or maximum gallons per peison þer day
allowance to be determined by the NMWD Board of Directors
depending on circumstances in place at time of enactment.

Commercial and _% mandatory reduction in water use from a prior year for
lndustrial similar billing period to be determined by the NMWD Board of

Directors depending on circumstances in place at time of
enactment (exceptions may be granted to preserve jobs).

Staqes of Action

Stage 1 Voluntarv - achieve _Yo reductionl in water use by implementation of any of the
following

a. Encourage voluntary rationing;

b. Pursue vigorous enforcement of water wasting regulations and provisions of District's
Water Conservation Regulation 17 which requires water saving devices in new
construction, prohibits installation of certain wasteful types of turf configurations, and
encourages turf avoidance;

c. Request customers to make conscious efforts to conserve water;

d. Request other governmental agencies to demonstrate leadership and implement
restrictive water use programs;

e. Distribute water saving kits upon customer request, to assure availability to existing
and new customers (Note: Similar kits were distributed system wide to all customers

lExact amount and District wide measurement of goal and method of achievement to be established by Board
of Directors after examining projected supplies and after holding water shortage emergency public hearing.

J
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Stage 2

during the 1976-77 California drought);

f. Encourage private sector to use alternate water sources such as recycled water or
use of private wells;

g. Encourage the non-commercial washing of privately owned motor vehicles, trailers
and boats only from a bucket and except that a hose equipped with a shut-off nozzle
may be used for a quick rinse.;

h. Encouragenighttimeirrigation;

i. Request restaurants, hotels, cafes, cafeterias, bars or other public places where food
or drink are served/purchased to serve water only upon request;

j. lmplement detailed measures from other stages to meet desired objective;

k. Any use of potable water from a fire hydrant except for fighting fire, human
consumption, essential construction needs or use in connection with animals;

L Navy style showering will be promoted (e.9., turn on water to wet person or persons,
turn off water, lather up, scrub, then turn on water for a quick rinse, then turn off
shower with free push button showerhead control valves available to customers upon
request);

m. Customers will be urged not to regularly flush their toilets for disposal of urine only;

n. Request hotel and motel operators to provide guests with the option of choosing not
to have towels and linens laundered daily;

o. Prohibit use of potable water for dust control at construction sites or other locations;

Mandatorv - achieve a _o/o reductionl in water use by declaring a water shorlage
emergency and implementing Stage 1 (voluntary) and Stage 2 (mandatory) restrictions on
water use for the following certain purposes

a. Washing sidewalks, driveways, parking areas, tennis courts, patios or other
exterior paved areas except by the Marin County Fire Department or other
public agency for the purpose of public safety;

b. Refilling a completely drained swimming pool and/or
initial filling of any swimming pool;

c. Non-commercial washing of privately-owned motor vehicles, trailers and boats
except from a bucket and except that a hose equipped with a shut-off nozzle
may be used for a quick rinse;

d. Watering of any lawn, garden, landscaped area, tree, shrub or other plant
except from a hand-held hose or container or drip irrigation system except
sprinklers can be used if customer maintains the volume or percent reduction
pursuant to the NMWD Board of Directors determination compared to a prior
year's use in same billing period;

e. Any non-residential use by a vehicle washing facility in excess of the volume
percent or reduction pursuant to the NMWD Board of Directors determination;

f. lrrigating landscape other than between the hours of 7pm and 9am the
following day;

g. lrrigating landscape more than days per week;

h. lrrigating landscape during or within 48 hours of measureable precipitation,

i. lrrigating with potable water of lawn area on public street medians.

tr\gm\water shortage 2014\west marin water shortage contingency plarr 2016.doc
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Stage 3

j. lnterlie deliveries through the interlie to lnverness Public Utility District (IPUD),
except for critical needs as determined by the General Manager.

It¡a¡dAþry - achieve up to a _o/o2 reduction in water use by declaring a water
emergency and implementing Stage 1 (Voluntary), Stage 2 (Mandatory)and the following
additional Stage 3 (Mandatory) requirements.

a. Watering any residential lawn, or any commercial or industrial area lawn
maintained for aesthetic purposes, at any time day or night during the period of
July 1, through October 31. (These designated lawns will be allowed to dry up
for the summer). Affected customers will be advised on tested methods for re-
greening the lawns at minimum expense beginning on November 1, during a

Stage 3 mandatory period if operating conditions permit. By following the
prescribed instructions, the affected customers will likely avoid the cost of
replacing lawns.

b. Planting any new landscaping, except for designated drought resistant
landscaping authorized by NMWD.

c. Public groups may apply to the General Manager for exemptions for watering
specific public lawns used extensively for community wide recreation. Such
public area lawn watering shall only be done under methods and time periods
prescribed by the General Manager. Such exemptions will only be given by
the General Manager, if the mandatory _o/o reduction in water can
otherwise be achieved on a service area basis.

d. All day and nighttime sprinkling will be discontinued. Any and all outside
watering will be done only with a hand held nozzle. An exception will be made
to permit drip irrigation for established perennial plants and trees using manual
or automatic time controlled water application sufficient only for assured plant
survival.

e. No new annual plants, vegetables, flowers or vines may be planted until the
Stage 3 mandatory period is over. An exception will be considered on a case
by case basis for customers who are eliminating existing thirsty landscaping
and replacing same with drought resisting landscaping prescribed by NMWD,
as in b. above.

f. Limit deliveries of water to outside service area customers to that needed for
human consumption, sanitation and public safety only or as stipulated in
outside service agreements.

g. Discontinue all water deliveries through the intertie to IPUD.

Ã
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Plan Preparation

Adoption of Plan

Monitorinq of Actual
Water Use

Mandatorv Prohibitions

Revenue and
Expenditure Analvsis

This plan has been coordinated with County, State and Federal Emergency
Services Offices.

The Stage of Action will be enacted after public hearing required by the
District's Emergency Water Conservation Ordinance and a determination
by the District's Board of Directors that a West Marin Water Shortage
Emergency exists.

Monitoring of water use will be by meters with data analysis using the
District's computers.

Wasting of water is prohibited by Regulation 17 of the North Marin Water
District.

Stage 2 and Stage 3 of the Water Shortage Contingency Plan contain
specific mandatory provisions.

Temporary Drought Revenue Recovery Surcharge

ln the event that mandatory water use restrictions or mandatory reduction
in water use is triggered (Stage 2 or Stage 3 herein), a Temporary Drought
Revenue Recovery Surcharge may be implemented. The Temporary
Drought Revenue Recovery Surcharge will serve to mitigate the revenue
loss resulting from a reduction in water use. The Temporary Drought
Revenue Recovery Surcharge shall be a quantity charge for each 1,000
gallons as specified in District Regulation 54.

t:\gm\water shortage 2014\wesl marin water shortâge cont¡ngency plan 2016.doc
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EM ERGENCY WATER CONSERVATION ORDINANCE

ORDINANCE NO. XX

AN ORDINANCE OF NORTH MARIN WATER DISTRICT DECLARING THE EXISTENCE OF A
WATER SHORTAGE EMERGENCY CONDITION WITHIN THE WEST MARIN SERVICE
AREA OF THE DISTRICT, PROHIBITING THE WASTE AND NON-ESSENTIAL USE OF

WATER, AND PROVIDING FOR THE CONSERVATION OF THE WATER SUPPLY OF THE
DISTRICT

BE lT ORDAINED by the Board of Directors of North Marin Water District as follows:

Secfion 1. Declaration of a Water Shortage Emergency
This Board of Directors does hereby find and declare as follows:

(a) A public hearing was held on May 5, 2020, on the matter of whether this Board of Directors
should declare a water shortage emergency condition exists within the West Marin water service
area of this District which is served by wells adjacent to Lagunitas Creek.

(b) Notice of said hearing was published in the Point Reyes Light, newspaper of general

circulation printed and published within said West Marin water service area of the District.

(c) At said hearing all persons present were given an opportunity to be heard and all persons

desiring to be heard were heard.

(d) Said hearing was called, noticed and held in all respects as required by law.

(e) This Board heard and has considered each protest against the declaration and all

evidence presented at said hearing,

(f) A water shortage emergency condition exists and prevails within the portion of the territory
of this District served by wells adjacent to Lagunitas Creek. Said portion of this District is
hereinafter referred to as the West Marin Service Area and consists in all the territory of this
District generally known as Point Reyes Station, lnverness Park, Olema, Bear Valley and
Paradise Ranch Estates. Said water shortage exists by reason of the fact that the ordinary
demands and requirements of the water consumers in the West Marin Service Area cannot be

met and satisfied by the water supplies available to this District in the West Marin Service Area
without depleting the water supply to the extent that there would be insufficient water for human
consumption, sanitation and fire protection.

(g) On May 5, 2020 the Board of Directors enacted the North Marin Water District Water
Shortage Contingency Plan for the West Marin Service Area (Plan) and said Plan defines specific
triggers for stages of action applicable to District customers, and pursuant to this ordinance. The
specific triggers for stages of action vary and are determined based on rainfall measured at the
Marin MunicipalWater District Kent precipitation gage, calendar period and water demands in the
West Marin Service Area.

Secfion 2. Purpose and Authority
The purpose of this ordinance is to conserve the water supply of the District for the greatest

public benefit with particular regard to public health, fire protection and domestic use, to conserve
water by reducing waste, and to the extent necessary by reason of the existing water shortage
emergency condition to reduce water use fairly and equitably. This ordinance is adopted pursuant

to Water Code Section 350 to and including 358, Sections 375 to and including 378, and Section
31026 to and including 31029.

NMWD West Marin Model Emergency Water Conservation Ordinance
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Secúion 3. Effect of Ordinance
This ordinance shall take effect on May 5, 2020, shall be effective only in the West Marin

Service Area, shall supersede and control over any other ordinance or regulation of the District in

conflict herewith, and shall remain in effect until the Board of Directors declares that the water
shortage emergency has ended.

Section 4. Suspension of New Connections to the West Marin Service Area

(a) From July 1 , 2O2O until, the Board of Directors by resolution declares that the water
shortage has ended, which period is hereinafter referred to as the suspension period, no new or
enlarged connection shall be made to the West Marin Service Area except the following:

(1) connection pursuant to the terms of connection agreements which prior to July 1,

2020, had been executed or had been authorized by the Board of Directors to be

executed;

(2) connections of fire hydrants;

(3) connections of property previously supplied with water from a well which runs dry.

(4) connection of property for which the Applicant agrees to defer landscape installation
until after the suspension period.

(b) During the suspension period applications for water service will be processed only if the
Applicant acknowledges in writing that such processing shall be at the risk and expense of the
Applicant and that if the application is approved in accordance with the District's regulations, such
approval shall confer no right upon the Applicant or anyone else until the suspension period has

expired, and that the Applicant releases the District from all claims of damage arising out of or in
any manner connected with the suspension of connections.

(c) Upon the expiration of the suspension period, the District will make connections to its
water system in accordance with its regulations and the terms of connection agreements for all

said applications approved during the suspension period. The water supply then available to the
District will be apportioned equitably among all the customers then being served by the District
without discrimination against services approved during the suspension period.

(d) Nothing herein shall prohibit or restrict any modification, relocation or replacement of a
connection to the District's system if the General Manager determines that the demand upon the
District's water supply will not be increased thereby.

Secúion 5. Waste of Water Prohibited
No water furnished by the District shall be wasted. Waste of water includes, but is not limited

to, the following:

(a) permitting water to escape down a gutter, ditch or other sudace drain;

(b) failure to repair a controllable leak of water;

(c) failure to put to reasonable beneficial use any water withdrawn from the District's system.

Secfion 6. Prohibition of Non-Essential Use of Water
(a) No water furnished by the District shall be used for any purpose declared to be non-

essential by this ordinance for the following stages of action as determined by the Board of
Directors after considering specific triggers consistent with the Water Shortage Contingency Plan

NMWD West Marin Model Emergency Water Conservation Ordinance
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for the West Marin Service Area.

Stage 1 - Voluntary Stage (15% reduction). Achieve 15% reduction in water usage
compared to the corresponding billing period in 2013 by encouraging voluntary rationing,
enforcement of water wasting regulations and water conservation Regulation 17, requesting
customers to make conscious efforts to conserve water, request restaurants to serve water only

upon request, encourage private sector to use alternate source and encourage night irrigation.

Stage 2 - Mandatory Stage (25% reduction)

(b) The following uses are declared to be non-essential from and after July 1,2020'.

(1) washing sidewalks, driveways, parking areas, tennis courts, patios or other exterior
paved areas except by the Marin County Fire Department or other public agency for
the purpose of public safety;

(2) refilling a swimming pool completely drained after July 1,2020;

(3) non-commercial washing of privately-owned motor vehicles, trailers and boats except
from a bucket and except that a hose equipped with a shut-off nozzle may be used
for a quick rinse.

(4) Request restaurants to serve water only upon request.

(c) The following additional uses are declared to be non-essential from and after July 1 ,2020'.

(1) any use of water from a fire hydrant except for fighting fires, human consumption,
essential construction needs or use in connection with animals;

(2) watering of any lawn, garden, landscaped area, tree, shrub or other plant except from
a handheld hose equipped with an automatic shut-off nozzle, container or drip
irrigation system except overhead sprinkler irrigation can be used if customer
maintains an overall 25o/o reduction in water use compared to the corresponding
billing period in 2Q13, (customers using less than 200 gallons per day are permitted
to water their landscape withoul a 25% reduction) and properly operates the irrigation
system in a non-wasteful manner between the hours of 7:00 p.m. and 9:00 a.m. the
next day. lf sprinkler water is used in a wasteful manner, the General Manager may
prohibit sprinkling by that customer.

(3) lrrigating landscape more than 3 days per week or within 48 hours of measurable
rainfall.

(4) lrrigating lawn area on public street medians.

(5) use of water for dust control at construction sites;

(6) initial filling of any swimming pool for which application for a building permit was made
after May 5,2020',

(7) use by a vehicle washing facility in excess of 25o/o less than the amount used by it
during the corresponding billing period in 2013. lf the facility was not operating in
2013, an assumed amount shall be computed by the District from its records.

(8) any non-residential use in excess of 25o/o less than the amount used by the customer
during the corresponding billing period in 2013. lf connection to the District system
was not in existence or use in 2013, an assumed amount will be computed from the
District's records.

NMWD West Marin Model Emergency Water Conservation Ordinance
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(9) lntertie deliveries to lnverness Public Utilities District (IPUD), except for critical needs
as determined by the General Manager

(10) Deliveries to customers outside the service area except as needed for human
consumption, sanitation and public safety or as stipulated in outside service
agreements.

Stage 3 - Severe Mandatory Rationing (50% reduction)

(d) From and after the date that the Board of Directors, by resolution, determines that the
water shortage emergency requires severe rationing, the following additional uses are declared
to be non-essential:

(1) Watering any residential lawn, or any commercial or industrial area lawn maintained
for aesthetic purposes, at any time of the day or night during the period of August 1,

through October 31, when a Stage 3 is in progress.

(2) Planting any new landscaping, except for designated drought resistant landscaping
prescribed by the District.

(3) All day and nighttime sprinkling will be discontinued. Any and all outside watering will
be done only with a hand-held nozzle. An exception will be made for carefully timed
drip irrigation for established perennial plants and trees. Only sufficient water for
assured plant survival may be applied.

(a) No new annual plants, vegetables, flowers or vines may be planted during the Stage
3 emergency period. An exception will be made for customers who are eliminating
existing thirsty landscaping and replacing same with drought resisting landscaping
prescribed by the District, as in (2) above.

The combined rationing including Stage 1,2, and 3 is designed to achieve a minimum
reduction of 50% or more in West Marin service territory water consumption as compared
with normal year annual usage.

(e) The percentages stipulated in Stage 2 and Stage 3 may be increased by the General
Manager for any class of customer if the General Manager determines that such increase is
necessary to protect the public health, safety and welfare or to spread equitably among the water
users of the District the burdens imposed by the drought and the shortage in the District's water
supply.

Section 7. Variances
Applications for a variance from the provisions of Section 6 of this ordinance may be made to

the General Manager. The General Manager may grant a variance to permit a use of water
otherwise prohibited by Section 6 if the General Manager determines that the variance is
reasonably necessary to protect the public health and safety and/or economic viability of a
commercial operation. Any decision of the General Manager under this section may be appealed
to the Board of Directors.

Section 8. Violations
(a) lf and when the District becomes aware of any violation of any provision of Section 5 or 6

of this ordinance, a verbal warning will be given, then if the violation continues or is repeated, a
written notice shall be placed on the properly where the violation occurred and mailed to the
person who is regularly billed for the service where the violation occurs and to any other person
known to the District who is responsible for the violation or its correction. Said notice shall

NMWD West Marin Model Emergency Water Conservation Ordinance
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describe the violation and order that it be corrected, cured and abated intmediately or within such
specified time as the General Manager determines is reasonable under the circumstances. lf
said order is not complied with, the District may forthwith disconnect the service where the
violation occurs.

(b) For the first offense, a fee of $50 shall be paid for the reconnection of any service
disconnected pursuant to subsection (a) during the suspension period. For each subsequent
violation of Section I (a), the fee for reconnection shall be $75.

(c) No service which is disconnected twice because of a violation of Section 5 or 6 of this
ordinance during the suspension period, shall be reconnected unless a device supplied by the
District which will restrict the flow of water to said service is installed. Furthermore, the fee for
reconnection of such a service during the suspension period shall be $100 in lieu of the fee
required by subsection (b) hereof.

Secffon 9. Sþns on Lands Supplied from Private Wells
The owner or occupant of any land within the West Marin water service area that is supplied

with water from a private well shall post and maintain in a conspicuous place thereon a sign
furnished by the District giving public notice of such supply.

Section 10. Drought Surcharge
Notwithstanding anything to the contrary in District Regulation 54, in the event a

mandatory reduction in water use is triggered under the District's Water Shofiage Contingency
Plan for the West Marin Service Area, a Drought Surcharge may be implemented by resolution of
the Board of Directors simultaneous with, or subsequent to, enactment of the mandatory stage,
in the sole discretion of the Board of Directors. The Drought Surcharge will serve to mitigate the
revenue loss resulting from a reduction in water use, as well as to offset the cost for water
purchased from Marin Municipal Water District (MMWD) under the lnterconnection Agreement
between North Marin Water District and MMWD triggered by dry year conditions. The Drought
Surcharge shall be a quantity charge for each 1,000 gallons as specified in District Regulation 54.
Any Drought Surcharge shall be adopted and implemented in compliance with applicable law,
including Adicle XlllC of the California Constitution.

I hereby certify that the foregoing is a true and complete copy of an ordinance duly and
regularly adopted by the Board of Directors of Norlh Marin Water District at a regular meeting
thereof held on May 5, 2020 bV the following vote:

AYES:
NOES:
ABSENT:
ABSTAINED

tr *
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t:\ordinances\ordinance drafts\ordinance 39\ordinance 39 f¡nal draft,docx

6

Bev 05/20



(sEAL)
Theresa Kehoe

District Secretary
North Marin Water District

NMWD West Marin Model Emergency Water Conservation Ordinance
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EMERGENCY WATER CONSERVATION ORDINANGE

ORDINANCE NO.z$XX

AN ORDINANCE OF NORTH MARIN WATER DISTRICT DECLARING THE EXISTENCE OF A
WATER SHORTAGE EMERGENCY CONDITION WITHIN THE WEST MARIN SERVICE
AREA OF THE DISTRICT, PROHIBITING THE WASTE AND NON-ESSENTIAL USE OF

WATER, AND PROVIDING FOR THE CONSERVATION OF THE WATER SUPPLY OF THE
DISTRICT

BE lT ORDAINED by the Board of Directors of North Marin Water District as follows:

Secfion 1. Declaration of a Water Shortage Emergency
This Board of Directors does hereby find and declare as follows:

(a)Apublichearingwasheldon@,onthematterofwhetherthis
Board of Directors should declare a water shortage emergency condition exists within the West
Marin water service area of this District which is served by wells adjacent to Lagunitas Creek.

(b)NoticeofsaidhearingwaspublishedinthePointReyesLight@
WofgeneralcirculationprintedandpublishedwithinsaidWestMarinwater
service area of the District.

(c) At said hearing all persons present were given an opportunity to be heard and all persons
desiring to be heard were heard.

(d) Said hearing was called, noticed and held in all respects as required by law.

(e) This Board heard and has considered each protest against the declaration and all
evidence presented at said hearing.

(f) A water shortage emergency condition exists and prevails within the portion of the territory
of this District served by wells adjacent to Lagunitas Creek. Said portion of this District is
hereinafter referred to as the West Marin aFeeservj-ce åIgg and consists in all the territory of this
District generally known as Point Reyes Station, lnverness Park, Olema, Bear Valley and
Paradise Ranch Estates. -Said water shortage exists by reason of the fact that the ordinary
demands and requirements of the water consumers in the West Marin areaServçgérea cannot
be met and satisfied by the water supplies available to this District in the West Marin Service Area
without depleting the water supply to the extent that there would be insufficient water for human
consumption, sanitation and fire protection.

(g)on@theBoardofDirectorsenactedtheNorthMarinWaterDistrict
Water Shortage Contingency Plan for the West Marin Service Area (Plan) and said PIan defines
specific triggers for stages of action applicable to District customers, and pursuant to this
ordinance. The specific triggers for stages of action vary and are determined based on rainfall
measured at the Marin Municipal Water District Kent precipitation gage, calendar period and water
demands in the West Marin Service Area.

Secfion 2. Purpose and Authority
The purpose of this ordinance is to conserve the water supply of the District for the greatest

public benefit with particular regard to public health, fire protection and domestic use, to conserve

NMWD West Marin Model Emergency Water Conservation Ordinance
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water by reducing waste, and to the extent necessary by reason of d+eugþ1s64-the existing water
shortage emergency condition to reduce water use fairly and equitably. This ordinance is adopted
pursuant to Water Code Section 350 to and including 358, an4Sections 375 to and includinq 378,
and Section 31026 to and including 31029.

Secfion 3. Effect of Ordinance
ThisordinanceshaIltakeeffecton@,shallbeeffectiveonlyinthe

WestMarin@,shallsupersedeandcontroloveranyotherordinanceor
regulation of the District in conflict herewith, and shall remain in effect until the Board of Directors
declares that the water shortage emergency has ended.

Secfion 4. Suspension of New Connections to ¡¡" est
Marin Seryíce Area

(a) From July 1 , æ14M until, the Board of Directors by resolution declares that the water
shortage has ended, which period is hereinafter referred to as the suspension period, no new or
enlarged connection shall be made to the Bistriet's water systemWest Marin Service Area except
the following:

(1) connection pursuant to the terms of connection agreements which prior to July 1,
414M, had been executed or had been authorized by the Board of Directors to
be executed;

(2) connections of fire hydrants;

(3) connections of property previously supplied with water from a well which runs dry.

(4) connection of propeñy for which the Applicant agrees to defer landscape installation
until after the suspension period.

(b) During the suspension period applications for water service will be processed only if the
Applicant acknowledges in writing that such processing shall be at the risk and expense of the
Applicant and that if the application is approved in accordance with the District's regulations, such
approval shall confer no right upon the Applicant or anyone else until the suspension period has
expired, and that the Applicant releases the District from all claims of damage arising out of or in
any manner connected with the suspension of connections.

(c) Upon the expiration of the suspension period, the District will make connections to its
water system in accordance with its regulations and the terms of connection agreements for all
said applications approved during the suspension period. The water supply then available to the
District will be apportioned equitably among all the customers then being served by the District
without discrimination against services approved during the suspension period.

(d) Nothing herein shall prohibit or restrict any modification, relocation or replacement of a
connection to the District's system if the General Manager determines that the demand upon the
District's water supply will not be increased thereby.

Secúion 5. Waste of Water Prohibited
No water furnished by the District shall be wasted. -Waste of water includes, but is not limited

to, the following:

NMWD West Marin Model Emergency Water Conservation Ordinance
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(a) permitting water to escape down a gutter, ditch or other surface drain;

(b) failure to repair a controllable leak of water;

(c) failure to put to reasonable beneficial use any water withdrawn from the District's system

Secúion 6. Prohibition of Non-Essential Use of Water
(a) No water furnished by the District shall be used for any purpose declared to be non-

essential by this ordinance for the following stages of action as determined by the Board of
Directors after considering specific triggers consistent with the Water Shortage Contingency Plan
for the West Marin Service Area.

Stage I - Voluntary Stage (15% reduction). Achieve 15% reduction in water usage
compared to the corresponding billing period in 2013 by encouraging voluntary rationing,
enforcement of water wasting regulations and water conservation Regulation 17, requesting
customers to make conscious efforts to conserve water, request restaurants to serve water only
upon request, encourage private sector to use alternate source and encourage night irrigation.

Stage 2 - Mandatory Stage (25% reduction)

(b) The following uses are declared to be non-essential from and after July 1,414M:
(1) washing sidewalks, driveways, parking areas, tennis couds, patios or other exterior

paved areas except by the Marin County Fire Department or other public agency for
the purpose of public safety;

(2) refilling a swimming pool completelv drained after July 1, Æ14@;
(3) non-commercial washing of privately-owned motor vehicles, trailers and boats except

from a bucket and except that a hose equipped with a shut-off nozzle may be used
for a quick rinse.

(4) Request restaurants to serve water only upon request.

(c) The following additional uses are declared to be non-essential from and after July 1,
æ14M:

(1) any use of water from a fire hydrant except for fighting fires, human consumption,
essential construction needs or use in connection with animals;

(2) watering of any lawn, garden, landscaped area, tree, shrub or other plant except from
a handheld hose equipped with an automatic shut-off nozzle, container or drip
irrigation system except overhead sprinkler irrigation can be used if customer
maintains an overall 25o/o reduction in water use compared to the corresponding
billing period in 2013, (customers using less than 200 gallons per day are permitted
to water their landscape without a25o/o reduction) and properly operates the irrigation
system in a non-wasteful manner between the hours of 7:00 p.m. and g:00 a.m. the
next day. lf sprinkler water is used in a wasteful manner, the General Manager may
prohibit sprinkling by that customer.

€fg) lrriqatins lan
rainfall.
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(4) lrriqat!¡^q lawn area on public street medians.

þ) use of water for dust control at construction sites;

(4O initial filling of ahy swimming pool for which application for a building permit was
m ade after-4pril4Mall!, 2€14420;

(5D use by a vehicle washing facility in excess of 25% less than the amount used by it
during the corresponding billing period in 2013. lf the facility was not operating in
2013, an assumed amount shall be computed by the District from its records.

(69) any non-residential use in excess of 25o/o less than the amount used by the
customer during the corresponding billing period in -2Q13. lf connection to the District
system was not in existence or use in 2013, an assumed amount will be computed
from the District's records.

(7p) lntertie deliveries to lnverness Public Utilities District (IPUD), except for critical needs
as determined by the General Manager

(8f1Q) Deliveries to customers outside the service area except as needed for human
consumption, sanitation and public safety or as stipulated in outside service
agreements.

Stage 3 - Severe Mandatory Rationing (50% reduction)

(d) From and after the date that the Board of Directors, by resolution, determines that the
water shortage emergency requires severe rationing, the following additional uses are declared
to be non-essential:

(1) Watering any residential lawn, or any commercial or industrial area lawn maintained
for aesthetic purposes, at any time of the day or night during the period of August 1,

through October 31, when a Stage 3 is in progress.

(2) Planting any new landscaping, except for designated drought resistant landscaping
prescribed by the District.

(3) AII day and nighttime sprinkling will be discontinued. Any and all outside watering will
be done only with a handlheld nozzle. An exception will be made for carefully timed
drip irrigation for established perennial plants and trees. Only sufficient water for
assured plant survival may be applied.

(4) No new annual plants, vegetables, flowers or vines may be planted during the Stage
3 emergency period. An exception will be made for customers who are eliminating
existing thirsty landscaping and replacing same with drought resisting landscaping
prescribed by the District, as in (2) above.

The combined rationing including Stage 1 ,2, and 3 is designed to achieve a minimum
reduction of 50o/o or more in West Marin service territory water consumption as compared
with normal year annual usage.

(e) The percentages stipulated in Stage 2 and Stage 3 may be increased by the General
Manager for any class of customer if the General Manager determines that such increase is
necessary to protect the publlc health, safety and welfare or to spread equitably among the water
users of the District the burdens imposed by the drought and the shortage in the District's water
supply.
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Section 7. Variances
Applications for a variance from the provisions of Section 6 of this ordinance may be made to

the General Manager. The General Manager may grant a variance to permit a use of water
otherwise prohibited by Section 6 if the General Manager determines that the variance is
reasonably necessary to protect the public health and safety and/or economic viability of a
commercial operation. Any decision of the General Manager under this section may be appealed
to the Board of Directors.

Secfíon 8. Violations
(a) lf and when the District becomes aware of any violation of any provision of Section 5 or 6

of this ordinance, a verbal warning will be given, then if the violation continues or is repeated, a
written notice shall be placed on the property where the violation occurred and mailed to the
person who is regularly billed for the service where the violation occurs and to any other person
known to the District who is responsible for the violation or its correction. Said notice shall
describe the violation and order that it be corrected, cured and abated immediately or within such
specified time as the General Manager determines is reasonable under the circumstances. lf
said order is not complied with, the District may forthwith disconnect the service where the
violation occurs.

(b) For the first offense, a fee of $50 shall be paid for the reconnection of any service
disconnected pursuant to subsection (a) during the suspension period. For each subsequent
violation of Section 8 (a), the fee for reconnection shall be $75.

(c) No service which is disconnected twice because of a violation of Section 5 or 6 of this
ordinance during the suspension period, shall be reconnected unless a device supplied by the
District which will restrict the flow of water to said service is installed. Furthermore, the fee for
reconnection of such a service during the suspension period shall be $100 in lieu of the fee
required by subsection (b) hereof.

Section 9, Sþns on Lands Supplied from Private Wells
The owner or occupant of any land within the West Marin water service area that is supplied

with water from a private well shall post and maintain in a conspicuous place thereon a sign
furnished by the District giving public notice of such supply.

Secfion 10. Drought Surcharge
+nNotw¡thstandinq a the event a

mandatory reduction in water use is triggered under the District's Water Shortage Contingency
Plan for the West Marin Service Area, a Drought Surcharge witt¡ney be implemented by resolution
of the Board of Directors simultaneous with, or subsequent to, enactment of the mandatory stagq
in the sole discretion of the Board of Directors. The Drought Surcharge will serve to mitigate the
revenue loss resulting from a reduction in water use, as well as to otfset the cost for water
purchased from Marin Municipal Water District (MMWD) under the lnterconnection Agreement
between North Marin Water District and MMWD triggered by dry year conditions. The Drought
Surcharge shall be a quantity charge for each 1,000 gallons as specified in District Regulation 5{
Anv Drouqht Surcharge shall be adopted and implemented in compliance with applicable law,
includino Article XlllC of California Constitution.
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* * * * *

I hereby certify that the foregoing is a true and complete copy of an ordinance duly and
regularly adopted by the Board of Directors of North Marin Water District at a regular meeting
thereof held on W by the following vote:

AYES: Ðireeters Baker; Fraites; Petterle; Redeni; Seheenever
NOES: N€n€
ABSENT: N€ne
ABSTAINED: Nene

(sEAL)
@

District Secretary
North Marin Water District

NMWD West Marin Model Emergency Water Conservation Ordinance
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PROOF OF PUBLICATIOIV
(eortr.s ccP)

STÁ\:TE, OF CALIF0II]\IA
County ofMarin

I am a citizen of the Unitecl Statcs ancl a rcsi-
dent of the counþr ¿rfbresaid. I nm over t¡e age
ofeightecn ye¿rs, ancl not a ¡rar$ to or interest
in the above-entitlcd matter. I anr the ¡:ublishcr
of the Point lìeycs l-ight, ¿ rìewspaper of general
circulation, printecl and ¡rublishcd in thc tc¡r,vn of
Point Reye s Station, County of Marin and rvhich
ncwspâper has ì:een acljudged a news¡raper f'or
gcneral circul¿rtion by the Su¡rcrior Court of thc
County of Marin, State of Calif'ornia, uncìer thc
date April 26,1949, Ca^se Number lB.3O0Z; that
the notice of which ¿lnnexcd is a printccl copy
(set in þpe not srnaller than nonpareil), hiu
been published in each regular ant'l cntire issnc
of saicì ncwspâper ancl nclt in any su¡rplement
therof on the following clates to wit:

4130120

I certify (or decl¿rre) undcr pcnalty of ¡rcrjury
that the foregoing is h-uc ancl correct,

Date at Invcrness, California, this

4t30t20

"fhis space is for tlte Counf Clelk"s Filing Starnp

Proof of Public¿rtion

NOTICE OF A PUBLIC HEARING
NORIH MATìIN WATEIì DISTRICT

Doclðration ol a Wat€r Shortâge Emergency
WÊst Marin SoNiæ Arsa

Tuesdåy. Mãy str'- 6:00 p.m.
Locål¡on: Virtuål Meetíng Viâ'f el6ëonf orenc6

Novalo, Câlilorniâ
(41s) 097-4133

ATÍENTION: Th¡s vrlll b€ â virtu8l mætlng ol the Board of Þlrscton
pursuant lo Exåcutlvô Ordår -"åT,ii-r""ir": by tho Govornor üf ths gtats ol

Ther6 will nol bs a public locston for pârtic¡patlng ¡n this m€eting. bur any
lnlsreslod msmber ol thê puÞl¡c can psrllclpâto tolophÕnicâtly by ut¡l¡zing tho dial-ìn

lnformåliôn orinlod on thè

Ihê Nonh Marin Wôlor Olstr¡ct Bóard ol Dlrectors w¡ll sæepl public comm8nts and æns¡dor
âdoplion of an ônìsrgéncy wttor conssrualion ord¡nâoco lor tho Wesl [¡Brìfl Seryìæ fues ¡n

rssponsB to dry yoar cond¡tions on Lâgunìlas Cr€ok pursuant to tho fit¿ls Waler Resources
Control Boãrd Oldér g5- 17 for water right pBrmits lssuod to North Mâriô Wster Oislricl.

Copios of (h6 Dralt Em€rgency Water Consoilâtion Ordinanc€ are available on the NMWD
webslls 8l y{t4{.,1-D]WClçøU. ln ordor to comply with Mar¡n County Hoalth Sh€lter in Placê
OrdBr, inspscl¡on ol ihe draft ord¡nancê will nol Þo ava¡lable at the Dislrict olfìce.

Sigr-ratu
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MEMORANDTJM

To: Drew Mclntyre, General Manager May 1,2020

From: Reviewed by: Julie Blue, Auditor-Controller

Prepared by: Nancy Holton, Accounting Supervisor and Nancy Williamson, Senior Accountant

Subj: lnformation - FY19i20 March Financial Statement
t:\accountants\f inancials\slmtfy20\md&a0320 doc

FISCAL YEAR PËRFORMANCE GOMPARED TO THE ANNUAL BUDGËT

CONSOLIDA D SUMMARY
Aetual vs. Budget
Operating Revenue
Operating Expense
Non-Operating Revenue / (Expense)

Net lncome / (Loss)
Other Sources / (Uses)*

Cash lncrease / (Decrease)

See Page B.

NOVATA-W,AIËB
Year over Year Comparison
Operating Revenue
Operating Expense
Other lncome / (Expense)

Net lncome / (Loss)

Active Accounts
Consumption (MG)
Average Commodity Rate / 1,000 gal (net)

lncome / (Loss ) / Active Account
lncome / (Loss) / '1,000 Gal
Connection Fee Revenue
FRC Transfer (to)/from Recycled Water
Caltrans Capital Contribution
MMWD AËEP Capital Contribution
Developer'l n-Kind' Contributions

$51 ,1 93 $976,362 $1,830,000
L 912 673 (4,151 ,000)

($æ21,ooo)

Mar-20
Actual
$1,601,647

1,560,804
10,350

FY19/20
ActqalYTS

$16,288,324
15,024,550

(287,412)

FY19/20
Bulgel

$22,998,000
20,868,000

300,000)

FYTD /
Budqet Yq

71o/o

72o/o

96%
53o/o

For the first nine months of the fiscal year, the District generated a net income of $976,362 and saw a

net cash increase of $3,889,035. On a seasonally adjusted basis, Operating Revenue came in 4%

under budget and Operating Expense came in 3% under budget. $1,886,054 (33%) of the Capital

lmprovement Projects Budget was expended this fiscal year-to-date. At month end the ratio of total

cash to budgeted annual operating expense (sans depreciation) stood at131o/o.

SUMMARY INCOME STATFMENTS BY SERVICE AREA
PRËSËNTËD IN ACCÕRDANEE WITH GËNËRALLY AGÇEPTËÞ ACEOUNTING PRINCIPALS

92,

Mar-20
Aqtlal
$1,378,793

1,400,504
20,271

$3 889 035

($1,440)

FY19/20
AqtualYTÞ

s14,431,314
13,578,776

(14,823J
$837,715

20,546
1 ,818
$5.84

s40.77
$0.46

$1,445,735
$785,838

fi12,621
$205,320
$708,061

FY18/19
AclqalYTD

$14,190,554
13,220,689

(68,673)

FY20 vs 19
Up/(Dqla¡l

2%
3%

(78o/o)

(7%)

(0%)
1%
0o/o

(7o/o)

(B%)
75%

(42o/o)

(33%)
(16%)
148o/o

$901 , I 92

20,546
160

$5.97
($o oz¡
($o o1)

$28,600
$o

$878
$o

$51,450

20,543
1,809
$5.82

$43.87
$0.50

$824,580
$1,364,598

$18,716
$245,000
$285,438

Consumption for the fiscal year{o-date wâs 1olo more than the pr¡or year same period. Total operating

revenue, which includes wheeling and other miscellaneous service charges, was 2o/o more than prior

year same per¡od. Total operating expense was $358,087 more than last year same period.
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Memo - March Financial Statemeni
May 1,2020
Page 2 of 3

The Stafford Treatment Plant produced 481 MG this fiscal year-to-date at a cost of $3,311/MG1 versus
$2,877llÚl} from SCWA. The budget for Stafford is 650 MG at a cost of $3,522lMG.

Staff time (hours) charged to Novato operations was 4o/o less than last year. Salary and benefit cost
was $4,347,061, which was 67% of the $6,514,000 budget for Novato operations.

The fiscal year net income (which includes non-operating items such as interest revenue and expense)
of $837,715 compares to a budgeted net income for the year of $902,000 and to a net income of
$901 , 192 for the prior year. $1 ,360,727 (32o/o) of the Novato Water Capital lmprovement Project Budget
was spent versus ç2,765,222 (48Y") for the prior year. $1,445,735 in connection fees have been
collected ($340,000 is budgeted). Connection Fee reserves totaling $785,838 were transferred this
fiscal year from the Recycled Water Fund to the Novato Water Fund. The Novato Connection Fee
Reserve has a net deficit of $6,275,222 arising from transfers to the RW Fund in advance of
Connection Fee receipts. This is down from a net deficit of $7,797,604 last year. That deficit will be
reimbursed by future Connection Fee revenue. The Novato cash balance decreased $105,275 in
March, and stood at $16,184,892 at month end, compared to a budgeted projection of $5,892,000 at
frscal year-end.

NOVATO RECYCLED
Year over Year Comparison
Operating Revenue
Operating Expense
Other lncome / (Expense)

Net lncome / (Loss)

Active Accounts
Consumption (MG)
Average Commodity Rate / 1,000 gal (net)

Deer lsland Production (MG)

Novato Sanitary Production (MG)

Las Gallinas Production (MG)

Potable Water lnput (MG)

Mar-20
Aqtlaf

$96,991
71,228

(14,4e0)

FY19/20
ActualYTt)

$883,005
705,992
394,50'1

1 39.1

$5.97
6.4

106.3
JO. ..)

8.0

FY18/19
ActualYTD

FY20 vs 19
Up/(Down)

$11 274

I
15.0

$5.97
0.0
9.9
2.5
b.J

(9242,108)

$816,748
887,308
171,549\

Bo/o

(20o/o)

130%
(10%)

1o/o

5%
3%
61%
(4'/")
145o/o

(60%)

91

132.8

$5.77
4.0

1 10.5
15.6
20.0

139.1 MG was delivered to RW customers this fiscal year-to-date, 5% more than the prior year same
period. Operating revenue was B% more than last year. Total operating expense was $181,315 (2)o/o)

less than the prior year same period. The recycled water was produced at a cost of $2,2441MG'
(including potable water consumed) versus $2,877lMG3 from SCWA. The budgeted production cost of
recycled water is $2,41O/MG.

The fiscal year net loss of $217,488 compares to a budgeted net income for the year of $54,000 and a

net loss of $242,108 for the prior year same period. $8,245 (7%) of the Capital lmprovement Project
Budget has been expended this fiscal year-to-date.

The Novato Recycled cash balance stood at $4,694,000 at month end, $4.1M of which amount resides
in restricted reserves for debt service, the Deer lsland Facility Replacement Fund and the Recycled
Water Capital Replacement and Ëxpansion Fund.

1 Stafford production cost = Tp op expense ($1 ,003,944) + SRF loan interest ($163,958) + plarrt depreciation (9424,616y 481 MG produced

2 Recycled Water production cost = purchased water cost ($213,010) + treatment expense ($3,268) + Deer lsland RW Facility SRF loan

interest ($35,648) + Deer lsland plant depreciat¡on ($86,939) /151 MG produced
3 SCWA production cost per MG = O&M charge ($2,361) + debt service charge ($177) + Russian River conservation charge ($3te¡ + Russian

Rìver projects charge ($26)
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Memo - March Financial Statement
May 1, 2020
Page 3 of 3

WEST MARIN WATER
Year over Year Gomparison
Operating Revenue
Operating Expense
Other lncome / (Expense)

Net lncome / (Loss)

Active Accounts
Consumption (MG)
Average Commodity Rate / 1,000 gal (net)

lncome/ (Loss) i Active Account
lncome / (Loss) / 1,000 Gal
Connection Fee Revenue

lMar-20
Açtqal

$104,101
74,626

3,434
$32,909

783
7.7

911.47
$42.03

$4.29
$0

FY19/20
Actual YTD

fi778,147
558,141
78 985
98,991 $199,300

783 783

FY18/19
ActualYïQ

$682,093
528,251

45,458

FY20 vs {9
Up/(Down)

14%
60/o

74o/o

50%
0%
Bo/o

Bo/o

50o/o

39%
(100%)

55.0

$11.44
$381.85

$5.44
$o

50.8

$10.59
$254.53

$3 92

$8,000

Consumption for the fiscal year-to-date was B% more than the prior year same per¡od. Operating
revenue of $778,147 was 14o/o ffiore than prior year same period.

Operating expenditures were $29,890, or 6% more than the previous year same period. The fiscal
year net income of $298,991 compares to a budgeted annual net income of $209,000 and to a net
income of $199,300 for the prior year same period. $416,81 1 (34o/o) of the Capital lmprovement Project
Budget was expended this fiscal year-to-date, and no connection fees were collected ($0 ¡s budgeted).
The West Marin Water cash balance decreased $52,171 in March and stood at $1,699,264 at month
end, compared to a budgeted projection of $754,000 at June 30,2020.

OCEANA MARIN SEWER
Year over Year Gomparison
Operating Revenue
Operating Expense
Other lncome / (Expense)

Net lncome / (L.oss)

Active Accounts
Monthly Sewer Service Charge
lncome / (Loss) i Active Account
Connection Fee Revenue

Mar-20
Actual

FY't9/20
AqtqallfiD

$195,858
181,640

FYlS/19
AqtuaLYrD

$189,540
1 46,1 93

38,1 88

__::3flF3r
234
$eo

$348.44
$o

FY20 vs 19
Up/(Down)

3o/o

24o/o

12o/o

(30%)

0o/o
ao/

921,762
14,446
1,134 42 926

$8,450 $57,1 4s
234
$e3

$244.21
$o

234
$e3

$36.11
$0

Operating revenue of $195,858 was 3% more than the previous year same period due to the 3.5% rate
increase effective July 1 ,2019. Operating expenditures were 24o/o ($35,446) more than the previous
year same period. The fiscal year{o-date net income of $57,145 compares to a budgeted annual net
income of $92,000 and to a net income of $81,535 for the prior year same period. 182o/o of the Capital
lmprovement Project Budget has been expended this fiscal year-to-date.

No connection fees have been collected ($0 is buclgeted). The Oceana Marin cash balance decreased

$46,065 in March ancl stood at $249,552 at month end, compared to a budgeted projection of $384,000
at June 30,2020.
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NORTFj IVÏARIN WATER ÐISTRICT
STATEIWENT' OF NET POSITION

FOR T'l-{E PER¡OÐ E$\¡DING MARC!-{ 3'!, 2020

ASSETS
Cash & l¡rvest¡ments
Unrestricted/Undesignated Cash
Restricted Cash (ructe t)
Connection Fee Fund
Bank of lVlarin Project Fund
AMI Project Loan Fund
Deer lsland RWF Replacement Fund
Capitaf Replacement & Expansion Fund
Tax Receipts Held in Marin Co Treasury
STP SRF Reserve-Marin Co Treasury
RWS North/South SRF Reserve Fund
RW CentralArea SRF Reserve Fund
Ðesignated Cash 1t'tote z¡

Net Receivables - Consu¡'ners
Accrued Water Sales
Accounts Receivable-Other
Prepaid Expense
Reimbursable Small Jobs
lnterest Receivable
lnventories
Deposits Receivable

Total Current Assets

NOVATO
WATER

NOVATO
RECYCLED

WFST MARIN
WATËR

OCEANA
MARIN
SEWERTOTAL

$2,365,455

$9,918
434,995

0
1,677,969
1,561,481

624
1 ,0s1 ,815

614,299
275,773

$1,125,878
836.845
239,394
274.422

81,975
121,747
612,872

,3

s821,764

1,051,815
0
0

$1,028,241
632,569

99,377
272,847

80,543
119,767
612,872

$0
U

tt

1,677,969
1,5õ1,481

0
0

614,299
275,773

$44,600
62,373
6,176

0
0

1,940
0
0

115,089

$9,918
409,711

U

0
0

569
U

0
0

$387,657 fi979,767 $176,268

$0
0
0
0
0

ÃÃ

0

0
0

$0
25,284

0
0
U

0

s

Liability Contingency Fund $1,430,370 $1,331,485 $0 $98,885 $0
Self-lnsured Workers' Compensation Funcj 553,353 520,886 8,823 17,415 6,225
Retiree Medical Benefits Fund 4,520,164 4,520,164 0 0 0
Maintenance Accrual Fund 2,500,000 2,500,000 0 0 0
Cperating Reserve Fund 5,795,000 5,377,000 168,000 183,000 67,000

Total Cash $22,791,215 $16,'148,398 $4,694,000 $1 ,699,264 $249,552
Gain/(Loss) on MV of lnvestments $36,493 $36,493 $0 $0 $0

Market Val¡.¡e of Cash & lnvestrnents

Current Assets
$1,026
141,903

0
n

1,432
0

0

0

852,012
0

133,841
1,575

U

0
0
024 296 24 296

7,389 2,870,512 42$l 87144,361 7
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h¡ORT¡.{ MAR¡N WAT'ER Ð¡STR¡CT
STATEIWENT OF NET POSITION

FOR T¡-{E PERTOD Eh¡ÐtNG tVtARCt"¡ 31,2û2t

Loans Receivable
Employee l-oans (Note 3)

Other Long Term Receivables qruote +;

Loans Receivarble

Fropertì/ and Flar¡t
Land & Land Rights
Dam, Lake. & Source Facilities
Treatment Faciliiies
Storage Facilities
Transmission Facilities (1 6"+¡
Distribution and Pumping Facilities
Sewer Mains, Pumps, & Laterals

Sub-Total
Less Accumulated Depreciation (Note s)

f{et Propenty and Plant

Euildi¡tgs and Equipment ltrtote o¡

Buildings
Office Equipment
Laboratory Equipmeni
Trucks & Autonrobiles
Construction Equipment
Tools, Shop Equipment
Sr.¡b-Total
Less Accurnulated Depreciation (ruote s¡

Net tsuildlngs and Equipnnent

TOTAL

$525,676
1,173,730

s1,700,490

$1,473,091
5,675,845

22,056.723
23,082,815
29,405,627
86,367,437

1,258,111

$169,3'19,654
t59.085.267)

$1,902,893
844,251
252,324

1,243,734
974,66A
224 890

5,434,747
(4,278,016)
$1,156,731

NOVATO
WATER

$525,676

NOVATCI
RECYCLEÐ

WEST IUARIT\¡

WATER

OCEANA
MARIN
SEWER

$0
0

$o

$808
U

s2,117,282
(1 ,080.251)

$0

$0
187,254

$187,254
1,224,285

0
0

$0 $0
0

$0

$1,294,174
25,152,744

$26,446,918
137,838,036

2,616,317
172,404

525,676

$1,368,872
5,183,433

18,192,211
24,458,283
29,283,344
63,247,338

0

9137,733,441
Ø9.827.277\

$1,902,893
844,251
¿c¿.3¿4

1,243,730
974,660
220 890

5,434,747
(4,278,416\
1,156,731

91,294,174
8,241,158

$9,535,332
98,s98,227
2,616,317

172,404

734
$1,173,730

$0
0

2,666,198
519,014

0
17,301,217

0

$2A,486,428
Ø.111.576\

üU

$0
15,751,511

$15,751,51 I
32]26,362

0
0

$103,41 1

492,4i2
339,952

2,10s,s23
122,324

5,818,882
0

$8,982,s04
(4.066.162)

$0
U

$0

$0
972,821

$972,821
5,889,162

0
0

0 t/J1

0

0
U

1

$0
0
0
0
0
0

$0
0
0
0
0
tl

$0
aì

CI

0

0
0

858,362

1158,2

$1 10,234,387 87,906,163 $16,374,852 $4,916,341 $1,037,031
Crì

$0
0

$0
0

Construction ln Frogress
Developer
District

Total Construction in Progress
Net Utility Plant

Deferred Outflow of Resources-GAsB68
Deferred Outflow of Resources-GAsB75

TOTAL ASSETS $168,471,261 $r20,968,027 $38,109,181 97,732,788 $1,661.265
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NORThI MARIN WATER ÐISTRICT'
STATEIVIENT OF NET POS¡T¡Oü{

FCIR T¡.{E PERIOD ENDING MARCI{ 3,î, 2CI20

NOVATO
WATER

NOVATO
RECYCLED

WEST MARIhJ

WATER

OCEAN¡A
MARIN
SEWER

L¡AE!ü.¡T!ES ANE NET ASSETS
Current Liabí!ities

Payable
Reimbursement Prog. Unclaimed Funds
Loan Debt Principal Payable-Current
Bank of Marin Principal Payable-Current
JP MorganlChase AMI Loan-Current
Accrued lnterest Payable-SRF Loan
JP Morgan/Chase AMI Loan lnterest Payable
Deposits/Performance Bonds
Unemployment lnsurance Reserve (Note 8)

Worke¡-s' Comp Future Claims Payable
Payroll Benefits (r,tore 9)

Deferred Revenue
Tota! Gurrer¡t Liabilities

Restricted l-iabiåities

JP Morgan/Chase At\ll Loan Payable
STP Rehab SRF Loan
RWF SRF Loan
RWS Nodh/South Expansion SRF Loan
RWS Central Expansion SRF Loan
Bank of Marin Loan
Net Pension Liability @6130119
Toial OPËB Liability (Nore 2)

Total Long Term Liabitities
Ðeferned Inflow of Resoul'ces-GASts 68
Ðeferred Inflow of Reso¡,¡rces-GASB 75

TOTAL LIAB!LIT¡ES

TOTAL

$801,025
73,575

1,312,125
346,228
270,000
179,983

9,263
349,828
26,038
44,288

893,593
65,286

$3,830,000
7 004 2ÃÃr 1¿9 t 

'¿a!
1,742,339
6,575,558
6,705,816
4,934,655

12,560,160
4,520 164

$48,860,046
540,356

0

ç772,212
62,475

838,423
301,91 1

270,A0A
53,521

Y,ZOJ
320,328
26,038
40,966

ö¿ l -lYY
U

$3,830,000
7,991,355

n

0
n

4,303,019
'12,560,160

4 520 164
33,204,698

540,356
v

$28,813
0

473,703

1,244
26,990

0

$657,207

$10 000
10,0c0

$o
0

1,742,339
6,575,558
6,705,816

0
0

0

$15,023,712
0
nU

$15,690,920

$0
1 1 ,100

0
44,317

U

0

U

26,500
0

1,506
32,773

$0
0

U

0
n

U

U

3,000
0

576
12,531
65,286

l.t

26,462
U

n

U

o)

94,371,231 3,516,435

Construction Advances 9552,276 fi542,276
Tota[ Restricted Liabilities @ ----W{Long Tenm [-!ablilities (Nore 7)

$116,196 $81,393

$o
s0

$6 31 ,636
0

$0
$0

$0

63 634

0
0

0
0
b
0
0

$0
0
0

0
0
n

0
0

0

$o
0
n

$54,323,909 37,8A3J64 $747,832 $81,393
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NORTI{ MARIT{ WATER ÐIST'RICT
STAT'EMENT OF NET POSIT¡ON

FCIR T'F.IE PERICID ENÐING MARCI.I 3tr,2T2Ð

Net Assets
Inùested in Capital Assets
Contributions in Aid of Construction
Grants in Aid of Construction
Connection Fees

Tota! Investment
Restnicted Reserves
Connection Fee Fund
Bank of fl/larin Project Fund
Deer lsland RWF Replacement Fund
Capital Replacement & Expansion Fund
RWS North/South SRF Reserve Fund
RW CentralArea SRF Reserve Fund
Ðesignated Reserves
Liability Contingency Fund
Maintenance Accrual Fund
Self-lnsured Workers' Compensation Fund
Retiree Medical Benefits Fund
Operating Reserve Fund
Earned Surplus - Prior Yrs
Net lncorne/(Loss)
Transfer (To)/From Reserves (see below)

Total Restricted & Designaied
TOTAL NET POSiTION

Transfer {To)/Fronn Reserves
Connection Fee
AMI Project Fund
Liability Reserve
Capital Replacement & Expansion Fund
Maintenance Reserve
RWF Replacement Fund
Retiree Medical lnsurance Fund
(Gaìn)/Loss Self-lnsured WC Fund
Bank of Marin Project Fund
Operating Reserve Fund

Total Transfer

TOTAL LIABILITIES
AND FUND BALANCE

$'138,434,564 105,054,747 $25,598,992 86,425,439

TOTA¡-

s85,521,287
13,215,539
39,697,737

($6,447,239)
435,170

1,677 ,969
1,561,481

614,299
275,773

1,430374
2,500,000

509,064
2,759,513
5,795,000

(35,754,365)
976,362

(620,607)
($24,287,211)
$114,147,352

($12,e80)
0

(189,200)
(363,001)

0
(151,702)

0
(25,132)
29.408
92,000

($620,60?)

NOVATO
WATER

$76,903,056
426,448

27,725,243

($6,275,222)
25,460

U

n

0
0

1,331,485
2,500,000

479,919
2,759,513
5,377,000

(28,818,735)
837,715

(107,624)
(21,890,485)
83,164,262

($107,620)

IVOVATO
RECYCLEÐ

WEST MARIN
WATER

OCEANA
MARIN

SEWER

$679,755
0

675 oJt
$1,355,385

($181,e35)

0
0

5,653
0

67,000
289,896
57,145

(13,272)
s224,487

$1,579,872

$5,800,128
9,961,904
9,836,960

$0
0

1,677,969
1,56'1,481

614,299
275,773

0
nV

7,583
0

168,000
(6,746,206)

(217,488)
(522,139)

($3,180,730)
822,418,262

$0

$2,138,348
2,827,187
1,459,904

$9,918
409,711

0
0
{t
rì

0
n

0
0
0

-\Í

98,885
0

15,909
0

183,000
(47e324)
298,99r

22,424
$559,517

$6,984,956

0
0
0
n

(2s,610)
1,190

104,000

($1,ee6)
0
0
0
0
0
0

(7e8)
28,218
(3.000)

($10,984)
0
0
0
0
0
0

(288)
0

(2.000)

$o
0

200)
0

(189
(363,001)

0
(151,702)

O

(4Jþ)
0

(7.000)
($522,1 39) $22 ($13,272)

ç168,471,261 $120,968,027 $38,109,181 $7 ,732,788 $1 ,66'f ,265

424
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¡{ORTFI MARIN WATER DISTRICT
SOUREES AND USES OF FUNDS STATEMENT - AtL SERVICE AREAS COMBINED

FOR THE PERIOD ËND¡NG MARCH 31,2020

OPERATING RËVENUË
Water Sales
Bimonthly Service Charge
Sewer Service Charge
Wheeling & Misc Service Charges

TOTAI- OPERATING RËVENUE

OPERATING ËXPËNDIÏURES
Source of Supply
Pumping
Operations
Water Treatment
Sewer Service
Transmission & Distribution
Consumer Accounting
Water Conservation
Gerreral & Administrative
Depreciation

TOTAL OPERATING ËXPENDITURES

NET OPËRATTNG TNCOME (LOSS)

NON-OPERATING REVËNUË(EXPENSE)
Tax Proceeds
lnterest Revenue
Miscellaneous Revenue
Bond & Loan lnterest Expense
Miscellaneous Expense
Capital Constribution Expense-NSD & LGVSD

TOTAL NON-OP REVËNUË/(EXPENSE)

NET TNCOME(LOSS)

OTHER SOURCES/(USES) ot- FUNDS
Add Depreciation Expense
Connection Fees
Loan Proceeds
Grant Proceecls
Marin County Club Loan Principal Pmts
Caltrans AEEP Capital Contribution
StoneTree RWF Loan Principal
MMWD AEEP Capital Contribution
Capital Equipment Expenditures
Capital lmprovement Projects
Bond & Loan Principal Payments
Charrge in Working Capital

TOTAL OTHER SOURCES/(USÉS)

$16,288,324 $22,998,000

YTD
Actual

Anlrual
Budget

YTD/
Budget %

Prior YTD
Actual

$11,835,799
3,s98,323

189,540
255,274

$12,081 ,884
3,728,226

'195,858

282,356

$17,387,000
4,958,000

261,000
392,000

69%
7 5o/o

75%
72%
71% $15,878,936

$4,413,898
503,002
675,252

1 ,651 ,1 10
117,834

2,263,238
349,303
246,841

2,264,235
2,539,835

$6,186,000
438,000
808,000

2,697,000
'171,000

3,656,000
644,000
399,000

2,383,000
3,486,000

$4,532,632
334,672
767j40

1,359,391
97,297

2,279,337
358,409
234,864

2,238,394
2,580,303

71%
115%
84%
61%
690/o

62%
54%
620/o

95%
73o/o

72o/o$15,024,550

$1,263,774

$65,920
441,478
115,677

(602,4e6)
(2,281)

(305,71 1)

$20,868,000

$2,130,000

($3oo,o0o)

__s'r83-0;00o-

59%

fi14,782,441

$1,096,495

163,502
(666,537)

(5,825)
0

96% ($156,576)

53% $939,918

$116,000
277,OOO
133,000

(806,000)
(20,000)

0

57%
159o/o

87%
75%
11%

73%
4250k
0%

$65,679
286,604

($287,412)

$976,362

$2,539,835
1,445,735

0
0

30,725
12,621

1 ,081 ,103
?.05,320

(285,1 05)
(1,886,054)
(1,528,122)
1,296,614

$3,486,000
340,000

69,000
0
0

1,000
227,000
205,000

(433,000)
(5,713,000)
(2,333,000)

0

1262%
476%
100%
660/0

33o/o

66%

$2,580,303
832,580

2,033,836
18,539

442,095
18,716

147,086
245,000

(112,457)
(3,220,045)
(1 ,298,813)

$3,889,034 ($2,321,000)

62,912,673 ($4,151,000)
234 536

$1,921,375

$2,861,293

I

cAsH TNcREASEI(DECREASE)
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NORTH MARIN WATER DISTRICT
INCOME STATEMENT AND CASH FLOW BY SERVICE AREA

FOR TI.{E PËRIOD ËNDING MAREH 31, 2O2O

SUMMARY INCOME STATEMENT

Operating Revenue

Operating Expense
oPERATTNG TNCOME/(LOSS)
Non-Operating Revenue/(Expense)

NET TNCOME(LO$S)

TOTAL
NOVATO NOVATO WEST MARIN
WATER RECYCLED WATER

-$1433iJ'i4 
--Sgæpos 

---ñ?sJ4,
13,578,776 705,992 558j41

OCEANA
MARIN
SEWER

$16,288,324
15,024,550

$195,858

181 ,640
$1 ,263,774 $852,537 $177,013 $220,006 $14,218

(287,412) (14,823) (3e4,s01) ,_13p85 42,e26

$976,362 $837,715 ($217,488) $298,991 $57,145

CAPITAL CONTRIBUTIONS
Developer ln-Kind Coniributions
Caltrans AEEP Capital Contributions
MMWD Capital Contribution
Connection Fees
FRC Transfer

CAPITAL CONTRIBUTIONS
CHANGE IN NET POSITION

Net Position June 30, 2019
Net Position March 31, 2020

$708,061
12,621

205,320
1,445,735

0

$70e,061
12,621

205,320
1,445,735

7B5,B3B (785

$0
0
0
0
0

$o
0
0
0
0

$o
0
0
0

838)

92,371,738
$3,348,100

110,864,836

$3,1 57,575

$3,995,290
79,230,648

($785,838)
($1,003,326)

23,421,988

$o

$298,991
6,688,798

$o

$57,145
1,523,402

$114,212,936 $83,225,938 $22,4'18,663 $6,987,789 $1,580,547

CASH FLOW STATEMENT
Net lncome/(Loss)
Add back Depreciation
Cash Generated From Operations

Other Sources (Uses) of Funds
Connection Fee Revenue
Capital Assets Acquisition
Caltrans AEEP Capital Contribution
MMWD AEEP Capital Contribution
Mar¡n Country Club & Stone Tree Loan Principal Pmls

Principal Paid on Debt
Consumer Receivables Decr (lncr)
Construction Advances (Decr) lncr
Other Assets Decr (lncr)
Other Liabilities (Decr) lncr
Trade Accounts Payable (Decr) lncr
Connection Fee Transfer
Total Other Sources (Uses)

Net Cash Provided (Used)

MV Cash & llrvestments June 30,2019
MV Gash & lnvestments March 31 , 2020

$3,516,197 $2,848,005

$976,362
2,539,835

$837,715
2,010,291

($217,488)
355 J/ I

137.883

$2e8,991

* 139,440

$438,430

$57, 1 45
34,733

$91,878

$1,445,735
(2,171 ,159)

12,621
205,320

1,111,828
(1,528,122)

326,730
(227,531)

2,021,024
(515,581)
(308,029)

0
$372,838

$1,445,735
(1,645,831)

12,621
205,320

0
(911,795)
142,772

(227,531)
2,143,365
(575,845)
(297,182)
785,838

61,Q77 ,466

$0
(8,246)

0

0
1,111,828
(581,oee)
149,659

0
1,009

(3,527)
(10,846)

(785,838)
($127,05e)

(35,225)
85,048

0
(57,545)

(2,265)
0
0

($426,803)

$o
(100,270)

0
n
n

0
(50,748)

0
(65,805)
66,056

0
0

($150,767)

$o
(416,812)

0
0
0

$3 889,035 $3,925,471 $10,824 $1 1,628 ($58,888)

$18,938,674 912,259,420 $4,683,176 $1,687,637 $308,441
$22 827 7ñO $16,184,892 $4,694,000 $1,699,264 $249,552

I
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NÖVATO WATER
DËTAIL INEOMË STATËMENT

FoR Tr{E PERIoD ENDTNc MARcH y,iazo
MARCFI YEAR TO DATË YTD/
2O2O ACTUAL BUDGÊT%

PRIOR YTD
ACTUAL

OPERAT¡NG RËVENUE
Water Sales
BillAdjustments
Bimonthly Service Charges
Account Turn-on Charges
New Account Charges
Returned Check Charges
Hydrant Meter Up/Down Charges
Backflow Service Charges
Lab Service-Outside Clients
Wheeling Charges - MMWD

TOTAL OPHRATING REVENUE

TOTAL EXPËNDITURES
SOURCË OF SUPPLY
tìupervision & Engineering
Operating Expense - Source
Maint/Monitoring of Dam
Maint of Lake & lntakes
Maint of Structures
Maint of Watershed
Water Quality Surveillance
Erosion Control
Purchased Water

PUMPING
Maint of Structures & Grounds
Maint of Pumping Equipment
Electric Power

$1,s78,793 514,431,314

$961,539
(2,978)

392,435
2,256

535
,18

300
12,739
3,094

$10,669,484
(47,554)

3,531,917
54,154
4,900

JJJ
3,600

111,8ô5
29,154
73,462

68%
59%
7 5o/o

69%
70o/o

33o/a

72o/o

79o/o

BB%

98%
70%

$10,591,234
(62,276)

3,411,795
57,395
4,830

225
3,500

107,137
23,232
53,483I 855

$8,660
7,681

30,489
12,454

0
18,508

1,642
62

442 458 4,107,839
souRcE oF SUPPLY $455,934 $4,.187,335

$3,274
436
474

8,905
0
0

387
0

$2, I 59
191

20,209

$23,590
156,344
247,B5B

$14,190,554

$5,211
6,734

25,035
16,208

205
4,072

974
0

199 524

$4,257,962

$45,915
29,019

215,894

79o/o

55o/o

460/0

62%
0%

41o/o

12%

lO9Yo

129o/o

52%
55%o

I ô-/o

102o/o

72Yo

710Ä

74%
295o/o

86%

115o/o
OPERATIONS
Supervision & Engineering
Operating Expense - Operations
Maintenance Ëxpense
Telemetry Ëquipment/Controls Maint
Leased Lines

PUMPTNG $22,558 $427,792

$172,815
306,740

29,717
47,597
12 493

oPËRATTQNS $100,750 $569,761

$290,828

$156,798
243,093

28,184
78,735

$21,896
70,242

3,090
4,1 35
1,388 12 521

$51e,331
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NOVATO WATER
DHTAIL INCOME STATE¡VIENT

FOR TI-{F PHRIOD ËT{ÞING MAREH 31, 202CI

MARCH YEARTO DATE YTD/
2O2O ACTUAL BUDGËT%

WATER TREATMËNT
Supervision & Engineering
Operating Expense - Water Treatment
Purification Chemicals
Sludge Disposal
Maint of Structures & Grounds
Maint of Purification Equipment
Electric Power
Water Quality Programs
Laboratory Direct Labor
Lab Service-Outside Clients
Water Quality Supervision
Laboratory Supplies & Expense
Customer Water Quality
Lab Cost Distributed

WATËR TREATMENT
TRANSMISSlON & DISTRIBUTION
Supervision & Engineering
Maps & Records
Operation of T&D System
Facilities Location
Safety: Construction & Engineering
Customer Service Expense
Flushing
Storage Facilities Expense
Cathodic Protection
Maint of Valves/Regulators
Maini of Mains
Leak Detection - Mains
Backflow Prevention Program
Maint of Copper Services
Maint of PB Service Lines
Single Service I nstallations
Maint of Meters
Detector Check Assembly Maint
Maint of Hydrants

TRANSMISSION & DISTRIBUTION
CONSUMËR ACCOUNTING
Meter Reading
Collection Expense - Labor
Collection Expense - Agency
Billing & Consumer Accounting
Contract Billing
Stationery, Supplies & Postage
Online Payment Processing Fees
Lock Box Service
Uncollectable Accounts
Office Equipment Expense
Distributed to West Marin (4 1%)

CONSUMER ACCOUNTING

$140,436 $1,533,862

$8,969
6,973
8,423
2,738

1A,020
14,448
28,700

8,540
33,365

3,848
9,262
5,324
2,881

(3,054)

$139,545
20s,230
19'1,438
81,102
86,5s6

174,448
121,625

84,779
292,904

33,238
58,405
49,308
30,288

(1e,004)

PRIOR YTD
ACTUAL

$124,474
135,593
141,419
60,460
43,282

144,471
95,632
84,825

266,842
28,201
5l,031
44,069
30,651

(1 e,1 1 5)
$1,231,836

$390,821
1 03,1 73
'102,806

129,537
42,693

188,736
48,550
72,457
6,342

54,385
116,316

8,417
135,543
84,654

459,1 30
55,386
78,693
70,837
r¿,oJ!)

$2,161 ,309

$63,696
19,985

'1,649

150,116
1 1,900
38,763
41,509

8,208
10,589
6,022

(10,82e)
$341,608

$s3,918
8,230

40,025
12,754
2,383

29,799
4,973

12,901
0

6,1 38
1,787

800
15,612
3,838

17,332
(7,564)
3,993
9,084
4,038

$434,128
96,1 68

1s4,871
124,712
32,755

222,713
45,960
72,012
10,731

1 28,301
122,652

5,857
130,724
68,1 85

324,107
22,612
83,980
55,1 59
41.230

9B%
65o/o

4jYo
65%
71%
91o/o

7Bo/o

84o/o

80Vo

72Yo

78%o

620/0

460/0

760/0

68o/o

60o/o

66%
EA OlJU /O

72%

73o/o

60%
22Bo/o

84Yo

55Yo

B1%
B5%
58o/o

60%
67o/o

72o/o

49o/o

59Yo

48o/o

67%o

$220,043 $2,176,857

$1,126
0

45
1A 11-7

1,200
3,358
8,577

912
333
905

(1,605)

$16,052
18,395

555
'185,046

11,236
37,019
5'1,780

8,262
7,053
7,005

(12,645)

15o/o

57Yo

19o/o

BTYo

62Yo

67o/o

86%
7 5o/o

141%
20%
79Yo

63o/o$38,079 $329,757
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NOVATO WATHR
DËTAIL II{COMË STATEMENT

FOR THE PËRIOD ENDING MARCH 37,2020
MARCH YËAR TO DATE YTD/
2O2O ACTUAL BUDGET%

PRIOR YTD
ACTUAL

WATER CONSËRVATION
Residential
Commercial
Public Outreach/l nformation
Large Landscape

TOTAL WATËR CONSERVATION

GENERAL AND ADMINISTRATIVE
Directors Fees
Legal Fees
Human Resources
Auditing Fees
Consulting Services/Studies
General Office Salaries
Safety: General District Wide
Office Supplies
Employee Events
Other Administrative Expense
Election Cost
Dues & Subscriptions
Vehicle Expense
Meetings, Conferences & Training
Recruitment Expense
Gas & Electricity
Telephone
Water
Buildings & Grounds Maint
Office Equipment Ëxpense
lnsurance Premiums & Claims
Retiree Medical Benefits
(Gain)/Loss on Overhead Charges
G&A Applied to Other Operations (5.9%)
G&A Applied to Construction
GAS868 Adjustment (Pension)

GENËRAL & AÞMINISTRATIVE

Depreciation (Nore 5)

TOTAL OPËRATING EXPËNSH

$149,312
5,1 69

71,723
15,187

59%
26Yo
1630/0
54Yo
70%

$179,303
5,926

29,554
16,632

$14,948
563

11,617
1 ,171---szB',zss- $241,391 s23i,414

$3,031
1,638
2,100
1,500

10,746
102,049

3,731
935
107
253

0
6,1 02

676
13,646

275
2,280

563
0

6,861
6,587
8,775

14,522
(70,273)
(10,e8e)
(33,335)
104,953

$27,789
9,744

27,874
'15,151

120,207
808,035

34,928
20,402

9,060
5,1 05

0

82,651
6,084

96,809
1 ,105

28,344
5,147
1,549

41,342
107,239
78,978

142,656
(121,307)

(e7,224)
(2ee,623)
949,687

$25,822
15,393
83,799
21,562

173,535
783,939
26,590
17,763
10,099

5,090
18,915
79,906
6,084

86,755
967

22,888
3,878
1,456

42,772
80,1 87
76,399

147,502
774,790

(106,680)
(269,842)

0

6Bo/o

460/0

54o/o
l aolt¿lo

62%
70%
61o/o

43%
7 5o/o

34%

I¿lO

760/o

87%
76Yo

51%
37%
73o/o

64o/o

77o/o

73o/o

83%
54%
B3%

101Yo

67%
92%

259%
94%fi176,734

217,õ70

$1,400,504

$2,101 ,731

2,010,291

913,578,776

92,125,570

2,056,831

$13,220,689

oPËRATING TNCOME(LOSS) _ _($21,711) $852,537 33o/o $969,865
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NOVATO WATER
DËTAIL INCOME STATEMENT

FOR THË PËRIOD ËNDII\{G MAREH 31,202A
MARCH YEARTO DATË YTD/
2O2O ACTUAL BUDGET%

NON.OPERATING REVENUE
lnterest:
General Funds
Wohler Pipeline Financing Fund
Collector #6 Financing Fund
Retiree Medical lnsurance Fund
Self-lnsured Workers' Comp Fund
Aqueduct Energy Efficiency Proj Fund
Funds Held in County Treasury

Total lnterest Revenue
Rents & Leases
Other Non-Operating Revenue
Gain/(Loss) on MV of lnvestments

NON.OPERATING REVENUË

NON.OPERATING EXPENSE
Bank of Marin AEEP Loan lnterest Exp
STP SRF Loan lnterest Expense
JP Morgan/Chase AMI Loan lnteresi Expense
Other Non-Operating Expense

NON.OPERATING EXPËNSE

NET TNCOME/(LOSS)

BEGINNING FUND EQUITY
NET rNCOMË/(LOSS)
SCWA 84 Water Conservation Grant
Developer'l n-Kind' Corrtributions
Caltrans AEËP Capital Contribution
MÍVIWD AËEP Capital Contribution
Connection Fees
FRC Transfer to/from Recycled Water

ENDING FUND EQUITY

$34,990
0

0
15,810

1,799
BB

0

$o
3,098

12,181
126,912

15,047
899

46%
0o/o

Oo/o

35ïo/o

PRIOR YTD
ACTUAL

$34,990
0
0

178,837
20,956

1,061
13 407 I 8'16

$249,251
69,025
31,023
10,074

$359,372 1270/0 $33r,521

$52,ô86
4,1 06

ea ¿\

3 420

$60,585

$13,200
17,923

9,1 91

0

447o/o
166Yo

B3o/o

620/0

$167,953
75,771
60,942
26,854

$121,537
163,958
87,380

1,319

7 5o/o

760/0

7 5o/o

7%
73o/o

$128,696
180,322
89,861

314
$40,314

($1,440)

$374,194 $400,1 94

$901,1 92

$74,21 1,063
901,192

18,539
285,438

18,716
245,000
824,580

$837 715 35%

(1,440)
0

51,450
878

0

28,600
0

$79,168,973
837,715

0
708,061

12,621
205,320

1,445,735
7B5.B3B

1262%
100Yo

425Yo

860

$83,164,262
3ô4,598

ç77,869,127
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NOVATO RECYCLEÐ WATER
ÞËTAIL INEOMË STATEMENT

FOR THE PERIOD ENDING MARCH 31,2020
MARCH YEARTODATË YTD/
2O2O ACTUAL BUDGET%

PRIOR YTD
ACTUAL

OPERATING REVENUE
Recycled Water Sales
Bimonthly Service Charges
Water Loads
Accou nt Turn-on Charges

TOTAL OPERATING RËVENUË

OPERAT¡NG EXPENSH

SOURCE OF SUPPLY
Purchased Water - NSD
Purchased Water - LGVSD

SOURCE OF SUPPLY
PUMPING
Maint of Pumping Equipment
Electric Power

PUMPING
OPERATIONS
Supervision & Engineering
Operating Expense - Operations
Potable Water Consumed
Maintenance Expense
Telemetry Equipment/Controls Maint

OPËRATIONS
WATER TREATMENT
Purification Chemicals
Maint of Purification Equipment
Laboratory Direct Labor
Customer Water Quality
Lab Expense Distributed from Novato

WATER TRËATMENT
TRANSMISSION & DISTRIBUTION
Supervision & Engineering
Facilities Location
Customer Service Ëxpense
Storage Facilities Expense
Maint of Valves/Regulators
Maint of Mains

TRANSMISSION & D¡STRIBUTION

$96,991 $883,005 71%

$13,765
2,631

$159,405 7 5o/o

B5%

77%

230/o

106%
65o/o

69%
3o/o

19%

20o/o

18%

$816,748

$214,721
45,830

$89,352
7,440

200
0

$830,716
51,905

300
B4

70%
121o/o

J10

B3%
760/o

5o/o

42o/o

32\o/o
26o/o

$766,501
47,640

2,460
148

53 605

$16,396 $213,010 $260,550

s225
3,231

$408
77

$700
3,1 B1

$3,881

$8,554
6,024

50,631
663

0

$485

$740
0

5,461
0
0

$3,456

$6,201 $65,873

66%
46%

460%
7o/o

o%
89o/o

$6,404
6,819

192,599
409

1,685

$0
0
0
0
s

$2,748
520

1,118
0

601

$207,916

$2,622
3,537
3,187

196
I 796

$e $4,987 $1 I,338

$2,607
406

4,306
392

0
0

($oo¡
219

0
20

0
0

$81 I
831

5,315
600

2,547
3,282

$1 79 $13,386 $7,711
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MARCH
2420

CONSUMER ACCOUNTING
Distributed from Novato (0.2%) $120

coNsu M ER ACCOU NTr NG ------$l 20-
GÉNERAL AND ADMINISTRATIVE

NOVATO RECYCLED WATER
DËTAIL INCOME SÏATEMENT

FOR THE PERIOD ËNDING MARCH 31, 2O2O
YEAR TO DATE

ACTUAL

$944
$944

YTD/
BUDGET%

94o/o

94Yo

71o/o

8Bo/o

75%
73o/o

65o/o

B8%

49%
152o/o

760/o

73o/o

180%

(330%)

86%

PRIOR YTD
ACTUAL

$803
$803

Consulting Services/Studies
Distributed from Novato (2.4%)
GASBOB Adjustment

GENERAL & ADMINISTRATIVE

Þepreciatiorì (Note 5)

TOTAL OPËRATING EXPHNSH

oPERATTNG TNGOME(LOSS)

t¡ON-OPËRATING REVENUË
lnterest:
General Funds
RWF Replacement Fund
Self-lnsured Worl<ers' Comp Fund
StoneTree RWF Loan

Total lnterest Revenue
Other Non-Operating Revenue

NON.OPERATING RËVENUE

NON-OPËRATING ËXPENSE
RWF SRF Loan lnterest Expense
Ëxpansion SRF Loan lnterest Expense
Other Non-Operating Expense
Capital Contribution Expense-NSD&LGVSD

NON-OPERATING ËXPENSE

BEGINNING FUND ESUITY
NET TNCOME/(LOSS)
FRC Transfer to/from Novato

ËNDING FUND ËQUITY

763$25 $177 013

$3,250
$4,418

683

$3,250
$39,092

$0
$40,1 66

$o6 197

$1,890
5,727

30
9BB

$8,351

39,486
971,228

$48,539

355,371
$705,992

$40,1 66

355,368
$887,308

($70,55e)

$354
39,482

268
38,'180

$78,284
0

$78,284

$38,849
207,630

3,354
0

$249,833

(9242,108)

$39,639
65,452

355
17,545

$8,635
0

$122,991
0

$8,635 5122,991 152%

$35,648
1 76,1 33

0
305 711

923,125 $517,492

NET TNGOME/(LOSS) - $11,?74 ($21.7,488)

$4,019
1 9,1 06

0
0

11,274
0

fi23,421,587
(217,488)
(785,838)

fi22,418,262æ

$24,764,880
(242,108)

(1,364,598)
--s2-3,15T,172-

15
t:\accounlants\financials\stmtfyxx\f¡nfyxx.xls4/30/2020 4 57 Pil,4



WËST MARIN WATER
DETAIL INGOME STATEMENT

FOR TI-IE PERIOÞ ËNDING MAREH 31,?.020

MARCH
2020

YEAR TO DATE

AGTUAL
YTD/

BUDGET%

89o/o

7Bo/o

34o/o

1jVo

87%

B5o/o

23%
116%

1o/o

90%

80o/o

313o/o

1060/o

149o/o

93%
87%

64%
62o/o

81%

5jYo
70%
57%
a 101Jt /o

40%
70o/o

79%
77%
42%
27o/o

B5o/o

65%

PRIOR YTD
ACTUAL

OPËRATING REVENUE
Water Sales
BillAdjustments
Bimonthly Service Charges
Account Turn-on Charges
New Account Charges
Returned Check Charges
Backflow Service Charges

TOTAL OPERATING REVENUE

OPËRATING ËXPENSË

SOURCE OF SUPPLY
Supervision & Engineering
Operating Expense
Maint of Structures
Water Quality Surveillance
Purchased Water - MMWD

SOUREË OF SUPPLY
PUMPING
Maint of Structures and Grounds
Maint of Pumping Equip
Electric Power

PUMPING
OPERATIONS
Supervision & Engineering
Operating Ëxpense
Maintenance Expense
Maint of Telemetry Equipment
Leased Lines

OPERAÏIONS
WATER TREATMËhIT
Supervision & Engineering
Operating Expense
Purification Chemicals
Maint of Structures & Grounds
Maint of Purification Equipment
Electric Power
l-aboratory Direct Labor
Laboratory Services
Water Quality Supervision
Customer Water Quality
Lab Expense Distributed from Novato

WATER TREATMËNT

$104,101 $778,147

,0416

$88,056 $649,505
(20,567)
144,404

336
95

0

$568,467
(30,586)
138,888

792
125

1B

4,390

0

5

0
0

0
0 4 375

$326
49

614
0
0

$2,680
1,388
9,299

14
171

$682,093

$531
3,954
8,740

572
322

$989 $13,552

$7,1 B0
34,428
29,721

$o
505

2,690

$14,119

$7,026
2,602

30,761
$3,1 e5

$984
'1,309

453
0

366

$71,329 $40,389

911,202
14,802

873
9,658
3,084

$13,499
12,031

0
1 1 ,315

3 049
$3,1 1 2 $39,619 $39,893

$5, I 62
20,082
4,012

I
8,888

20,593
26,431

6,649
6,212
3,342

1 4,838

$1,933
2,459

0

0

0

3,025
4,880

413
742

49
2,824

$10,556
20,437

2,867
308

7,558
14,716
30,098

5,373
1,682
2,474

1 6,1 93
$16,325 $112,261 $116,217
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WEST MARIN WATËR
DETAIL INEOME SÏATË¡VIËNT

FOR THE PERIOD ENDING MARCH 31, 2O2O

MARCH
2020

YEAR TO DATË

ACTUAL
YTD/

BUDGET%

PRIOR YTD
ACTUAL

TRANSMISSION & DISTRIBUTION
Supervision & Engineering
Facilities Location - USA
Customer Service Ëxpense
Flushing
Storage Facilities Expense
Cathodic Protection
Maint of Valves
Valve Operation Program
Maint of Mains
Water Quality Maintenance
Backflow Dev lnspectioniSurvey
Maint of Copper Services
Maint of PB Service Lines
Maint of Meters
Detector Check Assembly Maint
Maint of Hydrants
Hydrant Operation
Single Service lnstallation

TRANSMISSION & DISTRIBTJTION
CONSUMER ACCOUNTING
Meter Reading
Collection Expense - Labor
U ncol lectable Accounts
Distributed from Novato (3.6%)

CONSUMER ACCOUNTING

WATER CONSERVATION
Water Conservation Progranr

TOTAL WATER CONSERVATION

GENËRAL AND ADMINISTRATIVË
Consulting Services/Studies
Distributed from Novato (3.6%)
GASB68 Adjustment (Pension)

IlENED^t ,È 
^rìnítÀlle'rÞ/\Î|\rtr

Depreciation (Note s)

TOTAL OPERATING EXPENSË

$o
4,814
4,825

0%
84%

$1 00
850
440

7,137
13,179

$5,446
9,447
6,625
7,137

23,740
10zo

705
0

2,887
0

1,057
845

16,847
629

1,222
0
0

(3,620)

160/o

79o/o

133o/o

$3,628
6,175
6,653

0

13,888
1,464

899
4,889
6,014

407
2,547
9,532

38,51 6
1,438

0

1,582
5,355

0
0
0

0

0

0

0
2,421

0

0
0
0

(3,620)

77o/o

1%
23o/o

0%
4B%
0To

lBYo

21o/o

58o/o

13%
61o/o

0%
0o/o

0%
0o/o

81%
61%

3307

$20,508

$978
0

0

1,344

$6,552
0

0
10,532

$72,995 47o/o $110,317

$5,896
26

(?98)
8,954

55%

$3 129

fiz,322 $17,084

$s 450

$5,450

$0
42,589
43,822

61%
61o/o

135o/o

7 5o/o

77o/o

116%

$14,577

$3 450

$3,450

$898
48,181

0

$3, I 29

$9,643

15,404

974,626

$86,411

139,440

$558,1 41

$49,079

140,209

$528,251

oPERATTNG TNCOME(LOSS) 92s,475 $220,006 $r 5s 843
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WEST MARI¡V WATËR
DETAIL ¡NEOME STATEMENT

FOR THË PER¡OÞ EI{DING MARCH 31,2A2A

MARCH

2020
YEAR TO DATE

ACTUAL
YTD/

BUDGET%
PRIOR YTD

ACTUAL

NON.OPËRATING REVENUË
lnterest - General Funds
lnterest - FRC
lnterest - Self-lnsured WC Fund
lnterest - Bank of Marin Project Fund
Rents & Leases
Tax Proceeds - OL-2 G.O. Bond
Tax Proceeds - PR-2 Tax Allocation
Other Non-Operating Revenue

NON-OPERATING REVENUE

NON-OPERATING EXPËNSË
Bank of Marin Loan lnterest Expense
PRE-1 Revenue Bond lnterest Exp
PR-6 Revenue Bond lnterest Exp
Other Non-Operating Expense

NON.OPERATING EXPENSË

NET INCOME/(LOSS) $32 909

$3,52e
108
60

1,505
0
0

168
1

$39,460
'1,996

701
17,840
5,305

5

31,909
2

$19,635
2,697

508
12,707

0
4

31,793
(316)

$5,372 s7,217

395o/o

22o/o

119%
1 33%

57o/o

103To

74%

760/o

115o/o

$67,028

7$$1,93B

0

0

0

840
0

0

392

$18,891
975

1,312
392

$1,938

32,909

$18,232

$298,991

$6,685,965
298,991

0

0

821,571

$199,300

BEGINNING FUNN EQUITY
NET TNCOME/(LOSS)
CONTRIBUTED CAPITAL
Connection Fees
PRIOR YEAR ADJUSTMENTS lNote rrc¡

ENDING FUND EQUITY

0
0

$6,431,493
199,300

8,000
0

$6,638,793$6,984,956
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OCËAh{A MAR¡N SEWER
DETAIT INEOME STATËMENT

FOR T!..IË PERIOP ENÞING RfiAREH 31,2A2A

MARCH

2420

YEAR TO DATË

ACTUAL
YTD/

BUDGET%

PRIOR YTD

ACTUAL
OPERATING REVËNUE
Sewer Service Charges

TOTAL OPERATING REVENUE

OPERATING EXPENSE

SEWAGË COLLECTION
Supervision & Engineering
lnspection
Maps & Records
Operating Expense
Facilities Location
Maint of Telemetry Equipment
Maint of Lift Stations
Maint of Manholes
Maint of Sewer Mains
Electric Power

SEWAGE GOLLECTION
SEWAGË ÏRËATMENT
Operating Expense
Maint of Equipment
Laboratory Direct Labor
Lab Expense Distributed from Novato
Electric Power

SEWAGE TREATMENT
SEWAGE DISPOSAL
Operating Expense
Maint of Pump Stations
Maint of Storage Ponds
Maint of lrrigation Field

SEWAGE DISPOSAL
CONSUMER ACCOUNTING
Collection Expense - County of Marin
Distributed from Novato (0.6%)

CONSUMËR AGCOUNTING

fi21,762 $1e5,858 7 5o/o

75o/o

72o/o

0o/o

$189,540
921,762 $195,858 $189,540

$8,817
0

0
10,716

1,577
1,718

10,446
0

2,637

92$19,3
0

0

96
113
157
324

0
0

1,047

$25,265
0

56
1 1,05'l

1,757
3,075

17,392
0
0

9.959

111%
35o/o

102%
24Bo/o

0%
0o/o

83%
87o/o

43o/o

53%
51o/o

110%
179%
68o/o

11 371
$21,125 $68,554 $47,282

$ 7,332)
255
356
221

621

$20,511
8,174
4,401
2,481
5,625

$8,595
4,225
4,107
2,210

10 728

$1,554
583

28
0

$s,379
1,091
3,971

382

($15,87e) $29,865 $41 ,1 93

27%
30%
7 4o/o

18o/o

42o/o $8,823

58%
76%

$350
$1,072
$1,422

$4,095
2,096

11,774
1.450

$2,165 $19,415

$o
$140

$350
$1 '169

$140 $1,518

19
l:\accounlants\financials\stmtfyxx\finfyxx.xls4/30/2020 4:58 pM



OCËANA MARIN SËWËR
DETAIL INCOME STATEIV¡ENT

FCIR THE PERIOD ENDING MARCI-I 31, 2O2O

MARCH YEAR TO DATE

2O2O ACTUAL

YTD/
BUDGET%

PRIOR YTD

ACTUAL

GENERAL AND ADMINISTRATIVE
Distributed from Novato (1.1o/o)

Liability lnsurance
GAS868 Adjustment

GËNERAL AND ADMINISTRATIVE

Depreciatiorì (Note 5)

TOTAL OPÉRATING EXPENSË

0PERATING INeOME/(toSS)

NON.OPERATING REVËN[JË
Rents & Leases
lnterest - General Funds
lnterest - Self lnsured WC Fund
Tax Proceeds - OM-1/OM-3 Tax Alloc

NON-OPERATING REVHNUE

NON-OPERATING EXPENSE
Other Non-Operating ExPense

NON-OPERATING EXPENSE

NËT rNCOMË(LOS$)

BEGINN¡NG FUND EQUITY
NET TNCOME/(LOSS)
CONTRIBUTED CAPITAL

ENDING FUND EQUIÏY

$7,316 fi14,218

fi1,757
176
149

$3,082

3,808

$14,446

10 425

68%
79o/o

110o/o

94%
78o/o

51%

112o/o

57%
64o/o

$15,543
1,584

$18,333
1,247

0

$19,580

27,895
$146 193

$43,347

$250
4,638

181
3.3,883

$38,952

$27,553

34,733
$181 ,640

$o
933

22
179

$250
8,988

251
34,007

$1,1s4 $43,496

$569 $764
$o $569 $764

$8,4s0 $57,145 60% $81,535

$o

91,522,727
8,450 57 ,145

---sT3;0.F;î-

$1 ,416,01 1

81,535

$1,497,545
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NORTþ{ MARIN WATER ÞISTR¡CT
ËQUIPMËNT HXPENDITURES

PER.IOD END¡NG MARCH 31, 2O2O
t:\accountants\financials\stmtfy20\[cpm0320.xls] equip

MARCH

2020
FYTD

TOTAL
FY 19/20 (OVËR)

BUDGET UNDER Notes

1 ADM¡NISTRATION
a. Website Upgrade
o. Exchange Server Upgrade
c Timekeeping Software Upgrade

2 ENGINEERING
a. Copier

3 OPHRATIONS/MAINTËI{ANEË
a. Metals Analyzer
b 100 KW Towable Generator
c 45 KW Towable Generator (2)

¿. Portalrle Light Generator

4 VEHICLË & ROLLING ESUIPMHNT ËXPËNDITIJRES
a. 112 ton 2WD Pick-Up WTool Box & RadÍo
n. Vacuum Excavator
c Hybrid SUV w/Radio
o Truck Bed Body for 5-Yard Diesel Dump Truck

T'OTAL ËSUIPMENT ËXPËNDITURES

$0 $27,000 $27,000

$0 ($8,015) r,z

$o $0
0

0

$10,000
7,000

'10,000

$10,000
7,0000

0 10 000

$o

$o $8,015
$0 $8,015 $0 ($8,015)

$68,000 r

28,569
(27,4Be)
12,000

$0
0

0

0

$0
61,431
77,4Bg

n

$68,000
90,000
50,000
12,000

$o

$0
0

0
0

$138,920 $220,000 $81,080

$0
116,965

0

$28,000
'130,000

28,000
0

$28,000
13,035
28,000

1,20521

1 186,000 $47 ,

$0 $285,105 $433,000 $'147,895

Notes:
(1) Replacement item.
(2) Not budgeted for FY20. Unused funds from ltem 1c were used for this purchase

21
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Novato Recycled

NORTFI NflARIN WATER Ð¡STRICT
EXPEND¡Tt.iRES EY CATEGORY

FOR PERIOD ENDING fuTARC¡{ 31,2Û28

West Oceana YT'Ð
Marin Marin TotaN

Annua[ YTÐ Pnior
Budget Budget % YT'D Act¡.rat

OPERAT¡NG EXPENSE

Salaries & Benefìts
Water Purchases
Depreciation
Materials, Services & Suppi!es
Consulting Services/Studies
Chemicals
Electric Power
Vehicles and Equipment (Distrib)
Tools & Supplies (Distrib)
Retiree Medical Expenses
Water Conservation Rebates
lnsurance & Claims
Office Supplies & Postage
GASB 68 Adjustments
Overhead Charges (Gain)/Loss
Distri buted Costs (Lab,G&A,ConsAcctg)

Total Operating Expense

lnterest Expense & Other

ctlo

Change
1

2
a

4

5

6

7
o

q

1C

11

1)

13
It

4È

16

17

$4,347,061
4,107,839
2,01t,291
1,369,693

120,207
191 ,438
366,820

167,235
199,104
I r+l o3rl
2Aj52
78,978
57,420

949,687
(121,307)
(428,497)

$13,578,776
374,194

$1 61 ,1 50
238,941
117,495

(517,585)

$0

$243,886
285,105
641,795

1,116,841

$243,321
477,856

ç721,178

$16,961 775

$25,721
213,010
355,37'l

53,474
3,250
2,748
3,18r
1,116
1,285

40,637

$705,992
211,781

QN

s5,224
0

581,099
3,022

$o

$190,240
0

139,440
38,986

0

2,867
44,437
1 3,1 63
15,622

0
250

0

0

43,822
0

69,315

$558,1 41
40 acnt9\1¿a

$78,927
n

35,229
337,884

$591
841

$1,432

$1,029,846

$181,640
569

$o $0

$1 61 ,1 50
238,941
117.495

(517,585)

$0

$339,264
285,105

1,258,122
1,546,794

$243,912
477,647

$267,000
339,0û0

0
(606,000)

$o

$628,000
355,000

2,279,}CIO
5,086,000

$208,000
131.000

ï14,782,441
506,675

$134,355
($118,408)

$90,1 49
(106,0e6)

$0

$346,769
112,457

1,058,814
2,878,176

$228,457
137,056

$45,698 S4

0 4,320,849 5,985,000 72% 4,460,075 -3 %
34,733 2,539,835 3,528,000 72% 2,580,303 -10/o

45,198 1,507,351 1 ,910,000 79% 1,426,642 5 %
0 123.457 335,000 37% 174,433 -29 %

0 197,053 484,000 41% 148,054 33 %
20,659 435,097 513,000 85% 383,107 13 %
3,934 185,448 317,000 59% 2A5,436 -9 %
2.694 218,706 177 ,0A0 124% 21ô,533 1 %

0 142,656 172,AO0 83% 147,502 -3 %
Q 2A,4A2 104,000 20% 20,813 -1%

1,584 80,563 173,000 47% 77 ,646 3 %
a 57,420 102,000 56% 98,035 -41 %

10325 1,A1A132 0 - 0
0 (1213A7) (39,000) 311% 774,7e0 -115 %

16,712 (301,833) (366,000) 82% (272,322) 10 %

$0
0
0
0

$o
0

0
0

0
0
n

0
6,1 97

0

$0
0
0

0

$15,024,550 $19,621,000
604,777 870,000

zaa/tt/o
a 

^a/MA

6o%
70%

0%
85%

54%
80%
55%
30%

117o/o

365%

213o/o

1%
19%

¿ -/o

19%
-301%

30 a/o

387 To

-2%
153 %

4 0 0/lo /o

-46%

6To
248 %

18
N) ro

Total Expense

Wä;¿höüêê. Snöp & Väid
Salaries & BenefÌts
Materials, Services & Supplies
Depreciation
Distributed Costs

Tota! W/H, Shop & Yard

District CaoitaÍ Outlav
25 Salaries & Benefits
26 EquipmentExpenditures
27 Debt Principai Payments
28 Materials, Services & Supplies

29 Total District Capital Outlay

JU

Develooer Funded Proiects
Salaries & Benefits
Materials, Services & Supplies

aa Total Developer Projects

Total $1,507,118

$13,952,971 $917,773 $576,374 $182,209 $1s,629,326 $20,491,000 76% $15,289,116

20

21

zz

62,287,627 $589,344 $452,040 $100,270 $3,429,281 $8,348,000 41% $4,396,216 -21%

s11,228
0

0
89,042

$o
(1,051)

$(1 ,051)

$281,428

$0
0

$721,560 $339,000

$19,780,1 67 $29,1 78,000

$365,513

$20,050,845

97%

68% -1%

2.56.22Ptú 4t21t2020 S:\SageSoftware\SAGE'1 00\v201 6\MAS90\Reporis\'l PAS ExpCategory FY20.rpt



Year Descri

NORTI-I MARIN WATER Ð¡STRICT
VEHICLE FI-EET ANALYSIS

FOR PERIOD ENDING MARCH 31,2424
Fiscal Year to Date
-1txpenseVeh# Ass

49
FA

EÁ

Âo

504
505
506
s09
510
ç11Jt I

512
513
515
cto
517
Ã{o

520
521
522
523
524
526
527
528
531
532
533
534
535

T on

19 Pool
44 Construction
52 Constructìon
503 Bergstrom
508 BreiUCrew
5'14 Rupp
519 Sjoblom
525 lelmorini/Davenport
530 Construction

2Ga Mi

Vehicle Cost r llile
L¡fe to Date FYTD2O FYTDI9

n

2003
2004
2004
2005
2007
2008
2008
2008

Dodge Dakota 4x4
Chev C1500
Chev C1500 Xtra Cab
Ford Ranger
Chev Colorado
Ford F250 4x4
Ford F250 4x4
Chev Colorado 4x4
Toyota Prius Hybrid
Ford F150 4x4
Ford F150
Ford F150
Ford F250
Ford F250
Ford F150
Ford F250 4x4
Ford Escape 4X4
Ford F150 4X4
l,lissan Frontier
Ford Escape 4X4
Nissan Frontier
Ford Cargo Van
Dodge Ram 2500
Chev Colorado 4x4
NISSAN ROGUE
NISSAN ROGUE
NISSAN FRONTIER
FORD F-150 2WD
FORD F-150 4x4

STP
Construction
Pool
FSR/Pool
Rodriguez
Maintenance
STP
Engineering
Sold in Jan 2020
STP
EIec/Mech
Construciion
Reed
Castellucci
Kurfìrst
Kehoe, Chris
Arendell
Watkins/Shop
Roberto
Lab
Bynum
On-Call
Rupp
Stompe
Clark
EnglWtr Consv
Castellucci
Grisso
LeBrun

116,962
132,748
109,681
r2â 40n

88,841
106,715
79,364

1 11,893
134,302
90,849

114,687
87,394
68,777
74,632
15,228
92,660
79,255
43,976
50,593
23,757
30,235
15.177
17,595
7,735
8,740
1,549
3,360
1,085
4.419

$0.42
$0.46
$0.46
$0.46
80.42
$0.77
$0 78
$0.36
$0.1 9

$0.51
$0 50
$0.47
$0 62
$0.55
$0.79
$0.42
$0 26
$0.34
$0.38
$0.31
$0.44
$0.62
$0.66
$0.56
60 27
$0.73
$0.48
$0 59

5,726
468

2,908
661

7,858
5,626
2,909
5,1 53
1,271
3,849
5,025
4,436
7,624
6,832
I,O/ I

10,652
13,690
3,786
9,215
4,144
7,193
5,994
a Ã 74

4,813
8,740
1,549
3,197
1,085

019

$2,137
$789
$946
Þþ/J

$3,088
$4,480
$1,405
$2,50e

$863
$2, I 85
$3,613
$2,1 66
$5,687
$5,1 99
$6,428
$5,425
$3,667
$2,888
sJ,oöz
$1,474
$4,029
$1,8s7
$5,355
$1,457
$2,176

$938
$986
$643
$881

$860
$6,054
$1,802
$6,257
$7,013
$5,912

$14,048
$7,141

$3,05e
942

$854
$466
($t+¡

$4,487
$4,1 6s
$5 646

$217
$2,177
$5,327
$1,841
co Ão7

$8,810
$3,1 12

$12,595
$6,392
$2,821
$7,238
$2,769
$6,097

$566
$8,581
$2,555
$2,993

$742
$1,1 26
$1,652
fi1,452

$1,442
$13,349

$5,670
$'15,316
$20,748
914,994
$1 5,1 20
$15,316

fi922
($7tt¡

($ez¡
($208)

($3,1 02)
$7

Þ2, /bu
$3,1 38
($6ao¡

($e¡
$1 ,714
($3zs¡

$3 910
$3,611

($3 316)
$7 170
92,726

($62¡
$3,556
$1,294
$2,068
$2,068

($1,331)
$3,226
$1,098

$81 7
($1e6)
$140

$1,009

$582
$7,295
$9,059
$9,059

$13 735
$9,082
$1,072
$8,1 75

a1

69
aaJJ

02
39
80
48
49
68
57
'ia

49
AR

76
85
51
27
76
40
36
56
JZ
56
30

61
a4

59
22

$0
ùl
$o
$1

$0
$0
$o
$o
$0
Qrì

$0
$0
$0
$0
$3
$0
$o
$0
$0
$0
$0
$0
$0
$o
$0
$U

$o
$0

$0.42
$0.40
$0.52
$0.59
$0.45
$0.65
$1.10
$0.57
$0.r5
$1 17

$0.49
$0.45
$0.68
$0 53
$0.49
$0.43
$0.30
$0.35
$0.43
$0 31

$0.41
$0.28
$0.77
$0.99

l\)(,

ro 2009
r 2014
tz 2010
ß 2010
tc 2012
ts 2012
rc 2014
tt 2015
rc 2015
tg 2015
za 2016
zt 2017
zz 2016
zs 2018
zq 2018
zs 2019
za 2019
zt 2019
za 2419
zs 2019
so 2019

$3.78

22

r 1999
z 2OA2
c 'l OOO

¿ 2006
s 2009
ø 2012
¡ 2015
a 2017
e 2019

646
3,066
2,174
2,413
2,169
3,289
4,867
9,425
1.778

$0.00
$1.76
$0.00
Þ r.o/
$2.26
$1.45
$1.31
$0.60

Ford F350 WSvc Body
lnt'l 5 Yd Dump
Ford F550 3-Yd Dump "
Int'l 4300 Crew
Peterbilt 325 Crew
lnt'l 5 Yd Dump
lnt'l 5 Yd Dump
Ford F350 4x4
FORD F55O 3 YD DUMP

265
505
50i
520
683
807
245
910
778

138
108
98
48
38
43
40
2a

1

$0.00
$1.64
$0.00
82.29
$2.94
$1.1s
$1.30
$0 62

$1.33
$1.97
$0.83
et Ão

$3.23
$1.80
$2.89
$0 76

t E"pense amount shown excludes depreciation (approximately 984,000 for FY20).

$7/hrand the recovery rateforvehicles 1-ton and over is $14lhr. An add¡tional 50% is charged to developerprojectsto reflectthefairmarketvalueofthe vehicle be¡ng used.
3 Purchased lsec in 2004 wlth 32 sco mi es Mireale shown is tote inclred since Drstici purchãse T:\Accountants\Financials\stmtfy2o\lvehss.xls]l\rar 20



NORTI.{ MARIA\J WATER DISTRICT
VúATER CÛF¡SERVATIO¡\ PROGRAfuT DETAIL

to* *uo'oo -*"'*o *^ot.1 
1*' 'ott --.-- -,.**r.u*.*""*n,.',u.,0=*='*rooo*o=-,*'".*ffipt1p FYle/2o (ovERi rornl-

Descri JUNE 2019 242ø TOTAL BUDGET UNDER COST

TO

i -7700-01

1-77A0'02

1-7700-06

l7 t-A}-A-i

'\-t-]CA-I1

1 /-700-12

1-77CC-i 3

1,7704-15

1-7 lA0-17

1-7700-08

1-7144-24

r77 A0-21

11704-23

1-7i0c-24

1 -77CO-25

1-7700-26 s424,575
24,465
53,020

349,2A2
55,105

1,001,289
18,261

447,287
242,177

92,441
3,464

35,660
1,534,674

141,232
2,816
3,300
2,416

66,421

b /,Jo ¡

29,291

90,824
38,567
14,460
19,496

$824
100

0
Át

0
443

oÐ

0
5r)J

$9,565
aÁ2

500
1.946

0
14,709

246
19,652

0
198

OJ

2,961
84,802
12,805

t,v¿l
0

75
0

0
5,169

11,487
3,317

U

45,994
10,925

0

OAÃ

1,556
500
218

11,948

$35,000
5,000
5,000
5,000
1,000

18,000
2,000

65,000
0

7,00c
1,000
5,000

130,000
15,000
2,000
1,000
2,000

0

'10,00û

9,000

$25,435
4,257
4,500
3,054
1,000
3,291
1'7qA

45,348
0

6,8C2
ô11Jlî

2,039
45,1 98
2JgA

Õ74

1,000
1,925

10,000
3.831

9434,140
24,807
Ã1 Ãlo

351"148
55,105

1 ,015,999
18,507

466,939
242,177

92,639
3,547

38,621
1,619,476

114,436
3,843
3,300
2,491

6õ.421

r Cash for Grass
z Landscape Efficiency Rebates
: Fixtures Purchases
+ Washing Machine Rebates
s Demonstration Ga¡^den lmprovements
o Toilet Rebate SF
z Toilet Rebate MF
a Residential Audits
s High Effìciency Toiiet Distribution
ro Water Waste Ordinance Monitoring
rt Swimming Pool Cover Rebate
lz ET Controller Rebate
ia Administration
r¿ New Development Wtr Cons Program
ts Demand Offset Rebate Program
ro Grant Administration
tz Hot Water Recircuiation Rebate
rs Residential Fili Station

b. Commercial
r Toilet Rebate Program
z Commerciai Auciits

c. Pubiic Outreach/lnformation
r Fali Newsletter
z Spring Newsletter
s Sumrner Nelvsletter
4 Publrc Outreacn / HrU l-a¡r
s Marketing
o Pubiic Outreach/LeaCership Novato

d. Large Landscape
r Large Landscape Audits
z Large Landscape Budgets
s Large Landscape lrriE Effìciency Rebates
¿ CIMIS Station Maintenance
s Administration-Large Landscape

TOTAI- NOVATO WATER CONSERVATION

1- t-704.29

T77AC-34

1-7700-3i

'i-7700-33

T7ì40-34

1-77OlA2 ll t-a1-05

1-j'/a1-03 1-71A1-C4

10,620
1 ,119

0
0

75
0

1,657
0
0
0
0

f\)À
U

1 -A672-',6

't -8672-14

l77AA-A4

1-7740-05

1-7744-22

77,971
94,888
20,290

142,144
161 ,983

11,327

U

3,317
0

8,301
0
0

8,000
9,000

0
17,000
15,000

U

89,458
98,204
2A,294

188,138
172,908

11.327

(3,487)
5,684

0
(28,994)

4,475
0

o/,Jo !

34,464

101 807

1,6653-02

tî t-42-0'l

1-77A2-02 1-7702-44

1 -77A2-A3

n

162
U

15
994

3,000
1,000
4,000
2,000

2,035
(556)

3,500
1,782
1,452

91.788
44123
'14,960

19 715
89

31 299 00 557 5

$104,061 $3,129 $5,450 $9,000 $3,550 $109'510
WEST MARIN WATER

n n rogram2-5165-00

TOTAL WATER CONSERVATION EXPENDITURES 104,061 129 000 $3,550 10



NORTI-I MARIN WATER DISTR.¡CT
CAPITB,L IMPROVEMENT PR.OJECTS

PERIOD E'{DING MARCH 31,2Ð2Ð
i:\¿ccountanßilrnancrârs\srmtryzu\cpmuJ2u.îsJ equrp

COST THRU

JUNE 2019

56.760

{n
0

74,499
67,986

7 724

348
558

79,285

0

195,455
2,907

$286.593

MARCH
2024

FYTD

TOTAL
FY 19/20

BUDGET

$150,000
200,000

0

50,000

(OVERYUNDER
EI.,'DGET

$0
200,000

(5,377)

70,000
(25,072)
80,000

(31,844)
(75,496)

937,207
9,736

(37,1 69)
24,351
(1,137)

883,860

30,0û0

(4,756)
152,536
114,000
100,000
308,213
(5e,840)

(7,e5s)
(8.390)

$7,836
0

5,377

25,472
0

105,421
75,496

$62,793
264

274,668
68,635

8,862

95,425

250,211
41 ,371

0

0
91 ,787
68,787
7,955
8.390

$563,926

TOTAL
cosTDescript¡on

a. Main/Pipel¡ne Replacements
1-7183.00 1 Replace Plastic thin Walled Pipe < 4-inch

z Other Marn Replacements (60+ years old)
1-71a6-00 3 Main ReplacemenlGrant Ave Cl Fipe Repl WPVC

c. MainiPipeiine Addiiions
1-7iso-00 1 San Mateo lnlet/Outlet Pipe (2,200')

c PB Service Line Replacements
1-713e-u 1 Repl PB in Sync w/Ciiy Paving (30 Svcs)
i-t-i3s.2z z Repl PB-Hatch Rd & Mìll Rd (13)
i-7123-xx 3 Other PB Repiacements (80 Svcs)
1-t-123-24 4 Repl PB-Lânham Village (32)
i-7123-26 5 Repl PB-fulCC Estaies (23)

ci. Relocat¡ons to Sync w/City & County CIP
1-B-iz7-xx 1 Other Relocations

TOTAL PIPELINE REPLACEMENTS/ADDITIONS

0

0

0

0

7C,000
0

80,000
0

0

èn

0

0

$1,710
0

1,836

4,740

$7,836
0

58.670

0
25,072

0
31 ,844
75.496

(8,670) 115,430

1-7 118-C2

e. Aqueduct R.eplacements & Enhancements
r MSN 82-Uti!ity Agreement Costs'
2 AEEP Post Construction Costs

0 0 0 70,000 70,0c0 0

$97,736 $878 512,622 $0 $o $1 10,358
11,533 0 2,2s1 o (2,251) 13.784

$109,269 $878 $14,873 S0 ($2,251) $124,142

0

1 8,596
0

0

¿ó.ô 1ó

3.769

$100,000
10,000

'163,000

25,000
ñ

0

N)
('l

2 SYSTEM I¡UPROVEIVIENTS
i-7ca7-ß a. Detector Check Assembly RepairiRepl (-l¿¡yr)
'1-70e0-04 b. Anode lnstallations (tso¡yt
i-i178-co c. Asset Management Software ProcurernenUlnrplementation
r-7i36-00 d. Facilities Security Enhancements
1-7181-00 e Novato Fair Shopping Center-Backflow
1-7rsa-co f. Advanced Meter informatìon Retrofit

TOTAL SYSTEM IMPROVEMENTS

3 BUILDINGS, Y,qRÐ, & S.T.P, IMPRCVEMEruTS
a. Administration Building

r Office/Yard Building Renovation'?
b. Corp Yard/Warehouse/Construction Office

Other Yard lrnprovements
c. Stafford Treatment Plant

1 Dam Concrete Repair (Apron)
2 Leveron¡ Creek Embankment Repair
s Other Treatment Plant lmprovements
4 Effìciency lmprovements
s STP Generator
o STP-Chemical System Upgrades
7 STP-Backwash Pond 30" lsolation Valve
e STP-Outlet Valve Replacement

TOTAL BUILDING, YAR,D, & STP IMFROVEMENTS

0

0

0

8,946
0

0

50,000
191 ,000
114,000
1 00,000
400,000

0
0
0

$62,793
264

200,1 69
649

1 137

4

$0
0

896
0
0

828

0

0

0
0
0
0

A OEE

8.390

6 94 744
756 $298,C00

16,140

0

54 756

900,000

30,000

38,464
0

0
a1 747

59,840
7,955
8.390

744 092
14724

1-6541-44

I -ô502-xx 0 0

1-660u'-69

1-6600-96

1 -6600-u

1 -6600-97

't-6600-82

1-6600-e2

1 -6600-98

1-6600-99

s20.114 $277.332 $1.785.000 $1.507.668



NORTI-I MAR¡N WATER ÐISTR.ICT
CAPITAI- IMPR.OVEMEil¡T PRCIJECTS

PERIOÐ ENDING MARCI-{ 31,2420
lt\accountan$ÍnancLaß\slmtzu!cÞmuJ20.f st equrD

COST ÏHRU
JTJNE 2019

$s0,687

$337,1 06

$1.314,750
0

1,095,783
89,486

864,456
6,874,562
1,122,107

0
0

$11 361.145

$287.677

$39,1 9s
0

47.789
$86,984

MARCH
282t

FYÏD
TOTAL

FY 19t20
EUDGET

(OVERYUNÐER

30,000
105,855
297,094
574,537

(6,1 e2)
(6,609)

0
(34,828)

$33,533
5,511

(84,314\

TOTAL
COSTf)escriotion

4 STORAGE TAil'¡KS & PUMP STATIONS

Tank Construction
1 Old Ranch Rd Tank Replacement

Tank Rehabilitation
1 l-lydropnuematic Tank Repa¡rs
2 Cherry Hill #2 Recoat

Lynrvood Pump Station Motor Control Center
Crest P.S.(Design/Const)/Reloc School Rd P.S.
indian Hills FS-Bypass
Rockrose PS-Bypass
Diablo PS-Bypass
Quick Connects-Generators (1 6)

TOTAL STORAGE TANKS & PUilíP STATIONS

BUDGET

($349) $79,327 $1 50,000 $70,67,? $130,014
a.

1-6247-24

h

1-7i71-AC

1-6245-22

i-6112-24 C.

1-6'14'1-00 d.

1-6111-2", e.

1-ô1 16-21 f.

1-6105-20 g.

1-7184-oo h.

15,145
16,754

127.093
124,870

946
901
710

0

0
4 195

417
1,799

0
0
0

652

0
294,145
22,906
60,463
6,192
6,609

0

34 828

Þþ,4bl
a ¿Po

84.314

30,000
400,000
320,000
635,000

0
0
0

0

$40,000
15,000

0

15,145
310,899
1¿O OOO

iÕc,JJc
7 138
1 È4 4

-74n

J¿+.ö¿Õ

$45,662
9,489

132,103

$6,714 fi504,470 $1,535,000 $1,030,530 $841,576

5 RECYCLED WATER
s-zrz oo a ñBWRÃ Giãñf Program Administration

b. Other Recycled Water Expenditures
5-6osa-10 c. Expansion to Centrai Area3
s-60b8-1s d. RW Central Right of Way Costs3
5-6058-20 e. RW Centra! Frivate Onsite Retrofìt
5-60s8-4c f. RW Centrai-West Side Const
s-60s8-s0 g. RW Central-Norman Tank Rehab/Const
s.7i52-a2 h. South Novaio Dual Flurnbed Shell Loop
5-7162-oi i. Recycled Water Retrofits-Taco Bell

TOTAL RECYCLED WATER
6 WEST MARIIJ WATER SYSTEM

2-6263-20 a. Replace PRE Tank #4A (25K Gal w/125K Gal)
2-660e-20 b New Gallagher Well #2
2-882e-00 c. PB Replace in Sync w/County Pavìng
2-7182-ao d. WM Brorninated-TTHM Reduction
z-Bse.aa e. Lagunitas Bridge Pipeline Replacement
2-e737,a7 f . Olema Creek Bridge Replacement
2-6130-22 g. Olema PS Wireiess to ïank
2-7i23-2s ã. PB ReplacemenlDrakes View Dr
2-7ia5-aa i. Gallagher Ranch Streambank Stabilization
2-6^3a-24 j. Olema Pump Station Pump Replacement

TOTAL WEST MARIN WATER SYSTEM

7 OCEAil¡A MARIÍ-{ SEWÊR SYSTEM
8-8672-28 a. lnfiltration Repair
B-708s-04 b. ÏahitÌ Way l-ift Pump 1 Assembly
8.7173-00 c. OM Treatment Pond Rehab-404 Grant-FEMA

TOTAL OCEANA MARIN SEWER SYSTEM

TOTALPROJECTEXPENÐITURES $18,445.668

$235,454
8,720
1,455

20,482
18,742

1,010
0

1,814
0

0

912
0
0

938
0
0
0

$s8,820
73,895

0

37,881
7 538

ao

0
þÞ,UþY

165,260
7,270

$550,000
75,000
50,000

300,000
200,000

35,000
20,000

0
0

0

$491 ,1 80
1 ;105

50,000
262,119
1o.t a^'
34,922
20,000

(66,06e)
(165,260)

(7,27C)

$294,274
82,616

1,455
58,363
26,280

1,088
0

ol,0ÕJ
165,260

7 270

s1 ,314,751
0

1,095,783
89,594

B67,BOB
6,875,264
1 ,124,445

182
4 ECa

$0 $8.245 $120.000 sl'11.754 $11.369 390

$27,960

$74,645 $416,81r $1,230,000 $813,189 $704,488

$o
0
0

0
0
0

0

0

0

$0
0
0

t0B

702
¿,JJ I

182
1.563

$20,000
100,000

U

(1 08)
(3,353)

Fa2)
/a a2a\

(182)
(1.563)

s20
100

000
000

0
0
0
0
0
0
0

N}
o)

44,835
0

$0
0

37,143
$37,143 $100,270 $55,000 {s45.2 ¡ü) s187,254

$206.478 $1.886.054 $5.643.000 $3.627.403 $20.323.887



NORTI.I MAR'N WATER DISTR.ICT

CAPËTAL I IV!PROVE¡Ifr ENT PROJECTS
PERIOD ENDING MARCH 31,2A24

¡:\accouDtan6\¡¡anclalsErmnyzu\cpmu Jzu.xlsl equrp

DescriDtion JUNE 2019 2020 TOTAL BUDGET BUDGET COST

8 N-ESS FUNDED BY GRANTS LOANS & REIMBURSEMENTS

aa1 7 12 622
) 

^tt\

000 92

ol 622
912,622

$0

($9oo

740 025

($59 e74)
0

o

64.127
8,963

0
16,378
84,743

994a. MSN Aqueduct Caltrans Reimb-Segment 821

FUNÐING BY OTþ,IERS (ACCRI.'EDYDEFERRED

Received
a. MSN Aqueduct Caltrans Reimb-Segment 82'
o Office/Yard Buìlding Renovation'?

FUNDING BY OTI{ERS RECEIVED

NET PROJECT EXPENDITURES

($59,e74)
0

a7¿.\

1Q 322

cn

0

QN

0

$0

$1 t4J

25,000
0

50,000
50,000

n

15,000
10,000
10,00c
20,000

25,000
(3,412)
(6,1 13)
50,000
(6,382)

1,038
10,000
3,623

(9,522)

N]
-\¡

Notes to Caþ¡tal lmÞrovernent Proiects Schedule:
('1 ) Funding provided 100% by Caltrans.
(2) OfficeiYard Refurbish to be funded by Bank Loan

1-4055-00

1-4057-00

a.

b.

d
e.
î
g.

h.

i.
;
)

k.

L

rvey
0

1 80,308
66,083

0
o,5ó¿

14a58-24
1-4059-00

1 -4073-00

1-4076-00

1-4077-OO

1 -7 1 40-01
,,-4C54-41

1-4060-00

1-6501-43

0
176,896

9,970
0

200
56,898

0
0
0

7F aa4

0

0
0

29,463
0

200
c

2,352
0

15,302
4,297

0
3,412

56,1 1 3
0

O.JÕZ

7,229
8,963

0

Local Water Supply Enhancement Siudy
Novato Water Master Plan UPdate
2019 Cost of Service StudY
Stafford Lake Wate¡- Rights UPdate
Surplus Property
CVRA.Trans From At-Large Elections
Potter Valley Project FERC Relicensing
Stafford Dam EAP & inundation Mappìng Upclates
Urban Water Management Plan
STP Efficiency lmprovements
Electronic Document Managernent Sysiem

J'O

522
427

b
I
4

0

Novato Recycled Water Capitai Projects
West Marin Water Cap¡tal Projects
Oceana Mlarin Sewer Capital Pro.lects

CIP SUMMARY.GROSS EXPENDITURES

N Capital Projects

274100

Current Month

000

FYTÐ Total

PlmGross

7o/o

34%
I OaO/

0
74,645
J/ I4J

120,000
1 230.000

.360,727
8,245

416,81 1

0008$1

Novato Recycled Water Capítal Projects
West Marin Water CaPital Projects
Oceana Marin Sewer Capital Projects

CIP SUMMARY-NET ËXPENDITURES:
Capitai Projects

000tt1433t
ilNet Ca

7o/o

34o/o

182%

Current Month FYTÐ Total

8,245
416 ,8i 1

100 270

'120,000

1,230,000
0

74 645

CONSUI-T¡NG SERVIGESiSTUDIES

70 000 65 573 427

,s4



North Marin Water District
Financial Statement Notes

North ftflari¡r Water District Fir"laneüal Statement Notes
Notel -RestrictedGash

Connecfion Fee Fund: Cash available from.collection of Connection Fees. The fee is charged to
developers based upon the estimate of cost necessary to construct capacity to serve the new
development. These funds are restricted by law for expansion of the water or sewer facilities within the

service area where the development occurs. Funds are disbursed from the Connection Fee Reserve as

expenditures are incurred to increase system capacity to serve new development. The fund balance
accrues interest monthly.

Wohler Pipeline FinancinE Fund: ln December 2002 the Sonoma County Water Agency sold $6.8
million (par) of 3O-year revenue boncls to finance the Wohler to Forestville Pipeline. NMWD's share of the
debt is $844,050 ($6,800,000 X 11.2 I 90.4). ln January 2003 the District established this designated cash
and corresponding reserve account and transferred $844,050 of FRC money into the fund. The Wohler
Pipeline Financing Fund is credited with interest monthly. The restricted cash Wohler Pipeline Financing
Fund account and the related reserve account have been closed as of 10/31/18.

C¡¡llector #6 Financing Fund: The Sononra County Water Agency received a $í5.8 million State
Revolving Fund loan commitment at an interest rate of 2.Bo/o repayable over 20 years for construction of
Collector#6. NMWD's share of Collector#6 is $'1,950,000 ($15,800,000 X 11.2 190,4).ln January 2003
the District established this designated cash and corresponding reserve account and transferred

$1,950,000 of FRC money into the fund. The Collector #ô Financing Fund is credited with interest
monthly. The restricted cash Collector #6 Financing Fund account and the related reserve account have
been closed as of 10/31/18.

Bank of Marin Project Funcl: The District received an $B million loan from the Bank of Marin in October
2011 to fund the Aqueduct Energy Efficiency Project. The 2O-year, 3.54% annual percentage rate loan

requires monthly payments of $46,067 and will be fully amortized on 1012712031. ln June 2012 the Board

authorized reallocating $1 million of this loan to West Marin Water to repay Novato Water $223,000 owed
for previous loans to fund Lorrg Range lmprovement Projects and the remainder to fund the Solids
Handling Facility at the Point Reyes Water Treatment Plant. The unexpended fund balance accrues
interest monthly.

Deer lsland RWF Replacement Fund: The State Revolving Fund (SRF) loan agreement required the
District to agree to establish and maintain a Water Recycling Capital Reserve Fund (WRCRF) for the
expansion, major repair, or replacement of the Deer lsland Recycled Water Treatment Plant. The
WRCRF is maintained in compliance with the "Policy for lmplementing the State Revolving fund for
Construction of Wastewater Treatment Facilities" in effect at the time the agreement was signed by the

District. The September 2003 Recycled Water Master Plan prepared by Nute Engineering recommended
limiting the reserve to fund replacement of the RWF electrical and mechanical equipmetrt (including

transmission pumps) as they wear out. The cost of said equipment was $1,483,000 whieh, at Nute's
recommended 6% interest rate factor arrd 25-year life, renders an annual funding requirement $115,000.
The fund balance accrues interest monthly.

Recycled Water Capital Replacement and Expansion Fund: The 2011 lnteragency Agreements for
Recycled Water between NSD, LGVSD & NMWD require that any payments to the Distributor (NMWD)

by the End User (Consumers) in excess of actual costs (marginal payments) shall be deposited in this
funrl. Operation and Maintenance Costs are defined as the actual cost of: labor (including general and

administrative overhead plus tools and supplies normally applied), equipment and vehicle charges,
consumables (such as chemicals and electrical power), and spare parts and/or replaced components
necessary to reliably treat and deliver recycled water to the End Users. Operation and Maintenance
Costs do not include costs for major capital replacement or process changes. A payment of $305,711
was made to Novato Sanitary District in December 2019 for the Clearwell lmprovement Project.

Tax Receipts held in Marin County Treasury: Balance of tax proceeds collected and disbursed by the

County of Marin for repayment of the Olema (OL-2) general obligation bond debt. The County credits

interest to these funds quarterly.
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Financial Staiement Notes

STp SRF Reserve Fund - Marin County Treasury: The 2004 Stafford Treatment Plant State Revolving

Furrd (SRF) loan agreement requires the District to build a Reserve Fund equal to one year of payments

$l,Oì+,qZ4l in the Marin County Treasury during the first ten years of the 2O-year repayment period.

Èvery January 1 and July 1, commencing January 1,2A10, the District deposits with the County '10% of

the semi-annual SRF payment This Reserve Fund was fully funded at 6/30/19. The County credits the

fund with interest quarteily, which is applied to the semi-annual payments, and will use the Reserve to

pay the last 2 semi-annual SRF loan payments.

RWS North/South SRF Reserve Fund: The State Water Resource Control Board Agreements for the

seven Clean Water State Revolving FunrJ Loans made for expansion of the Recycled Water System

distribution system require that the District establish a reserve fund equal to one year's debt service

($614,299) prior to the construction completion date.

R.WS Central SRF Reserve Fund: The State Water Resource Control Board Agreement for the Clean

Water State Revolving Fund Loan made for expansion of the Recycled Water System distribution system

requires that the District establish a reserve fund equal to one year's debt service ($275,773) prior to the

construction completion date.

Note 2 - Des nafed Gash

Liability Gontingency Fund: Established in 1986 when the District first elected to self-insure its general

liability r¡st. fh¡J reserve was funded with $1 million initially and $200,000 annually thereafter until it

reached a balance of g2 million. ln FYSB the West Marin Water System was included in the fund and

built-up a proportional reserve of $74,000 over several years. Commencing FY93, $1 million of the

reserve was ma<je available to fund loans to eligible employees under the District's Employer Assisted

Housing Program. ln August 2008, $500,000 was transferred into this reserve from the Self-lnsured

Workers' Compensation Fund and made available to fund Ënrployer Assisted Housing Program loans.

Curren¡y there is $525,000 in Employer Assistecl Housing Loans outstanding (see Note 3). ln March

2005, $é52,400 was expended from the fund to purchase a home at 25 Giacomini Road in Point Reyes

Station. The home is currently rented. ln 2006, $8,885 was added from the sale of surplus property in

West Marin. The fund balance does not accrue interest.

Self-lnsured Workers' Compensation Fund: Commencing July 20'11, the District began self-insuring its

workers' compensation liabiliiy. The savings accrued through self-irrsuring the liability is reserved in this

fund for posuibl" future claims expense. The District carries a workers' compensation excess policy for

claims that exceed $1,000,000.

Retiree Medical Benefits Fund: NMWD pays the cost of health insurance for retirees between the ages

of 55 and 65 and spouse under any group plan offered by CaIPERS. The retiree must be at least 55 and

have a minimum of 12 years (for emþloyees hired on or before September 30, 2018) and a minimum of

20 years (for employees hired after September 30,2018) of NMWD service at the date of retirement.

NMWD's contribution toward the chosen plan rs capped in the same manner as all other NMWD

employees in the same class. Coverage terminates for the spouse when the spouse becomes eligible for

Medicåre, or for both the retiree and spouse when the retiree becomes eligible for Medicare. When the

retiree or spouse becomes eligible for Medicare, NMWD pays up to the couple annuitant rate, which is

capped at lig,A¡O per year ($319/montn). ln August 2003, NMWD transferred $2.55 million ($2.3 million

foi current retirees ptuê $zso,O00 for future retirees) from unrestricted cash into a reserve to fund this

obligation. ln 2010 the Board directed staff to add $'1,500 per employee annually as a payroll overhead to

acciue and accelerate amortization of this liability. The accrual is maintained as a Long-Term Liability

entifled Totat OpEB Liability. The totat OPËB Liahrility has a balance of $4.5M. ln 2017 an Actuarial

Analysis calculated NMWD'é total actuarial liability at $5.6 milli,on. The Retiree Medical Benefits cash fund

earnä int"rest monthly. Accounting Standards require that the $5.6M reserve by fully funded in 20 years.

Drought Contingency (Rate Stabilization) Fund: ln August 2008, the Board directed staff to establish

this rãserve witn $tes,Ob0 from the Self-lnsured Workers'Compensation Fund for ihe Novato district to

draw upon durirrg dry years. A threshold of 3.2 billion gallons of potable consumption was established as

a benchmark for 'nórmal' years. During any fiscal year that water sales volume exceeds 3.28G, the

incremental revenue generäted is deposited into the Drought Contingency Reserve. ln those years when

sales volume falls below the benchmark, funds are withdrawn from the reserve to maintain the budgeted
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revenue forecast. The goal is to louild a reserve equal to 20% (currently $2,500,000) of budgeted annual
water commodity sales. ln FY09 $50,335 was added to the reserve. The fund was fully depleted in FY10.

Maintenance Accrual Fund: Ëstablishecl in FY91 to provide a source of maintenance money for
replacement of treatment, storage, transmission and distribution facilities as they wear out. The annual
contribution from operating reserves was initially $200,000. Net polybutylene claim settlement proceeds

of $671,060 were closed into the fund in FY93. ln FY94 the annual contribution was reduced to $100,000.
The District's goal is to build a reserve equal to 10% of the net book value of Novato's existing plant,

currently $7.0M. Funds are borrowed from the Maintenance Accrual Fund to offset the shortfall in

unrestricted Cash & lnvestments. The fund balance does not accrue interest.

Operating Reserve Fund: This reserve, comprised of four months of budgeted operating expenditures
(less depreciation) as recommended by the District's financial advisors, serves to ensure adequate
working capital for operating, capital, and unanticipated cash flow needs that arise during the year. Funds
are borrowed from the operating Reserve Fund to offset the shortfall in unrestricted Cash & lnvestments.
The fund balance does not accrue interest.

Note 3 - Ëm Loans

Housing Loans: The District's Employer Assisted Housing Program allows up to $300,000 to be loaned
to an employee for a period of up to 15 years for the purchase of a home within the District service
territory that will enable the employee to respond rapidly to emergencies affecting the operation of the
District. Repayment is due upon sale, termination of employment, or other event as described in the
Program. lnterest on the loan is contingent upon and directly proportional to the appreciation in value
occurring on the purchased property. There are two employee-housing loans currently outstanding
totaling $525,000: a $250,000|oan dated March 20'15, and a $275,000loan dated June 2018.

Note 4 - Other Term Receivables

The District entered into a temporary water service agreement with Black Point Golf Links in 1999 to
provide potable water for StoneTree Golf Course until recycled water was available. ln 2006 the District
received a $4.3 million 20-year 2.4o/o SRF loan to finance the Deer lsland Recycled Water project, and

Black Point Partners agreed to pay the District $3,612,640 in bimonthly payments of $41 ,762 at2A%
coinciding with StoneTree's water service payments. Bay Club took over ownership of StoneTree in 2014
and paid the loan in full in October 20'19.

ln 20'15 the District entered into an agreement with Marin Country Club for their share of the pipeline

extension to provide recycled water for the Marin Country Club Golf Course. ln 2016 the District received
a $6.6 million 3O-year 1.0% SRF loan to finance the Recycled WaterCentral project, and Marin Country
Club agreed to pay the District $1,265,295 in bimonthly payments of $8,142 at 1.0% over 30 years for
their share of the pipeline extension. Marin Country Clulr also agreed to pay $430,463 of the District's
local share of the project in bimonthly payments of $8,242 over 10 years aT2.B%, which is the Novato
Potable Fund's weighted average cost of debt. The payments will coincide with Marin Country Club's
water service payments. Marin Country Club paid the 10 year loan in full in December 2018. The final
payment from Marin Country Club for the 30 year loan is due in November 2047.
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Note 5 - Denreciation

Assets are assigned a useful life basecj on consultations with the District Chief Engineer and a survey of
other water agencies. Depreciation in computed on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful life of
the various classes of property as follows:

Facllily Life (Years)

Aqueduct... 150

Dam............ 100

Buildings & St¡uctures... 40

Mains... 50

Pumping Equipment... 25

Water Treatment Equìpment.. 20

Storage & Transmission (16"+) Facilities...,........ 50

Distribution Facilities (includes Pump Stations) . . . 50

Office, Laboratory, Construction & Shop Tools & Equipment... 10

Vehicles 1 ton or greatel .. ... 1 0

All other vehicles....,. 5

Sewer Mains.,. 40

Sewer Pumps. 10

Note 6 - Capitalizatiqx Pslisy
The Government F¡nance Officers Association Guide for State and Local Governmenfs recommends that
a cap¡tal¡zation policy incorporate a m¡nìmum threshold of $5,000 and an estimated useful life of at least
two years. lt also cautions that federal grant and loan requirements prevent the use of capitalization
thresholds in excess of $5,000. Thus NMWD's capitalization threshold is $5,000.

NoteT-BondE Loan Servicino Sclredule for Fiseal Year 20't 9-2020

FY2O
6t30t20

Service Area Descr¡ptiorì
lssue
Date Rate

Original
Amourìt

Payment
Due

Final
Pmt

lnterest
Expense

Principal Outstanding
Paid Balance

1 Novato

2 Novato

3 Novato

3 RWTP

4 RW North

5 R\tV South

6 RW Central

SRF Loan
STP

Bank
Loan

Marin

Chase
Loan

Bank

SRF Loan

SRF Loans (4)

SRF Loans (3)

SRF Loan

Bank
Loan

Marin

$47,243

$82,086

$88,890

$69,1 25

$226,124

$1 99,807

$243,517

51,742,339

$3,157,142

$4,040,446

s6.705.816

2004 2.39o/o $16,528,850 711 & 111

2011 3.54Yo $7,000,000 ?-Tthlmo

2018 2.69% $4,600,000 3t1 &911

7t1t29 $215,953 $828,522 $8,413,056

10t27t31 $160,674 $321,368 $4,523,948

3t1t33 $117,284 $260 .000 s4.1 00.000

Novato Total $493'91 1 $1'409'890 $17,037,004

2006

201 3

2013

2016

2.4o/o

2.6%

2.2%

1.OTo

$4,302,5ti0

$4,375,605

$5,361,952

$7,1 30,503

6120 6119t27

Var¡es Varie$

Varies Varies

12t19 12131147

Recycled Water Total

$1,000,000 27tt'lt¡o 10127131

West Marin Water Total

9287 ,344 $876,096 $15,214,031

$23,s85 $47,173 $663,7617 WM Water 2012 3 54%

$23,585 947J73 $663,761

FY20 Total $804,840 $2,333,15S $32,914,736

ln April 2004 the California State Department of Water Resources approved a 2.39% 2O-year loan for
reconstruction of the Stafforcl Water Treatment Plant. The project was completed in FY09 with repair
of the Outlet Tower Sluìce Gate. lnterest paid during construction totaled $1,636,378. The loan

covenants require an annual reserve fund contribution of fi104,447 (10% of the annual debt service
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obligation) be deposited into the Marin County Treasury during each of the first ten years of the

repãyrnent period. Debt service rs fundecl 25o/o by Facility Reserve Charges. The first payment was

made in December 2009.

2. ln October 2011 Bank of Marin made a 2o-year 3.54o/o (APR) loan of $B million to fund the District's

share of tlre Aqueduct Energy Efficiency Project. See Note 15 below, and note to loan I above.

3. ln March 2018 Chase Bank made a 15-year 2.69% (APR) loan of $4.6 million to fund the District's

Automated Meter lnformation system Project.

4. ln August 2006 the California State Department of Water Resources approved a 2.4% 2o-year loan of

$4,264,545 for construction of the Deer lsland Recycted Water Facility. With the addition of $38,015

in Construction Period lnterest, the loan principal totaled $4,302,560. The project was completed in

June 2007, and the first payment was made June 19' 2008.

5. ln July 2011 the California State Department of Water Resources approved a series of four 2.6% 20-

ye"¡" loun" which totaled $4,375,605 for the Recycled Water North Service Area Expansion Project.

Îhe projects were completed on October 31,2012, and the first payment was made in November of

2012.

6. ln March 201'2 the California State Department of Water Resources approved a series of three 2.2o/o

2g-year loans totaling $5,361,952 for the Recycled Water South Service Area Expansion Project. The

projects were complãted on September 4, 2013, and the first payment was made in December of

2013.

7. ln May 2016 the California State Department of Water Resources approved a 1.0% 30-year loan of

$7, j 30,503 for the Recycled Water Central Service Area Expansion. The project will be completed in

December 2017 , and the first payment will be made December 31, 2018.

B. The Paradise Ranch Estates private water system was created by David Adams and Sons in 1952 to

provide water to 85 homes in the PRË subdivision located north of lnverness Park. Problems with

water quality and quantity developed and in 1969 the Marin County Health Department issued a boil-

water order to all customers of the company. ln 1972 the County declared a moratorium on issuance

of building permits. A suit by property owners resulted in an agreement reached in Marin Superior

Court in táte t gZS directing Adams to finance a District feasibility study for the takeover of the system.

This culminated in formation of lmprovement District PRE-1 and an election authorizing issue of

$240,000 of 5o/o 40-year revenue bonds, which, in conjunction with a $720,000 Farmers Home

Administration grant, financed system rehabilitation. Service was provided ftom the Point Reyes

System by instãllation of an additional well, expansion of the treatment plant, and a 6-inch pipeline

cónnection at the lnverness Park pump station extending 1.6 miles along Sir Francis Drake Boulevard

to the newly reconstructed Paradise Ranch Ëstates distribution system. On 4l22l90 the USDA

purchased the revenue bond issue in its entirety.

g. ln 1 gB1 work commenced on rehabilitating the Point Reyes lnverness Park water system. 18,865 feet

of pipeline was either replacetj or installed, a 300,O00-gallon tank was added irr Point Reyes Station

and a '100,000-gallon tank was adcjed in lnverness Park. Total cost of these improvements was

$820,01 S. A72% grant combined with a $217,800 5o/o  }-year revenue bond acquirecl 8/28/81 by the

Farmers Home Administration financed the project.

10. ln June 2012the Board authorized reallocating $1 million of tlre Bank of Marin loan to West Marin

Water to repay Novato Water $223,000 owed for loans to fund Long Range lmprovement Projects

and the remainder to fund the Solids l-landling Facility at the Point Reyes Water Treatment Plant

See note to loan 2 above.

hlofe I - U emnlovn'¡ent lns Fleserve

NMWD uses the "Reimbursable Method" of paying for Unemployment Costs. Under this method, the

District reimburses the State Employment Development Department for all unemployment benefits paid

on our behalf. The reserve is maintained at an amount equal to the higher of the average claim amount

paid over the last 5 years or 52 times the maximum weekly benefit amount (currently $450 x 52 =

$23,400)

32



North Marin Water District
Financial Statement Notes

Note I - Pav_roll Benefits

payroll Benefits payable includes payroll taxes; vacation, sick, and holiday leave; Section 125 payments,

cañcer, long term care and disability insurance premiums; union dues; and employee benefit fund.

Note 10 - loterest PolicY on lntqr-Dlstrict Loans

ln the event an improvement district expends all of its Undesignated Funds, it shall borrow funds from that

improvement distr-ict's Board Designated Fund reserves to meet ongoing requirements. ln the event an

improvement district expends all of its Board Desigrrated Fund reserves, it may receive a loan from the

Novato lmproveme¡t District in an amount sufficient to meet its ongoing requirements. Restricted Funds

shall not be used to finance ongoing normal operating expenses.

No interest shall be paid by an improvement district on funds borrowed from that improvement district's

Board Designated Fund reserues. lnterest on loans from the Novato lmprovement District shall be paid by

the recipienl district to the Novato district based upon the outstanding loan balance at the close of the

previous accounting period. lnterestshall be calculated atthe higherof: 1. The weighted average interest

rate of Novato impiovement district debt(2.780/" at 6/30/18); or 2.The average interest rate earned on the

District treasury since the close of the previous accounting period; plus $50 per month.

Note 11 - Budoet Auq ns

Note 12 - Prior Period Adiustnent

NoteJ L- Exp len atio n gf F i¡ a nc-lal -Statem ent Gq m po.ne¡ts

The District's financial statement is comprised of four components: 1) Statement of Net Position,2)
Sources and Uses of Funds Statement - All Service Areas Combined, 3) lncome Statement and Cash

Flow by Service Area, and 4) Notes to the Financial Statements. This report also contains other

supplementary information in addition to the basic financial statements themselves.

The Statement of Net Position (page 4) reports the District's assets and liabilities and provides

information about the nature ancJ amount of investments in resources (assets) and the obligations to the

District's creditors (liabilities). The difference between assets and liabilities is reported as nef position.

Over time, increases or decreases in the fund balance may serve as a useful indicator of whether the

financial position of the District is improving or deteriorating

The Sources and Uses of Funds $tatement - All Service Areas Combined (page B) compares fiscal

year-to-date performance against the Board approved annual budget - presented in the adopted budget

iormat. This Sources and Uses of Funds Statement varies from the income statement in that it includes

capital expenditures, debt principal repayment, connection fee revenue, and cash infusions from debt

issuance.

The lncome Statement and Cash Flow by Service Area (page 9) presents the net income (loss) for the

fiscai year-to-clate (FYTD) period for each of the District's four service areas. The income and expenses

on thiä report are presented in conformity with Generally Accepted Accounting Principles (GAAP) and

comply *'th Goue*mental Accounting Standards Board pronouncements. Accordingly, all income ¿nd

expenles are reported as soon as the underlying event giving rise to the change occurs, regardless of the

timing of related cash flows. This statement measures the success of each service area's operations and

can be used to determine whether the service area has successfully recovered all costs through user fees

and other charges.

Also included at the bottom of page 9 is a statement of Cash Flow by Service Area. The primary purpose

of this statement is to reconcile in an informative manner the difference between the net income/(loss) for

period of each service area with the resultant change in cash balance that occurred over the same period.

Notes to the Financial Statements (page 31)provide a summary of significant accounting policies and

assumptions and other information of value to the financial statement reader.

Other Supplementary lnformation includes Detail lncome Statements presented in accordance with

GAAp for'each of the four service areas (pages 10, 14, 16, 19). I'hese statements present income and

expenditures in close detail for further analysis. Other supplementary schedules of note include the
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Vehicle Ëleet Analysis (page 25), Equipment Expenditures (page 22) and Capital lmprovement Project

Expenditures (page 27), which show outlays to date, compared with budget authority.

Note l4 -Gonn n Fee Transfers fronn Novato Water To Recvcled Water

The following Connection Fee (FRC) reserve amounts have been transferred to the Recycled Water fund

Expansion Local Share SRF RWF Expartsion

Loan SRFLoan

Tra nsfe r

ctP Total Executed

r

North South Central NBWRA

EIPGL Loan
Repayment

FYOT

FYOS

FYO9

FY1 O

FY1 1

FY12

FYl 3

FY1 4

FYl 5

FYl 6

FY1 7

FY18

FY1 9

FY2O

$.t gg,osgo

$zgs,¿28=

$236,291

$o

$29,725

$50,478

$1 50,455

$75,1 98

$ l gs,gr go

s1 l s,aego

$315,023

$63,035

$sa,zo3t

$102,842

$1 g¿,630o

$38,908

$0,966

$0

$?_2,795

$22,755

$22,795

$22,755

$22.795

922,795

$22,795

$22,795

$22,795

$22,795

$22,795

$22,795

$o

$265,sooo

$123,szs* $¿,024=

$r z,sosu {s+,oz+f
$0 $oo,z2gu

$soz,s2¿*

$s,ozl,slzo
{sz,r oa.zss}

$5'415

6464,StZu

$soo,s2g*

$o r +,299=

$61 4,2g90

$6r4,29go

$o 1 ¿,zgg=

$890,072

$254,134 ($1 ,046

$29,725* 
$ls,z73

9173,250

$231 ,652

$ 1 56,1 14

$637,656

$802,390

$'1,550,200

$688,916

$806,664

$so,6B7' $1,230,s40

$5,747,513
($1,248,922)

$'133,659

$1.970,400

$1,550,200

$ô88,910

$806,664

$1,230,940

$5,7 47 ,513
(ï1,248,922)

$1 33,ô59

$1 ,175,098
($z,oaaf

$ao2,39oo

$1,550,200

$688,916

$806,664

$1,230,940

$5,747,513
(91,248,922)

V

$1 $785

$r,006,589 $3 75',t ç273 s4,566,503 $10,093,s34 $1

Note'15 *Debt Coveraoe Ratio

Debt Service Coverage Ratio is the ratio of net income/(loss) plus interest expense, depreciation, and

connection fee revenue for the fiscal year to the sum of the fiscal year's principal and interest payments

on the District's total debt.

FY16 FY'17 FY18 FY19 FY20

Net lncome/(Loss)

Depreciation

lnterest Expense

Connection Ëees

Total Available For Debt Service

$91 ,719

$3,286,353

$807,035

$278,690

$597,600

$3,416,507

$757,935

$1,860,520

$3,434,069

$833,197

$1,455,400

$1 ,159,000

$3,528,000

$850,000

$733,000

$1,830,000

$3,486,000

$806,000

$340,000$ 1,034,585

64,463,797 $5,806,627 $7,583,186 $6,270,000 $6,462,000

AnnualDebtService $2,528,938 $2,527,021 $2,201,451 $3,129,000 $3'139'000

Debt Service Coverage R"tio : 1.77, -?.!!-- 3,49 Z'QL 2
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MEMORANDUM

Item #7

May 1 ,2020To:

From:

Subject

Board of Directors

Drew Mclntyre, General Manager/Acting Chief Enginee

Water Service Agreement -Starbucks,7145 Redwood Blvd, Novato,
APN: 140-071-46
r:\foldsrs by job no\2800 jobs\2840 starbucks rêdwood\board details\2840 memo.doc

RECOMMENDED AGTION: The Board approve authorization of this agreement

FINANCIAL IMPACT: None: Developer Funded

The project is located at7145 Redwood Blvd (see attached map). The Starbucks tenant

improvement plans propose a remodel of the existing KFC drive through. Construction will include a

new fire service.

Water facilities required for this project include 40 feet of 4-inch PVC pipe, one below grade

4-inch ÐCDA fire service and a 1.S-inch RPP backflow prevention device on the existing 1-inch

domestic service. Normal pressure Zone l water will continue to be provided for the project.

Water service to the aforementioned parcel was established in 1989 with a 1-inch meter and

1 EDU entitlement. Total water demand estimated for the project is 3 Equivalent Dwelling Units

(EDUs). Since this parcel has a credit for 1 EDU the project will pay Facilities Reserve Charges

(FRCs) for 2 EDUs.

Sewer service is currently provided by the Novato Sanitary District.

Environmental Document Review

The project is categorically exempt from California Environmental Quality Act (CEaA)

pursuant to CEQA Guidelines Section 15301 , Existing Facilities.

RECOMMENDATION:

That the Board approve authorization of this agreement.

Approved by

Date s
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RESOLUTION NO.20-
AUTHORIZATION OF EXECUTION

OF
WATER SERVICE FACILITIES CONSTRUCTION AGREEMENT

WITH
STARBUCKS - REDWOOD BOULEVARD

BE lT RESOLVED by the Board of Directors of NORTH MARIN WATER DISTRICT that the

President and Secretary of this District be and they hereby are authorized and directed for and on

behalf of this District to execute that ceñain water service facilities construction agreement between

this District and Novato Fair Shopping Center, LLC, a limited liability company, providing for the

installation of water distribution facilities to provide domestic water service to that certain real

property known as 7145 Redwood Boulevard, Novato, Marin County Assessor's Parcel Number

1 40-07 1-46, NOVATO, CALTFORN tA

I hereby certify that the foregoing is a true and complete copy of a resolution duly and

regularly adopted by the Board of Directors of NORTH MARIN WATER DISTRICT at a regular

meeting of said Board held on the 5th day of May, 2020, by the following vote:

AYES:

NOES:

ABSENT:

ABSTAINED

(sEAL) Theresa Kehoe, Secretary
Norlh Marin Water District

r:\folders by job no\2800 jobs\2840 starbucks redwood\2840 resolution.doc



PART ONE
WATER SERVICE FACILITIES CONSTRUCTION AGREEMENT

FOR
STARBUCKS - REDWOOD BOULEVARD

THIS AGREEMENT, which consists of this Part One and Part Two, Standard Provisions,

attachedheretoandaparthereof,ismadeandenteredintoaSof-,2020,
by and between NORTH MARIN WATER DISTRICT, herein called "District," and , An Limited

Company, herein called "Applicant."

WHEREAS, the Applicant, pursuant to District Regulation 1, the State of California

Subdivision Map Act and all applicable ordinances of the City of Novato and/or the County of Marin,

has pending before the City or County a conditionally approved Tentative Subdivision Map, Precise

Development Plan, Tentative Parcel Map or other land use application for the real property in the

District commonly known as Marin County Assessor's Parcel Number 140-071-46 and the project

known as STARBUCKS REDWOOD BOULEVARD, consisting of one (1) lot for commercial

development; and

WHEREAS, prior to final approval by the City or County of a Subdivision Map, Precise

Development Plan, Parcel Map or other land use application and recording of a final map for the

project, the Applicant shall enter into an agreement with the District and complete financial

arrangements for water service to each lot, unit or parcel of the project; and

WHEREAS, the Applicant is the owner of real property in the District commonly known as

7145 Redwood Boulevard, Novato (Marin County Assessor's Parcel 140-071-46); and

WHEREAS, a 1-inch water service (#15088) was established in 1989 at 7145 Redwood Blvd

with an entitlement at 1 EDU; and,

WHEREAS, the current project total water demand is 3 EDUs and Facilities Reserve Charges

for 2 EDUs will be collected after applying credit for 1 EDU paid previously; and

NOW THEREFORE the parties hereto agree as follows:

1. The Applicant hereby applies to the District for water service to said real property and

project and shall comply with and be bound by all terms and conditions of this agreement, the District's

regulations, standards and specifications and shall construct or cause to be constructed the water

facilities required by the District to provide water service to the real property and project. Upon

r:\folders by job no\2800 jobs\2840 slarbucks redwood\2840 pârt 1 agreement.doc
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acceptance of the completed water facilities, the District shall provide water service to said real

properly and project in accordance with its regulations from time to time in effect.

2. Prior to the District issuing written certification to the City, County or State that financial

arrangements have been made for construction of the required water facilities, the Applicant shall

complete such arrangements with the District in accordance with Section 5 of this agreement.

3. Prior to release or delivery of any materials by the District or scheduling of either

construction inspection or installation of the facilities by the District, the Applicant shall:

a. deliver to the District vellum or mylar prints of any revised utility plans approved by

the City or County to enable the District to determine if any revisions to the final water facilities

construction drawings are required. The proposed facilities to be installed are shown on Drawing No.

12840.0018, entitled, "STARBUCKS - REDWOOD BOULEVARD", a copy of which is attached,

marked Exhibit "8", and made a part hereof. (For purposes of recording, Exhibit "4" is not attached but

is on file in the office of the District.)

b. grant or cause to be granted to the District without cost and in form satisfactory to the

District all easements and rights of way shown on Exhibit "8" or otherwise required by the District for

the facilities.

c. deliver to the District a written construction schedule to provide for timely withdrawal

of guaranteed funds for ordering of materials to be furnished by the District and scheduling of either

construction inspection or construction pursuant to Section 5 hereof.

4. Except for fire service, new water service shall be limited to the number and size of

services for which lnitial Charges are paid pursuant to this agreement. lnitial Charges for new

services, estimated District costs and estimated applicant installation costs are as follows:

lnitial Charges
Metef ChafgeS (Domestic) (lncluded in Estimated District costs)

Metef ChafgeS (Fire Service) (lncluded in Estimate District Costs)

Reimbursement Fund Charge - (Domestic)

Facilities Reserve Charges (3 EDUs)

Credit for Existing Services ($28,600 FRC & $1,oss RFc)

Subtotal - lnitial Charges... $ 57,200.00

Estimated District Costs

Zero 1-inch @
One S/8-inch @

One 1-inch @
Three @

One @

$ 000
$ 0.00
$ 1,055.00
$ 28,600.00
$<29,655.00>

$ 0.00
$ 0.00
$ 1,055.00
$ 85,800.00

$ <29,6sb.oot

$ 8,154.00
$ 24,356.00
$ 1,588.00
$ 4,388.00

Pipe, Fittings & Appurtenances
District Construction Labor......
Engineering & lnspection... ... ..
Bulk Materials... .

Subtotal -Estimated District Costs......

r:\folders by job no\2800 jobs\2840 starbucks redwood\2840 parl 1 agreement.doc
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Estimated Applicant lnstallation Costs
lnstallation Labor.
Contractor Furnished - Pipe Fittings & Appurtenances
Bulk Materials... .

$
$
$

$

0.00
0.00
0.00

Subtotal- Estimated Applicant lnstallation Costs 0.00

TOTAL ESTIMATED WATER FACILITIES COSTS $ 95,686.00

(Bulk materials are such items as crushed rock, imported backfill, concrete, reinforcing steel, paving

materials, and the like, which are to be furnished by the contractor performing the work.)

5. Financial Arrangements to be made by the Applicant shall consist of the following

lnitial Charqes and Estimated District Costs

The Applicant shall either pay to the District or provide a two (2) year irrevocable letter of

credit in form satisfactory to the District and payable at sight at a financial institution in the Novato area

the sum of lnitial Charges and Estimated District Costs as set forth in Section 4 hereof in the amount of

$95,686. lf the Applicant provides the two (2) year irrevocable letter of credit, the District shall

immediately draw down lnitial Charges and shall draw upon the remaining funds guaranteed by the

letter at any time the District deems appropriate to recover the Estimated District Costs which normally

will be at least thirly (30) days prior to the anticipated start of construction for the ordering of materials

to be furnished by the District.

Estimated lnstallation Costs

lnstallation By District: Due to the proprietary nature of construction required to install

said facilities, the District reserves the right to install the facilities utilizing District construction forces.

The Applicant shall either pay to the District the total Estimated Water Facilities Costs set forth in

Section 4 hereof in the amount of $95,686 or shall include such amount in the irrevocable letter of

credit provided for the lnitial Charges and Estimated District Costs set forth first above. The District

shall draw upon installation funds guaranteed by the letter at any time the District deems appropriate

which normally will be at least thirly (30) days prior to the anticipated start of construction.

Whenever an irrevocable letter of credit is required by this agreement, the Applicant may

substitute a certificate of deposit at a financial institution in the Novato area provided the certificate

may be cashed at sight by the District at any time.

6. Water service through the facilities to be installed pursuant to this agreement will not be

furnished to any building unless the building is connected to a public sewer system or to a waste water

r:\folders by job no\2800 jobs\2840 starbucks redwood\2840 part 1 agreement.doc
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disposal system approved by all governmental agencies having regulatory jurisdiction. This restriction

shall not apply to temporary water service during construction.

7. New construction in the District's Novato service area is required to be equipped with high

efficiency water conserving equipment and landscaping specified in Regulation 15 sections e. and f.

8. Backflow prevention device(s) shall be installed by others (owner) as shown in Drawing

No. 1.2840.001 and a initial passing test record acceptable to the District shall be provided to the

District. Applicant or Owner agrees to pay bi-monthly service charges related to backflow prevention

device(s) per NMWD regulations 6 and 54.

9. All estimated costs set forth in this agreement shall be subject to periodic review and

revision at the District's discretion. ln the event the Applicant has not completed financial

arrangements with the District in accordance with Section 5 hereof prior to expiration of six (6) months

from the date of this agreement, all lnitial Charges and estimated costs set forth in Section 4 hereof

shall be revised to reflect then current District charges and estimates. ln the event the Applicant has

not secured final land use approval for the project from the City of Novato or County of Marin, recorded

a final map and diligently commenced construction of improvements required by those agencies and

the District prior to expiration of one (1) year from the date of this agreement, the District may, at its

option, either retract financial certifications issued to City, County and State agencies and terminate

this agreement or require amendment of this agreement and review of all lnitial Charges and estimated

costs contained herein. The Applicant shall pay any balance due upon demand or furnish a guarantee

of such payment satisfactory to the District.

10. All extensions of time granted by the City of Novato or the County of Marin for the

Applicant to comply with conditions of land use approval or to construct improvements pursuant to a

subdivision improvement agreement shall require concurrent extensions of this agreement and shall be

cause for review and revision of all lnitial Charges and estimated costs set forlh in Section 4 hereof.

The Applicant shall apply to the District for extension of this agreement prior to approval of the

Applicant's requests for such extensions by either the City of Novato or the County of Marin.

11. This agreement shall bind and benefit the successors and assigns of the parties hereto;

however, this agreement shall not be assigned by the Applicant without the prior written consent of the

District. Assignment shall be made only by a separate document prepared by the District at the

Applicant's written request,

r:\folders by job no\2800 jobs\2840 starbucks redwood\2840 part 1 agreement.doc
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ATTEST

NORTH MARIN WATER DISTRICT
"District"

Michael H. Joly, President

NOVATO FAIR SHOPPING CENTER LLC
A Limited Liability Company

"Applicant"

Theresa Kehoe, Secretary

(sEAL)

(sEAL)

NOTES

Jason Lee, General Counsel

lf the Applicant executing this agreement is a corporation, a certified copy of the
bylaws or resolutions of the Board of Directors of said corporation authorizing
designated officers to execute this agreement shall be provided.

This agreement must be executed by the Applicant and delivered to the District
within thirty (30) days after it is authorized by the District's Board of Directors.
lf this agreement is not signed and returned within thirty days, it shall automatically
be withdrawn and void. lf thereafter a new agreement is requested, it shall
incorporate the lnitial Charges (connection fees) and cost estimates then in effect.

-ALL APPLICANT SIGNATURES MUST BE ACKNOWLEDGED BEFORE A NOTARY PUBLIC.

r:\folders by job no\2800 jobs\2840 starbucks redwood\2840 parl 1 agr6emont.doc
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To:

From:

Subject

MEMORANDUM

Board of Directors

Drew Mclntyre, General Manager and Acting Chief Engi

Amend Contract with Environmental Science Associates (

Services Agreement
R:\NON JOB No ISSUES\Consultânts\ESA\Agmt_BOD Memos\Amsnd ESA Genl Cons Serus Agmt BOD memo 5-1 -20.doc

Item #8

May 1 ,2020

Consulting

Amend the General Consulting Services Agreement with ESA

Additional $50,000 (no budget augmentation required)

RECOMMENDED ACTION:

FINANCIAL IMPACT:

On July 16,2019, the Board approved a $40,000 general services consulting agreement

with ESA for environmental engineering/permitting support for various projects, the most

significant of which is San Mateo Tank lnlet/Outlet Pipeline.

A cost breakdown by task for the initial $40,000 contract is summarized as follows:

Starting Contract Amount $40,000

Projects (billings to date)

San Mateo Tank lnleVOutlet

Balance on Contract

<$32,536>

$7,464

San Mateo lnlet/Outlet Pipeline Expenditures

ESA expenditures currently total $32,536 leaving a balance of 97,464 on the contract.

Although the contract amount has not been completely expended, incurred and planned

expenditures for the following tasks make a contract amendment necessary (see Attachment 1):

. Baseline Permitting Services $25,000

o Permit Applications and Suppo¡¡{1) $27,000

. Rare Plant Surveys(1) $ 7,500

o Preparation of Mitigation Monitoring Plan(1) $12,350

Sub Total $71,850

o Other Misc. Permitting Support $ 3.150

Total $75,000
(1) 

New Tasks

RECOMMENDATION

That the Board authorize General Manager to amend the general consulting services

agreement in the amount of $50,000.

Approved by G

Date \)
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'1425 N. McDowell Boulevard

Suite 200

Petaluma, CA 94954

707.795.0900 phorre

707.795.o902 fâx

esâsscrc.cot'l1

April24,2020

Mr. Avram Pearlman, PE
North Marin 'Water District
999 Rush Creek Place
Novato, C1'94945

Subject: Proposal to Prepare a Mitigation and Monitoring Plan for the
San Mateo Tanh Water Transmission Main Replacement Proiect

Dear Mr. Pearlman:

ESA is pleased to present this let1er scope of work to provide environmental support selices to the North Marin
Water District CNT\4WD). Pursuant to the project's requirements from the Regional Water Quality Control Board
(RWQCB) to compensate for temporary impacts to wetlands received via email on 4110120 and your request to

receive a proposal communicated via conference call on 411412020, following is ESA's proposed scope of worlc

to assist NMV/D with the preparation of Mitigation and Monitoring Plan (MMP).

Tashs

Prepare a Mitigation and Monitoring Plan (MNæ). ESA will prepare ahabital mitigation and

monitoring plan (MMP) that will address the mitigation requirements set fofth by the RWQCB. In
summary, the RWQCB requirements are a) to restore temporary impact areas (totaling0.02 acre of
seasonai wetland swale) and b) to conduct an additional 0.001 acre of enhancement activities, as well as

to conduct monitoring and maintenance of both of these areas to ensure mitigation success. ESA will
perform a site visit to establish pre-project conditions at the impact sites for restoration ofproject
temporary impacts and to assess nearby wetlands lor additional enhancement options. The plan will
summarize the pre-project site conditions, identify the location of the proposed enLancement area, and

identify the proposed post-construction revegetation and enhancement activities within the seasonal

wetland temporary impact and enhancement areas. In addition, the plan will summarize the maintenance

and monitoring requirements of these areas in order to meet the mitigation requirements set forlh by the

RWQCB, the associated success criteria, invasive plant and adaptive management options, and the

information required in future monitoring reports. Monitoring and maintenance will iikely need to be

completed annually for a minimum of 3-5 years post-construction. ESA will seek input and approval of
the MMP from Marin County Parlcs (the landowner) per Task 2 (below), prior to finalization and

transmittal to the RV/QCB. The MMP will be submitted to the RV/QCB for their approval, either as a

requirement to complete the 401 Certification process for the project, or as a permit condition required

prior to initiation of construction. This task assumes that Marin County Parks does not object to the plan

or require more than minimal modifications, and that the RV/QCB does not require more than minimal
modifications to the plan and its rnitigation activities, as proposed.

2. Coordinate with Marin County Parks. Based on the project's location on Marin County Parks' (Parks)

lands, ESA will coordinate with Parks' staff to ensure the proposed MMP activities will be consistent

ATTACHMENT 1
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with Parks regulations and objectives, which include specific habitat conservation ancl management

goals. Coordination will include seeking Parks' input zu'rd approval of the proposed plant species to be

utilized (as container plant stock and/or seed mixes, including the possible on-site harvest of plant seeds

and/or or propagules), as well as ensuring the mitigation activities and associated access routes would be

within the NMWD's existing easement(s) or would otherwise be able to be pennitted. This task assumes

atolal of up to 12 hours of ESA coordination with Parks.

ESA proposes to execute this scope of work for a not-to-exceed atnount of $ I 2,3 50.00, shown in detail in Table 1

(attaohed). Upon receipt of a written notice-to-proceed (NTP), we estimate completion of the proposed work in

three to eight weeks. I{owever, we cannot guarantee receipt of RWQCB responses within a desired timeframe as

communicated via conference call on 411412020.

Assumptions: One round of NWMD review and one round of revisions to the MMP are assutned prior to

submitting the MMP to the RWQCB. One round of minor revisions, up to 4 hours at a rate of $160/hour, may

need to be completed by ESA and approved by NMWD after RWQCB review. This scope does not include

support for implementing the MMP.

Please feel free to reach out with any questions. ESA is prepared to comrnence work upon receipt of the NTP

Thanlc you again for the continued opportunity with you and your colleagues at NMWD.

Sincerely,

ù*;jÐ)ø
David D. Davis, AICP
Project Manager/Senior Managing Associate

z\tt: Table 1: Cost Proposal
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Table 1: Cost Proposal San Mateo Tank MMP
ESA Labor Detail and Expense Summary

D. Dav¡s

J. Sutrah¡ra E, Pier Kiell S. BÌshoÞ J. Sanders GraÞhics

il

Task # Task Name/Descr¡ption $ 225 $ 205 $ 190 $ 160 s 125 $ 120

1.0

s 3 1) s ? 055

fotal Hours

s J.500

Percc¡t ol Effon - Lab¡r Hours Onlv
3 s%, 99 5ôl

Etnployee Narnes

Labor Calegory

ESA Labor Cost
Labor Cost Comrnunløtion Fæ

12,290

ESA Non-Labor Erpenses
RelnìbursaHe Erpens¿s

ES^ Ëquipment Usaqe

Subtotal ESA Non-Labor Expenses

Subconsultanl Costs

PROJECT TOTAL s 1 2.350

H.isfôlìlc0l\PRoJEcfsEFo\19rr¡r\D1S?92.01 . NMWO San Mateo I añk Pchrltiru\01 ûojccl M¡nascrtèilt€corc and Fcc\MMP-Bu¡sûIESA L¿lc¡ es( & Pojc.l lolãl
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June 19,2019

Mr. Rocþ Vogler, PE

North Marin Water District
999 Rush Creek Place
Novato, Cl^94945

Subject: Proposal to Provide Permitting Assistance
San Mateo Tank'Water Transmission Main Replacement Project

Dear Mr. Vogler:

ESA is pleased to present this letler scope of work to provide environmental permitting suppor[ serices to the
Norlh Marin Water District G\fMWD). This scope and fee estimate are based on the findings of ESA's
preliminary review of the San Mateo Tank Project in Novato subrnitted to NMWD on May 2.

NMWD has identifìed that the existing water transmission main serving the San Mateo Tank is undersized and
determined that a new 24-inch pipe will address hydrauiic efficiency, and provide operational flexibility and
reliability. NMWD has selected a proposed pipeline alignment that follows San Marin Fire Iìoad to minimize
impacts on sensitive biological resources based on a2015 vegetation suleyl. Installation of this 24-inchpipeline
would require an approximate S0-foot wide construction zone that would cross an existing ephemeral drainage
channel. The pipeline crossing of the channei would be impiemented by either trenching approximately 5- to 7-
feet deep to approximately one foot below the bottom of the pipeline or some form of trenchless pipeline
construction under the channel bed.

Based on the 201 5 vegetation survey - and a cultural resources records search and pedestrian survey conducted in
20 1 7 (which identified no sensitive resoürces)2, NMV/D fìled a CE QA Notice of Exemption for the proj ect on
January 11, 20lB (State Clearinghouse No. 2018018250).

As noted in our findings, which assumed either cut-and-fill or trenchless pipeline construction methods would be

used, neither method would trigger federal Clean 
'Water Act (CWA) Section 404 or 401 permits from the U.S.

Army Corps of lingineers (USACE) or the San Francisco Bay Regional Water Quality Control Board (RWQCB)
because ephemeral channels are non-jurisdictional under the USACE's current regulatory guidelines. I-Iowever,
both construction methods would potentially require authorization lrom the California Department of Fish and
Wildlife (CDFW) and the RWQCB under state regulations (the California Fish and Game Code IIrGC] and the
Porter-Cologne'Water Quality Control Act, respectively) because ephemerai channels are considered Waters of
the State (WOTS). It is assumed that the construction work would be conducted when the channel is dry and there
would be no loss of WOTS or significant impacts to wildlife or Beneficial Uses.

Nonetheless, our findings recommended submitting project notifications to CDFW and RWQCB to request their
review and confìrmation that agency authorizations will not be required, Likewise, potential construction irnpacts
on potential California redJegged frog (CRLF-) dispersal habitat (a federally protected species under the
Endangered Species Act) would not require approval from the U.S. Fish and Wildlife Service (USFWS);

I B"nrotr, SheIIy. Vegelation Survey of the Proposed Nortlt Marin [¡/øter District Pi¡:eline Project Area, Mount Burdell Open Space
Preserve, Marin County Parks. October'2015.

2 GITD, Inc. Memorandum: Norrh Marin Water District San Mateo Tank Pipeline Project - Review for CEQA Exemption.December 12,
2017.
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however, pre-project coordination with this agency was recomtrended for the same reason. Further, the

vegetation suvey conducted in 2015 did not include the portion of the current pipeline alignment that includes

the channel crossing.

Pursuant to these frndings and recommendations, and your request of May 31, following is ESA's scope of work
to assist NMV/D in this resource agency notification ancf information consultation process.

Taslts

1. Jurisdictional Delineation Report. ESA will conduct a routine delineation to map the location and

extent of potentially jurisdictional waters of the U.S. within the project study area (the entire pipeline

alignment) and appropriate buffer areas, in accordance with the USACE's 1987 Wetlands Delineation
Manual, and current llSACE, guidance. The survey will erfail a one-day field survey conducted by two
trained staff using GPS survey equipment to map the extent of potentially jurisdictional wetlands and

waters. ESA will prepare a report documenting the results of the survey, maps, and supporting
documentation to suppor"t regulatory agency review of the proposed project. Although this report would
support permit applications, this scope assumes the delineation will not require USACE verification.

2. Biological Resources Report. ESA will prepare a brief repori utilizing existing species occuruence

information from available databases, such as the CNDDB previously prepared reports. The report will
surnrnarize potential federal- and stateJisted resources in the project area and identifu impact avoidance

and minimization measures for construction consideration, The report wiil include one field survey,

conducted concurrently with the survey proposed in Task 1, and development of a map of existing habitat

types within the project area. Although this repod would support permit applications, this scope assumes

that no permit applications would be required and the report would be submitted to regulatory agencies to
provide background information to conlÌrm thal formal permits and authorizations would not be required.

3. Agency Notifications. ESA will prepare and submit noiification packages for RWQCB, CDFVy', and

USFV/S to request their input on the project and confirmation of what approvals are necessary, if any.

The notification package will include the project description, reports prepaled in Tasks I and2, and any

relevant d.ocuments previously prepared for the project. ESA will incorporate one round of comments and

edits into the notifìcation. If regulatory agencies request permit application submittals, ESA can prepare

the necessary documents under Optional Task A and perform supporting surveys under Optional Task B.

4. Pro.iect Management and Agency Coordination Support, Upon subrnittal of the agency notifications,
ESA will immediately follow up with regulatory agency staff to confirm receipt and respond to project
questions. llSA will connect with regulatory agency staff on a regular basis and update the client on their
review status. This scope includes participation in one conference call with regulatory agency staff, and

meeting notes. This tasks also includes a limited amount of agency coordination support (up to 8 hours),

as well as I hour per month for project coordination. Additional agency coordination support can be

provided as described in Optional Task C.

5. Design and Construction-Related Support. ESA will provide advisory support to NMWD during
project design and construction. During design, and with input fiom Marin County, ESA will advise on

any revegetation requirements to be incorporated into the project's design and construction
documentation. ESA will also provide advioe on isolating the active construction area fi'om any livestock
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present during construction. If found necessaly based on the outcome of Tasks I and2, ESA will
recommend appropriate best management practices (BMPs) to protect aly sensitive piant and/or wildlife
species within or adjacent to any active construction areas, as well as any staging areas. Two weeks prior
to construction, ESA will conduct a preconstruction avian survey to determine the presence/absence of
any bird species protected by the Migratory Bird Treaty Act. If any species are determined to be present,
ESA wili advise NMWD and iis contractor on what precautions must be implemented to avoid conflict.

Optíonøl Tasks

A. Permit Applications: ESA will prepare permit application materials for submittal to the USACE,
RWQCB, and CDFV/, which would be supported by the work completed in Tasks I and2 above.

a. USACE - Approval under the CWA Section 404 Nationwide Permit Program will be requested

from ihe USACE. This scope assumes the project elements qualify for coverage under Nationwide
PermitNumber 12 (Utilify Line Activities). The USACE pre-construction notification (PCN) form
will be completecl and submitted along with supplemental information on the project, including a

brief project description and project maps, a brief review of potential impacts, and a list of impact
avoidance and minimization measures that will be implemented. The technical repofis prepared in
Tasks 1 and2, asrunmary of the outcomes of Task 3, and relevant documents previously prepaled
for the project will be submitted with the application package. A cover letter summarizing the
project and anticipated construction schedule will be prepared.

b. RWQCB - Approval under CWA Section 401 and the state Porter-Cologne Water Qualify Control
Act will be requested. The RWQCB's Form Iì2C501-E will be cornpleted and submitled to the
RV/QCB along with supplemental information on the projects, including a brief project description
and project rlaps, a brief review of potential impacts, and a list of impact avoidance and

minimization measures that will be implemented. A cover letler referencing the USACE's
involvement and arficipated construction schedule will be prepared.

c. CDFW - Application requesting a standard F'ish and Game Code Section 1602 Lake and

Streambed Alteration Agreement (LSAA). An LSAA Notifìcation will include a brief project
description and project maps, a brief review of potential impacts, and a list of impact avoidance and

minimization measures that will be implernented. A cover letler summarizing the project and

anticipated construction schedule will be prepared.

'Iwo versions of the permit applications will be produced, each adjusted based on NMWD's consolidated
comments. ESA will submit the final applications on NMWD's behalf. The submitlals will include one

printed copy and electronic files. The client will provicle checks for the state permit application fees.

B. Special-status Plant Surveys. ESA will conduct surveys to identiSr presence of special-status plants in
previously unsurveyed areas ofthe project site. This scope includes two field surveys, each conducted by
two experienced botanists, at the appropriate flowering seasons for special-status plants kuown or
anticipated to occur in the project study area. Surveys will be conducted in accordance with the Caiifornia
Department of Fish and Wildlife's Prol:ocols for Surveying and Evaluating Impacts to Special Status
Natìve Plant PopulatÌons and Natural Communities (CDFW 2009). T'o ensure the target plant species are

identifiable, ESA will conduct one survey for special-status plants of the project site in spring (April or
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May) and one survey in summer (July or August). Surveys conducted during these periods will cover the
blooming periocls for all target plant species. All habitats at the site will be su'veyed according to CDFV/
protocols. This includes a pre-fìeld review and data analysis of the California Natural Diversity Database
(CNDDB), the California Native Plant Society (CNPS) Inventory of Rare ancl Endangered Plants, the
U.S. Fish and Wildlife Service (USFV/S) IPaC Database, and any other pertinent data regarding species
obselations and distribution (Calflora, Consortium of California Llerbaria, Jepson eflora). ESA will
develop a list of special-status plant species with the potential to occur on the project site based on the
background data analysis. This list of special-status plant species wiil be the focus of botanical slrrveys.

Prior to the suleys, ESA will conduct a reference site visit of lcnown populations of the focus species
mapped during the 2015 suweys. This reference site visit will be used to observe accessibie populations
of target species to determine whether those species are identifiable at the time of the survey and to
obtain a visual image of the target spe<;ies, associated habitat, and associated species.

All plant taxa observed will be identified to the level necessary to determine status and recorded in a
master list. Location, population characteristics, and vegetation community information for special-status
plant populations will be recorded, and populations will be mapped according to the CDFV/ protocol.
Voucher collections would be made, as necessary, according to the protocol and retained by ESA through
the regulatory agency review process.

ESA will prepare a repoft that presents the methods and results of the floristic surveys, along with a
comprehensive list of piants observed, following the conclusion of the surrmer suvey. An updated map
depicting the habitats on the site will also be included with the repoft along with photos of special-status
plants, if any are observed. ESA will incorporate one round of comments and edits into the report.

C. Additional Agency Coordination Support: Upon submitlal of permit applications, ESA will immediately
fbllow up with regulatory agency staff to confirm receipt and respond to project questions, ESA will
connect with regulatory agency staffon a regular basis and update the client on their review and approval
status. This scope includes participation in one in-person rneeting or site visit with regulatory agency
staff, and meeting notes. Ihis tasks also includes a lirnited amount of agency coordination support (up to
16 hours).

ESA proposes to execute this scope of work for a not-to-exceed amount of $24,910.00. Upon receipt of a writlen
notice-to-proceed Q..ITP), we estimate completion of the proposed work in three to six months. I{owever, we
cannot guarantee receipt of agency responses within a desired timeframe. Further, scheduling for specialrstatus
piant surveys are depenclent on their flowering seasons.

Assumptions: The same level of efforl is anticipated for either construction option selected. Our cost estimate
includes preparation of ajurisdictional delineation, Lare plant surueys, a brief biological resources report, and
limited agency coordination support. The surueys proposed in Tasks 1,2, and 5 are based on previous biological
reporting available at the date ofthis proposal. Ifthe surveys proposed herein identily resources not captured in
previous reporting, this proposal may be augmented accordingly upon agreement between NMWD and ESA.
One round of N'V/MD review and one round of document revisions are assumed. The schedule assumes the
project notification efforts finds that no USACE, RWQCB, CDFW, or USF-WS agency approvals are required.
This scope does not include supporl to prepare notifications to comply with the National Pollutant Dischalge
Elimination System (NPDES) General Construction Stormwater Per"mit (State Water Resources Control Board
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Construction General Pernit Order 2009-0009-DV/Q), for ground-disturbing projects over one (1.0) acre, nor
preparation of a Stonnwater Pollution Prevention Plan (SWPPP).

Please feel free to reach out with any questions. ESA is prepared to commence work upon receipt of the NTP and

any project-related materials which may have come to light since finalization of our advisory fìndings. Thank
you again for the continued opportunity with you and your colleagues at NMWD.

Sincerely,

James E. O'Toole
Senior Vice President
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TABLE 1: CosT ESTIMATE
ESA Labor Detail and Expense Summary

E, PIêr Klell,

B. P¡flman,
Sr. Bloloov

J, sunsharÀ,
Permlfllng
Oversldht

E. Holmboe,
Condructlon lV. Glolll, Mccollough,

GIS

S. Blshop, J. Sânders,

Botany

Task # Task Name/Descr¡ption $240 $225 s205 6lso s170 $160 s125 s120
1 Jurisdiclionäl oelineålion Rcpoil 16 $ 4 160 1 s 120 s
2 lioloûicãl Resou¡ccs ReÞod s 2920 1 $ 120
3 s 5770 s
4 rM a¡d &encv Coo¡dinalion suDood $ 2730 s 14

5 lcslqn & Consûuclion-Rolarcd suoDod s 46 $ I 610

Pe¡cent ol Efod - Lãbor Houß onlv 4.3V 43% a 70/ 43 sDj 17
Pêr.ênt ôlFfôd- T 14.1A 12 0q 1 0a/

Etnployee Name

T¡tle

ESALaborcosts
Commun¡c¡tion Feo on Labor Côsl

I 24,¿30

s

ESA Non'Lâbor Expcnses

Rclmbursable kpenses
ESA Equipment Usage

subtot¡l EsA Non-Labor Expenses

$ 330

s 150

$ 480

TOTAL PROJECT COST FSTIMATF $ 24,9'10.00

Optìonal Task A
optloñal T¡sk B
optlonaì Ta€k C

Perhll Appliqtlons
Spælal'6htus PlantSuNeyr
tudltlooãl A€ency Côodlnallon Suppoñ

20,000-00
7.500.00
7,000.00





Item #9

To:

From:

Subject

MEMORANDUM

Board of Directors

Drew Mclntyre, General Manager/Acting Chief Engin

Renew Declaration of Local Emergency Related to
tlgm\bod misc 2020\renew covid emergoncy declaralion #2 05-05 20.doc

May 1 ,2020

9 Pandemic

RECOMMENDED ACTION

FINANCIAL IMPAGT:

Approve continuation of the local emergency resulting from
the COVID-19 pandemic as declared in District Resolution No
20-07

The actualfiscal impacts are currently unknown.

On March 4, 2020,the Governor of the State of California declared a State of Emergency as

a result of the coronavirus (COVID-19) pandemic, On March 13,2020, the President of the United

States declared a National Emergency as a result of the threat of COVID-19.

On March 16,2020, the County of Marin by Order of the Health Officer issued a Shelter in

Place Order limiting the travel of all county residents and ordering county businesses to cease all

non-essential activities and to take further actions as described in said Order through April 7, 2020,

The order limits activity, travel and business functions to most essential needs.

On March 16,2020 the General Manger, as the District's Emergency Manager activated the

District's Emergency Operations Plan.

On March 19, 2020, Governor Newson issued Executive Order N-33-20 ordering all

individuals living in California to stay home at their place of residence, with certain exceptions for

critical services and other qualifying exceptions. This shelter-in-place order has no specified

termination date.

On March 31,2020, the County of Marin by Order of the Health Officer issued an extended

Shelter in Place Order through May 3, 2020 thal is more restrictive than the original order, The new

order continues to provide an exception for the operations and maintenance of "Essential

lnfrastructure," which includes, but is not limited to, water, wastewater, and recycled water service.

Exemptions are also in place for Essential Government Functions, for certain "Minimum Basic

Operations," for emergency management functions, for certain narrowly prescribed "Essential

Business" functions, and for certain qualifying private construction, such as housing projects

meeting low-income needs.

On April 29,2020, Marin County and the other six Bay Area Public Health Officers who

ordered a shelter-in-place in mid-March extended the orders through May 31 effective Monday, May

4. Marin's public health order concerning use of face coverings does not have an end date and will

remain in place until further notice. Under the new Shelter-ln-Place order, construction activities,
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cedain businesses that operate pr¡marily outdoors, and some outdoor activities will be allowed to

resume with specific conditions.

On AprilTth, the Board of Directors approved Resolution No. 20-07 proclaiming the existence

of a local emergency, granting the General Manager to take actions necessary for emergency

response due to the COVID-19 pandemic until the State of Emergency is terminated.

On April 21,2020, the Board of Directors approved continuation of the local emergency

resulting from the COVID-19 pandemic as declared in District Resolution No. 20-07 .

District emergency planning has been aggressively implemented. Approximately 50% of the

District's staff are physically separated as much as possible by rotating shifts and having some

employees work from home, but all critical operations needed to maintain essential services

continue. Relocation of some staff back to the District buildings, and certain other projects and

activities, are delayed until after the Marin County and Statewide shelter-in-place orders are both

significantly modified, suspended, or terminated.

As the COVID-19 emergency continues in our service area, Staff is requesting the Board find

that there still exists a need to continue the State of Emergency reflected by Resolution No. 20-07.

RECOMMENDED ACTION

Approve continuation of the local emergency resulting from the COVID-19 pandemic as

declared in District Resolution No. 20-07.





Item #10

MEMORANDUM

To: Board of Directors May 1,2020

From: Ryan Grisso, Water Conservation Coordinator ß6
Subject: Approve Text for Spring 2020 West Marin "Waterline", Volume 17

V:\Memos to Board\Spring 2020 West Mar¡n WaterLine Texl 0501,doc

RECOMMENDED AGTION: Approve Spring 2020 West Marin "Waterline" Text

FINANCIAL IMPACT: $2,700 (lncluded in FY 201912020 WM Budget)

Draft text and design for the Spring 2020 "Waterline" , Volume 1 7 is attached for your review.

This issue focuses on the water shortage emergency in West Marin, water conservation programs

available and gives an update on the PRE 4 tank construction project. lt also features the new de-

sign look created by Kiosk. Should any Board member have individual comments please provide

them to the General Manager at the Board meeting on May 5,2020. lt is expected the Spring2020

West Marin "Waterline" will be mailed in mid-May 2020.

RECOMMENDATION

Board authorize General Manager to approve final text and design of Spring 2020 West Mar-

in "Waterline'i Volume 17.
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\ùíater Supply Update Spring 2o2o
Drew Mclntyre, General Manager

Water supplied by North Marin Water District (NMWD) to our
West Marin customers is diverted from shallow wells adjacent to
Lagunitas Creek near the former U.S. Coast Guard Housing Facility
in Point Reyes Station and on Gallagher Ranch. The State Water
Resources Control Board (SWRCB) has determined that Lagunitas
Creek is fully appropriated in summer months of dry years and

has ordered NMWD to find an alternative source of water from
July to October during dry years. (A dry year occurs when the total
precipitation from October '1 to April 1 is less than 28 inches as

measured at Marin Municipal Water District's Kent Lake). NMWD

has complied with this request by purchasing a portion of the
Giacomini Ranch water rights to use during these periods.

Rainfall at Kent Lake through April 1, 2020 totals just under 24

inches and dry year conditions are now in place on Lagunitas
Creek. This is the second dry year since Water Right Order 95-17
was adopted by the SWRCB in October 1995 (the first was in

2014). Pursuant to the orde¡ Lagunitas Creek flows are currently
being maintained by Marin Municipal Water District at the
regulated threshold of 14 cfs (cubic feet per second, or about
6,300 gallons per minute) and will drop to 10 cfs on May '1 and to 6
cfs on June 1 6.

A public hearing was held on May 5,2020 where the Board of
Directors declared a water shortage emergency in NMWD's West
Marin Service Area, the West Marin Water Shortage Contingency
Plan was enacted and an Emergency Water Conservation
Ordinance was adopted. From May 5 to June 30, customers are

asked to voluntarily reduce water consumption by 15% when

compared to the corresponding billing period in 2013 (the most
recent pre-drought normal year). Beginning on July 1, a mandatory
25% reduction in water use will be in place (also when compared
to the corresponding billing period in 2013). Customers are also

required to implement other conservation measures intended
to eliminate the waste of water. Many customers have already

reduced their water use to less than these mandated reduction
levels and customers using less than 200gpd (gallons per day)

are already in compliance, but are requested to conserve more if
possible. A drought surcharge for customers using more than 200
gpd may be implemented by the Board of Directors simultaneous
with or subsequent to enactment of the mandatory stage on July
1. You can see your water use history and target to reduce 25% by

visiting the NMWD website at nmwd.com/account-balance.php

NMWD customers are encouraged to use water efficiently during
this drought period, reduce outdoor irrigation and participate in

NMWD Water Use Efficiency Programs described in this Waterline

and at nmwd.com.



E

t

æ

ffi
E¡

E

æ
Et Ig

a

q-ll

I

il
ffiffiffi
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PO Box 146
Novato, CA 94948

nmvrd.com
}'IORTH MARIN

WATER DISTRIfi

rJüater Smart Home Survey
This free serv¡ce includes thorough indoor
and outdoor water efficiency checks.

rJüater Smart Landscape Rebate
Rebates for water-eff icient landscape
equipment, such as a new drip irrigation
system replacing a spray system.

Cash for Grass Rebate
Cash for removing irrigated and maintained
lawn, replacing it with low water use plants.

Cl,othesWasher Rebate
NMWD offers a rebate to customers when
they purchase a qualifying high-efficiency
clothes washer.

Rainwater Gatchment Rebate
Rebate for collection of rainwater.

High Etrciency To¡let Rebate
Customers who replace an old water-
guzzling toilet with a high-efficiency toilet
may be eligible for a rebate.

PRESORTED
STANDARD

U.S, POSTAGE
PAID

SAN RAFAEL,
CA PERMIT

NO2

\Jíater Smart Savings Program

North Marin Water District wants to help customers use water efficiently. That's why we've put all of our water saving promotions under
one umbrella. The Water Smart Savings Program encompasses all you need to get started on saving water and saving money.
Call (41 5) 761-8944 for program details or visit nmwd,com.
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MEMORANDUM

Item #11

May 1 ,2020To:

From

Subj:
àb

Board of Directors

Julie Blue, Auditor-Controller

Rate lncrease Letter to West Marin Water and Oceana Marin Sewer Customers
t:\ac\budgetvy-2020.2lVate increase fy 20.21\wm&om\2020 prop 218 wm & om llr cover memo.docx

RECOMMENDED ACTION: Approve Letter to Customers

FINANCIAL IMPACT: $750

California law requires that customers be notified of a water or sewer rate increase at least

45 days prior to the public hearing where the Board considers adoption of said increase. A public

hearing is scheduled for Tuesday, June 23,2020 at 6:00 PM at the Dance Palace in Point Reyes

Station. lf shelter in place restrictions remain in effect in Marin County at the time of the scheduled

public hearing, additional information regarding participation regarding accommodating public

participation will be provided on the District website at www.nmwd.com. The June 23 public

hearing date requires that the notification letters be postmarked no later than May 9, 2020. The

letters will be printed in-house and the marginal postage, stationary and copying cost for the 1,017

active customers will be approximately $750.

West Marin Water

The rate increase proposed forWest Marin Water customers will generate 4.5o/o ($33,000

annually) in additional revenue. Consistent with prior year rate increases, both the commodity rate

and the bimonthly service charge component of the water bill are proposed to increase 4.5%

effective July 1 ,2020.

The dollar amount of the increase for each customer will vary based upon their individual

water use. The Annual Water Cost Calculator on the District's website allows each customer to

see the impact of the proposed increase on their annual water cost based upon their water use

over the past 12 months. The typical residential customer, assuming no change in water use,

would see a 4.5o/o increase, amounting to $2.70 per month ($32.40 annually). As shown in

Attachment 1, the Coastal Area Water Cost Comparison, the cost of water for West Marin

customers is the third lowest of the seven agencies surveyed.

Oceana Marin Sewer

A 5o/o rate increase (a $5 increase to $98 per month) effective July 1 , 2020 is proposed

for Oceana Marin sewer service. The increase would generate approximately $14,000 annually

and would support projects identified in the 2016 Oceana Marin Master Plan Update. ln contrast

tothe 10o/orate increases adopted in2016 and 2017 to financethe CIP plan on a pay-go basis,

the current S-year financial plan includes a current year increase of 5o/o and subsequent annual



5o/o rate increases and also forecasts borrowing $650,000 to complete the CIP plan. As shown in

Attachment 2, the Coastal Area Sewer Cost Comparison, the Oceana Marin sewer rates are

slightly higher when compared to similar agencies.

The proposed letters are attached for Board review and comment (West Marin Water -
Attachment 3 and Oceana Sewer - Attachment 4). Legal counsel has reviewed the letters to

assure compliance with the notification requirements of California law.

RECOMMENDATION:

Approve mailing the rate increase letters to customers.



2O2O COASTÁI AREA WATER COST COMPARISON
Comparison of NMWD's Charges with Other Agencies Based on Rates and Chaiges in Effect on 711120

"Typical" Single Family Residence (5/8" x 3/4" Meter) Using 48.700 Gallons Annually

4t29120?O

No. of Bimonthly
Water Service

Agency Services Charge

Commodity
Rate per

1,000 Gallons
$1.33/$2.00

$7.86/$11.56
$2.61/$6.26
$4.01/$6.68

$11.24

$11.43
$9.20

$8.68

Annual
Water
Cost'

$1,496
$1,56s
$652

$1 ,014
$544

$771
$503

s746

$602 (4)

$768 (7)

Annual
Tax

Cost2

$41 0

$74
$300

Total
Annual

Cost
$2,098
$1,565
$1,420
$1,014
$954

$845
$803

$746

Bolinas Community PUD

Estero Mutual Water District
Stinson Beach Co Water
lnverness PUD
Bodega Bay PUD

--> NMWD West Marin Service Area
Muir Beach Community Services

California Water Coast Sorinqs

587
143
/Jl

s16
1,089

783
151

255

$237.50

$207.90
$77.10

$146.00 (B)

5b5.5J

$35.68 (11)

$49.92

$53.78

(3)

(5)

(6)

(8)

(e)

(12)

(14)

(10)

(13)

(16)(15)

(17)

Notes:
(1)

(2)

Median annual consumption for West Marin Service Area single-family detached home is 48,700 gallons. Use will differ in other areas and microclimates.

lncludes taxes for debt service on outstanding water bonds and loans plus any applicable apportlon ment of the AB8 1% County levy distributed to com pensate for the
Prop 13 elimination of the operation and maintenance tax.

1st '15 Ccf quarterly @$1.00/Ccf , 16 lo 21 Ccf @$1.50, 22 - 28 @$3.00,29 - 40 @$6.00, 41 - 60 @$10, 61 - 75 @$15 and 76+ Ccf @$18/Ccf (billed quarterly).

Shares¡n'1%Countylevy. This"allocation"isprojectedbytheCountyof Marinai$353,383forBolinasin20l9l21ofwhich'100%iscred¡tedtothewaterfund.

F¡rst 25 cubic meters bimonthly @ $2.0751cm, next 25 cm @ $3.051/cm. Drought surcharge of $20.00/cm for use in excess of 50 cm.

First6Ccf monthly@$2.60/Ccf; 6to10Ccf @$6.26lCcf: 10to16Ccf @$10.54iCcf; 16to20Ccf @$14.441Ccf;20to30Ccf @$22.691Ccf; 30to40Ccf @$28.35/Ccl;
40 and above Ccf @ $36.78/Ccf.

Stinson Beach shares in 1% County ìevy. This "allocation" is projected at $802.396 in 2019120 of which 70% is credited to the water fund amounting to $768 per service.

lncludes proposed bi monthly increase of $25 and proposed bi-monthly Tiered Rates as of July 1 , 2O2O oÍ 5-12 ccf @ $3.00iccf; 13 lo 24 ccl @ $5.00/ccf, 25 to 36 @ $6.00/ccf,
37to48@$10.00/ccf.49to60@$12.00/ccfand61+@$28.00/ccf. UndertheProposedRates,eachcustomerwill beentitledtouseupto4ccfof water(approx50gallonsaday

over the two-month period) at no charge.

$65.53 bi-monthly water serv¡ce charge for 0-800 cubic feet. then $8.41l'1 00 cub¡c feet for 801 cubic feet and above.

Based on share of 1% County levy. This "allocation" bythe County of Sonoma was estimated al $446,022 for'18/19, of which 100% was allocated to water amounting to $410
per service. The 19/20 estimate will not be available untÌl June.

lncludes a proposed bi-monthly increase of $1.53.

Rate shown is weighted average of Point Reyes Station, Olema, BearValley/lnverness Park & Paradise Ranch Estates and includes a Proposed 4.5% commodity rate
¡ncrease. T¡er rate charges do not apply to the typical res¡dential customer as median use does not exceed the 400 gpd tier rate threshold.

West Marin Service Area receÌves an allocation of the 1% County levy projected at $58,000 in 2O2O121, amounting to $74 per service.

$4g.g2lb¡monthly flat rate includes 4,500 gallons, plus $0.921100 gallons for4.500 to 10.000. plus $1.291100 gallons for 10,000 to 30.000, plus $1.621100 gallons for
30,000+ gallons.

25% of revenue is allocated to capital ¡mprovements.

The annual $300 charge is collected via water bìllings and is allocated to capital improvements.

ln20l6thePUCagreedtoconsolidateCal Water'sRedwoodValleyrateswithits"BayshoreDistrict"(SouthBay) rates. Roughly2,000connectionsintheRedwoodValley
District, of which Coast Springs ¡s a part, are now combined with Bayshore's 54,000 connections. result¡ng ¡n a signifcant rate reduction for Coast Springs customers.

\\nmwdserued\adhinistration\ac\excel\rate suruey\w\[úcst0620.xls]úcst620

(3)

(4)

(5)

(6)

(7)

(8)

(e)

(1 0)

(1 1)

(12)

(13)

(1 4)

(1 5)

(1 6)

(1 7)
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-
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2O2O COASTAL AREA SEWER COST COMPAR'SOIV
Comparison of NMWD's Charges with OtherAgencies based on Charges in effect on7lll2O

4t29t2020

Aqencv
> NMWD Oceana Marin

Bolinas Community PUD

Marshall Community Wastewater System

Tomales Village CSD

Stinson Beach Co Water - lnspection Only

Bodega Bay PUD

No. of
Sewer

Services

Monthly
Service
Charge

$98.00 
(2)

$1 12.00

$'t02.8o 
(4)

$81.90

$39.65 (6)

$61.10

Annual
Tax

Revenue (t)

l]55 t'r

$o

$o

$80 (5)

$339 Í)

$o

Annual
Total

$1,M1

$1,344

s1,234

$1,063

$81 5

$733

234

163

52

108

710

1,053

Notes:

(1) lncludestaxesfordebtserviceonoutstandingsewerbondsandloansplusanyapplicableallocationof theABB1%Countylevy
distributed to compensate for the Prop 13 elimination of the operation and maintenance tax.

(2) lncludes proposed increase of $5/month.

(3) Based on share of 1% County levy. This "allocation" is projected by the County of Marin at $62,000 for 2020121 which equates to
5265 per service.

(4) Communitywastewaterstep-system commenced October2008. Each parcel has own septictank, pumped to a commun¡ty
collectiontank,thenpumpedintoacommunityleachfield. Rateshownislastyear'srate. RatesarebasedontheBayArea
CPI at April 30th which will be available toward the end of May.

(5) BasedonhomewithnetAVof $401,366(average20lgl20AVonT9singlefamilyhomesinTomales) andtaxrateof 2.01/$1004V.

(6) On-Site Wastewater System - no sewer system. Services provided include septic inspections, ground and surface water
monitoring and other inspections required by the State Water Quality Control Board. ln addition to the cost paid to Stinson Beach
Water Co., each customer must purchase and install their own on-site wastewater system.

(7) Stinson Beach shares in 1% County levy. This "allocation" was projected by the County of Marin at $802,396 fo¡ 2019120 of which 30%

was allocated to sewer amounting to $339 per service.

\\n ñwdseNerl\adminrstralron\ac\excelVâte suNey\w\lsrcsto620,xlslsrcst620
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ATTACHMENT 3

NORTH I1ARIN
IYATER DISÎRICT

999 Rush Creek Place

P.O. Box 146
Novato, CA 94948-0146

PHONE

415-897-4733
EMAIL

info@nmwd.com
WEB
www.nmwd.com

May 8,2020

RE: Notice of Proposed Water Cost lncrease - West Marin Service Area

Dear Customer:

This letter is to advise you of a proposed increase to the West Marin water rates that would take
effect on July 1 ,2020.11 also provides information about a Public Hearing scheduled on June 23,
2020, at which time written and oral comments will be considered and a vote on the increase will be
taken by the North Marin Water District Board of Directors.

HOW MUCH IS THE PROPOSED RATE INCREASE?

A 4.5o/o increase in the cost of water is proposed, which would result in an average increase of $2.70
per month (approximately $32 annually) for the typical single-family residential customer who
consumes 48,700 gallons of water annually. Those using less annually would see an increase less
than $32 annually, and those using more would pay more. The increase for non-residential customers
(commercial, institutional and irrigation accounts) would vary based on water use and meter size. Non-
residential accounts will also see an annual 4.5% cost increase. A detailed description of the proposed
water rate increases is included on page 3.

You can determine the increase in your annual water cost based on your water use over the past
year from our website. lnsert your NMWD account number and the name on your account into
the water cost calculator on NMWD's website at http://www.nmwd.com/accountbalance.php.

REASON FOR THE PROPOSED INCREASE

The District's mission is to meet the expectations of our customers in providing potable water that is
reliable, high-quality, environmentally responsible, and reasonably priced. Maintaining and renovating
the infrastructure of the rural West Marin Water System is costly. Today the system includes 26 miles
of pipeline, over 1 million gallons of finished water storage distributed across 13 tanks, 7 pump stations,
168 fire hydrants, a multitude of valves, 3 wells, and a water treatment plant, all designed to serve 783
customers. Sufficient revenue must be generated to finance the ongoing system operations and
infrastructure renovations.

PUBLIC HEARING

A public hearing before the NMWD Board of Directors to consider the proposed water rate
increase is scheduled for 6:00 pm, Tuesday, June 25, 2019, at the Dance Palace (503 B Street)
in Point Reyes Station. lf shelter in place restrictions remain in effect in Marin County at the
time of the scheduled public hearing, additional information regarding participation regarding
accommodating public participation will be provided on the District website at
www.nmwd.com.

DIRECTORS: JACK BAKER . RICK FRAITES . JAMES GROSSI .MICHAEL JOLY . STEPHEN PETTERLE

OFFICERS: DREW McINTYRE, General Manager/Acting Chief Engineer .TERRIE KEHOE, District Secretary .JULIE BLUE, Auditor Controller



Notice of Proposed Water Rate lncrease
May 8,2020
Page 2 of 3

You are invited to present oral or written testimony on the proposal at the public hearing. You have
the right to protest this proposed rate increase. lf you do, you must submit your protest in writing,
even if you plan to attend the public hearing. lf written protests are submitted by a majority of the
affected proper.ty owners the proposed increase will not be imposed.

Your written protest must be received prior to the close of the June 23, 2020 public hearing. Written
protests must be signed by the property owner and must include a description of the parcel (parcel
number or service address). Send or deliver written protests to:

District Secretary
North Marin Water District

PO Box 146
Novato, CA 94948

For more information about the North Marin Water District, including a history of the West Marin Water
System, or to view the most recent Coastal Area Water Cost Comparison or the District's audited
financial statement, visit NMWD's website at www.nmwd.com or call the District Secreta ry at (415)
897-4133.

Sincerely,

.9zn
Drew Mclntyre
General Manager



Notice of Proposed Water Rate lncrease
May B, 2020
Page 3 of 3

PROPOSED
West Marin Water System Rate Changes
EFFECTIVE JULY 1 ,2020
BIMONTHLY SERVICE CHARGE

For STANDARD 5/8 x 3/4-INCH METER.
For 1-inch residential meter for fire service...
For 1-inch meter.
For all meters in Paradise Ranch Estates...

QUANTITY CHARGE
Residential Rate Per Dwellinq Unit
First 400 gallons per day.
From 401 to 900 gallons per day...
From 90'i+ gallons per day.
Commercial, lnstitutional & lrrigation Rate
November 1 through May 31

June 1 through October 31 ... ...

PLUS A HYDRAULIC ZONE CHARGE/1,OOO GAL
Zone

1 Point Reyes Station.

" 
Bear Valley, Silver Hills, lnverness Park & Lower

' Paradise Ranch Estates (Elevation 0' - 365')......
3 Olema
4 Upper Paradise Ranch Estates (Elevation 365'+)

Additional Commodity Rate for Consumers Outside the
lmprovement District Boundary.

Existing
$34.1 5

$38.80
$68.30
$51.75

Proposed
$35.68
$40.54
$71.36
$54.08

% lncrease
4.5%
4.5%
4.5%
4.5%

4.5%
4.5%

4.5%

4.5%
4.5%

0%

4.2%

4.4o/o

4.5o/o

4.3%

$9.24

$12.80
$20.53

$9.35
$12.93

$9.66

$13.38
$21.45

$9.77
$13.51

$0.25

$0.95
$6.46

$o.oo $o.oo

$0.24

$0.91

$6.1 B

$3.69 $3.85

t:\ac\budget\fy-2o20.2 1\rate increase fy 20.21\wm&om\wm increase ltr to customers 2020.docx



ATTACHMENT 4

NONTH ilARIN
WATER DIgÏRICl

999 Rush Creek Place

P.O. Box 146
Novato, CA 94948-0146

PHONE

4r5-897-4133
EMAIL

infotônmwd.com
WEB

www.nmwd.com

May B, 2020

RE: Notice of Proposed Oceana Marin Sewer Service Cost Increase

Dear Customer:

This letter is to advise you of a proposed increase to the Oceana Marin sewer serv¡ce charge that
would take effect on July 1,2020. lt also provides information about a Public Hearing scheduled on
June 23, 2020, at which time written and oral comments will be considered and a vote on the increase
will be taken by the North Marin Water District Board of Directors.

How much is the proposed rate increase?

Current Oceana Marin sewer service charges are $g3/month ($1 ,116lyear). A 5% increase is
proposed equaling $98/month ($1,176lyear).

How will the proposed increase affect my sewer bill?

Oceana Marin sewer service charges are collected on the Marin County property tax bill, which is
rendered annually for the fiscal year period July 1 through June 30. The proposed sewer service
charge increase would add $5 per month to the cost of sewer service for all customers in Oceana
Marin, resulting in a total annual charge for fiscal year 2020121 of $1 ,176 ($98 per month for July 2020
through June2021).

Why are rates being increased?

ln January 2016 the District concluded a Master Plan Update that identified over $3 million in projects
necessary to improve the reliability and redundancy of the Oceana Marin Wastewater System.
Constructing these improvements will be financially challenging for the 234 customers of the Oceana
Marin utility. Even if the projects are constructed over a 2}-year period, the cost would still average
$150,000 annually. The proposed rate increase, if enacted, would generate approximately $14,000 of
additional revenue annually ($60/year X234 customers). The entire Master Plan Update is available
for review at: http://unvw.nmwd.com/pdfs/aqenda/01 1 91 6.pdf.

Additional rate increases will be necessary in future years as the District continues to improve the
reliability of the existing facilities and to construct redundant facilities in order to protect against
potential system failure and sewage spills. Prior years' rate increases were in-line with financing the
CIP plan on a pay-go basis while the current 5-year financial plan includes an annual rate increase of
5o/o for FY 20121 and 5o/o thereafter, and forecasts borrowing funds to complete the plan.

DIRECTORS: JACK BAKER . RICK FRAITES.JAMES GROSSI .MICHAELJOLY .STEPHEN PETTERLE

OFFICERS: DREW McINTYRE, General Manager/Acting Chief Engineer .TERRIE KEHOE, District Secretary 'JULIE BLUE, Auditor Controller



Notice of Proposed Sewer Rate lncrease
May 8, 2020
Page 2 of 2

Public Hearing

A public hearing before the NMWD Board of Directors to consider the proposed sewer service
charge increase is scheduled for 6:00 pm, Tuesday, June 23, 2020, at the Dance Palace (503 B
Street) in Point Reyes Station. lf shelter in place restrictions remain in effect in Marin Gounty
at the time of the scheduled public hearing, additional information regarding participation
regarding accommodating public participation will be provided on the District website at
www.nmwd.com.

You are invited to present oral or written testimony on the proposal at the public hearing. You have
the right to protest this proposed rate increase. lf you do, you must submit your protest in writing,
even if you plan to attend the public hearing. lf written protests are submitted by a majority of the
affected property owners the proposed increase will not be imposed.

Your written protest must be received prior to the close of the June 23, 2020 public hearing. Written
protests must be signed by the property owner and must include a description of the parcel (parcel
number or service address). Send or deliver written protests to:

District Secretary
North Marin Water District

PO Box 146
Novato, CA 94948

For more information about the North Marin Water District, including a history of the Oceana Marin
Sewer System, or to view the most recent Coastal Area Sewer Cost Comparison or the District's
audited financial statement, visit NMWD's website at www.nmwd.com or call the District Secretary at
(415) 897-4133.

Sincerely,

)i' t ,,,,
' l. /';' -"\ -

Drew Mclntyre
General Manager

t:\ac\budget\fy-2020.21 \rate increase fy 20.2 1 \wm&om\om increase ltr to customers 2020.docx





To: Board of Directors

From: Julie Blue, Auditor-Controller

Item #12

MEMORANDUM

May 1 ,2020

àb
Subj: lnitial Review - Capital Project FY21 & FY22 & Equipment Budget FY21

ttac\budgetw-2o2o.21\boafd memos\capitâl & equiP budgat fy20.21 board momo reviêw.docx

RECOMMENDED ACTION: lnitial Review and Provide Direction to Staff

None at this time - C/P - $5.3M FY21 & $5.1 M FY22
FINANCIAL IMPACT: Gross Expenditure Budget Proposed for Consideration

Equipment - $330K FY21

Capital lmprovement Proiect Budqet (ClP)

Attached for review is the proposed Fiscal Year 2020121 (FY21) and FY2021122 (FY22)

Capital lmprovement Project (ClP) expenditure budget, As in prior years, a comprehensive 2-year

plan is presented (Attachment 1), which includes the projects recommended for Novato Water,

Recycled Water, West Marin Water, and Oceana Marin Sewer. Also included is a debt service

schedule detailing the principal and interest payment required to fund prior and upcoming ClPs.

This comprehensive plan is developed to verify that adequate funding and staffing exists to

accomplish the 33 budgeted projects planned for FY21, For reference, Attachment 2 shows the

District wide 10-year history of capital improvement projects which averages $8.5M per year

including $3.5M of internally (or "Pay-Go") financed projects.

Below is a summary identifying the significant projects (totaling $400,000 or more)

proposed to be undertaken over the next two fiscal years, An explanation of each FY21 project is

incorporated into the attached CIP detail listing.

Proiect FY21 FY22

Officeflard Buildi Refurbish $1,000,000 i $z,ooo,ooo I

Re ace PRE Tank 4A 1,O0o,0oo I

San Mateo 24" lnlet/_O_u!!e!!*tpgl2-,"2-QA) 

-- -l 910 000 742 000

Other Main Reolacements 200 000 650,000 |

Crest PS/Relocate School Rd. PS I sso 000

Lvnwood PS Motor Control Center I ¿oo 000

Old Ranch Rd. Tank #2 500 000

Oceana Marin Treatment Pond Rehab 225pOO I 1,600,000 I

New Gal her Well #2 000 335 000

Other Proiects 2,OO2,0oO I 2,388,000 I

Gross Proiect Outlav _ --6-qg?,9 
w) _"J?frrcp9!- I

Less Loan/Grant Fundino I , (1,61 o,gpoì J - ßé5gpgl
Net Proiect Outlav linternallv funded) I __ $5Æ¿oqo I $4¿65Jggl



JB Memo re lnitial Review of Capital Project FY21 & FY22 & Equipment Budget FY21

May 1,2020
Page 2 of 3

The proposed two-year combined total project outlay, net of granVloan rate funding, totals

gg.b million, up from the $8.4 million combined two-year budget adopted last year. The proposed

Fy21 CIP budget includes 33 projects, which is one less than the number of projects approved

for FY20.

Net out!1,y . i

District
Proposed

FY21&FY22
Adopted

FY2O & FY21
Increase 1

. (p-eg¡"ease") I

Novato Water . 1. $2,522,000- i

Water 200

WM Water
rì
i. . .1,!"40,_00,0_ i

OM Sewer 355 000 132 000 223,000 t

T 7.000 , $8+Eç8*0Q9 i $14949 i

Novato Potable Water's CIP expenditure plan, when viewed over the current fiscal year

and the next five years, averages $3.5 million annually in internally funded projects, which is

consistent with the 5-year plan as established with the Board approved 2020 Novato and

Recycled Water Rate StudY.

Reviews of the Districtwide budgets will occur on May 19 and June 2 which will include

the CIP budgets. The Novato and Recycled Water budgets are scheduled for approval on June

16,2020. The West Marin Water and Oceana Marin Sewer CIP budgets will be also be reviewed

on May 1g and June 2 with budget approval scheduled for June 23 (at Point Reyes Station).

Board comments and concerns are valued and will be addressed and incorporated into the budget

where applicable.

Eouiome Budoet

Also attached for your initial review is the proposed FY 2020121 (FY21) Equipment Budget

(Attachment 3). The proposed budget totals $330,000, which is $103,000 lower than the FY2O

Equipment Budget of $433,000. FY20 estimated actual expenditures are forecast to come in at

$382,000.

A significant purchase included in the proposed budget is $135,000 for a S-yard diesel

dump truck. This truck will replace a dump truck with over 110,000 miles which is not compliant

with California exhaust requirements. Additionally, a metals analyzer for $85,000 to replace a 20-

l

,¡
.... ..... $6, 

-0 
0-6-, 0--0"-0* 

. 1 ....... $. 1., .5- 
1 q.-9.9"9''. 

I

il
. 2+01000- 1. ({p,.000-) I

:i

1,990,000 , (550,000) i



JB Memo re lnitial Review of Capital Project FY21 & FY22 & Equipment Budget FY21
May 1,2020
Page 3 of 3

year old piece of equipment is included for the lab. Accompanying this memo is a chart showing

ten years of equipment purchases history (Attachment 4). The Equipment Budget will also be

reviewed at the May 19 board meeting with approval of the Equipment Budget scheduled for June

16,2020.



NORTH MARIN WATER DISTRICT

CAPIT AL I MP ROVEM ENT PRO J ECTS

PIPELINE REPLACEMENTS/ADDITIONS

a. Main/Pipeline Replacements

t Replace 12" Cl Pipe (7851F) S. Novato Bl (btwn RowlandiAdele)

L71 83_00 z Reolace Plastic Thin Walled Plpe < 4-inch

1

FY21 FY22

$100,000 $240,000

$'150,000 $',150,000

ATTACHMENT 1

tlac\budgetvy-2020.21\budget f¡nal fy 20.21\supporting schedules ry 20.21\Í5 yt ciptyTo2l xlsxls yr cip

FY21 Proiect DescriPtion

Replace 60 year old Cast-lron-Pipe that has a high frequency of breaks and is at

the end of its useful life

Ongoing systematic replacement of all plastic TW pipe < 4-inch.

1.7150.00

s Other Main Re lacements (60+ years

b. Main/Pipeline Additions

1 San Mateo 24" lnleVOutlet Pipe 1z,zoo1

2 Loop Mariner Wav to Redwood Bl.

s Other Main/Pipeline Additions

c. Polybutylene Service Line Replacements

t Replace PB in Sync w/City Paving (30 services)

$200,000
$1,040,000

$910,000

$125,000

$150,000 $150,000
$1,060,000 $275,000

000 Unplanned for failing mains

Multiyear project to install '1 ,600 feet of 24-inch pipe from San Mateo Tank to the

end of San Mateo Wav to imorove northern Zone 2 fire flow.

Misc. Projects to loop dead end mains

systematic replacement of PB services in advance of City paving
$70,000 $7o,ooo :ås|eii::'1.7139.xx

1.7123.xx $80,000 $80 000 Ongoing sYstematic

'150,000 $150,000

$70 000 $70,000 Relocate facilities for yet

$70,000 $70,000

$1,730,000 $1,535,000

of PB services

to be identified City/County Projects
1.8737.xt

z Other PB Replacements Services)

d. Relocations to Sync w/City & County CIP

1 Other Relocations

TOTAL PIPELINE REPLACEMENTS/ADDITIONS
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NORTH MARIN WATER DISTRICT

CAPITAL I M PROVEMENT PROJECTS

FY21 FY22

ilac\budget\ry-2020-21\budgel fnal fy 20.2 1\supporting schedules ry 20.21\15 yt cip Íy20.21.xlsxl5 yr cip

FY21 Project Description

2.

1.7007.13

1.7090.04

1.7136.00

1.6501.44

2

SYSTEM IMPROVEMENTS

a. DCA Repair/Replace-FY 2O 1-t uyr¡ $100,000 $100,000
b. Anode lnstallations-FY2O ltsory4 $10,000 $10,000 Place anodes on copper laterals for corrosion protection

c. Facilities Security Enhancements $25,000 - ïanks & PS security improvements.

d. San Marin Aqueduct Valve Pit (STP to Zone 2) $110,000
PipingA/alve modifications to allow downtown Zone 1 water (from STP) to supply
San Marin pump station.

e. Other System lmprovements $200,000
TOTALSYSTEMIMPROVEMENTS $245 000 $310 000

BUILDING, YARD, STP IMPROVEMENTS
a. Administration Building

1 Officel/ard Building Renovation (tr¡ote t) $1,000,000 $7,000,000 5O-year-old building requires significant upgrading.

$1,000,000 $7,000,000
b. Stafford Treatment Plant

1 Dam Concrete Repair (Apron) $50,000 Ongoing patch repairs as needed.

2 Leveroni Creek Embankment Repair lttote z; $192,000 - Repair/stabilize culvert embankmeni under access road to STP/IVGC

s Other Treatment Plant lmprovements $100,000 $50,000 Miscellaneousplantimprovements

4 Efficiency lmprovements $100,000 - lmprovement of sludge treatment process as suggested in ihe Efficiency Study

5 STP - Chemical System Upgrades (Tank R&R) $75,000 $75,000
Ongoing replacement of original chemical storage tanks (circa 2006) thai are at
the end if their useful life.

o HSPS #3 Motor R&R $20,000 - Purchase and install new moto for High Service Pump Station Unit #3.

7 Filter Underdrain/Media R&R $20,000 $20,000
Filter underdrain inspection and media replacement for each filter unii (one per

vear).

$507,000 $195,000

TOIAL BUtLD|NG, YARD, STp IMPROVEMENTS $1,507,000 $7,195,000

1.6600.69

1.6600.96

'1.6600.xx

1.6600.97

1.6600.92
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NORTH MARIN WATER DISTRICT

CAPITAL I MPROVEM ENT PROJECTS

FY21 FY22

tlac\budget\ry-2020.2'l \budget final ry 20.21 \supporling schedules fy 20.21\15 yt cíP ry29.21.xlsxls yr cip

FY21 Project Description

4. STORAGE TANKS/PUMP STATIONS
a. ïank Construction

I Old Ranch Rd Tank No. 2 (1ook sal)

b. Tank Rehabilitation

t Hydropneumatic Tank Repairs

z Garner Tank Recoat (0.1 MG)

c. Lvnwood P.S. Motor Control Center

d. Crest PS (Desisn/const) /Reloc School Rd PS

e. Davies PS Upqrade

f. Fire Flow Backfeed Valve Nunes Tank

s. Other Tank & PS lmprovements

RECYCLED WATER
s.7162.xx a. Other Recvcled Water Ex

1.6207.20

1.7170.00

$500,000
Replace and upsize existing redwood tank due to the current tank approaching- 
end of useful life.

$500,000 $o

$30,000 $30,000 Ongoing program to inspecVRepair the 7 tanks in compliance with State Code.

$340,000
$30,000 $370,000

$400,000 - Move motor controls above-ground

$550,000 - Replace School Rd PS with newfacility on Bahia Drive

$225,000
$200,000

$25,000 - New portable tank cleaning pumping system

$975 000 $425 000

1.6112.24

1.6141.00

Ã

TOTAL STORAGE TANKSiPUMP STATIONS $1,505.000 $795,000

penditures

TOTAL RECYCLED WATER PROJECTS $'IOO.OOO $lOO,OOO

$100,000 $100,000 Retrofif existing potable irrigation customers to RW
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NORTH MARIN WATER DISTRICT

CAPITAL IMPROVEM ENT PROJ ECTS

2.6263.20

2.6609.20

2.8829.00

2.8912.00

2.8737.07

$1,000,000 - Replace and upsize redwood tank destroyed in Vision Fire with concrete tank.

b. New Gallaqher Well #2 $75,000 $335,000 Permit and construct 2nd well at Gallagher Ranch.

c. PB lace in w/ County Pavi $50,000 $50,000 For 25 replacements

2-71E5-00 d. Gallagher Ranch Streambank Stabilization lxote s;

e. Lagunitas Creek Brldge Pipe Replacement (Caltrans)

f. Olema Creek Bridqe Pipe Replacement (Countv)

TOTAL WEST MARIN WATER SYSTEM PROJECTS $1.485.000 $1.O4O.OOO

WEST MARIN WATER SYSTEM
a. Replace PRE Tank #44 çzsx sal w/125K gal)

OCEANA MARIN SEWER SYSTEM

a. lnfiltration Repair (Manhole Relining)

b. Tahiti Way Lift Pumps Replacement

c. OM Treatment Pond Rehab (ruote s)

FY21 FY22

$40,000 $40,000

tlac\budget\ry-2020-2'1\budget ilnal fy 20.21 \supportìng schedules ry 20.21\15 yt cip fy?o.21.xlsxl5 yr cip

FY21 Proiect Description

Hazard mitigation project to stabilize a section of Lagunitas Creek upstream of
- Gallagher Ranch bridge to protect NMWD well and pipeline from flooding

damaqe.

Ongoing work to identify and repair collection pipelines to prevent rainwater from
leakinq into ihe svstem.

$25,000 $100,000 Replacement of Lift Pumps

$225,000 $'1,600,000
Hazard mitigation project to armor the existing earthen treatment pond berms to
minimize storm erosion and damaoe due to earthouakes.

$260,000

$100,000 $400,000 Relocate/replace 8-inch water main across Lagunitas Creek Bridge

$255,000

7.

a.E672.28

8.7085.02

87173 EO

TOTAL OCEANA MARIN SEWER SYSTEM PROJECTS $29O,OOO $1,740,000
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NORTH MARIN WATER DISTRICT

CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PROJECTS
tlac\budgeflry-2020.21\budget final fy 20.21 \supporting schedules ry 20 21\15 yt cip fy2j.21 xlsxls yr cip

FY21 Project Description

SUMMARY. GROSS PROJECT OUTLAY
Novato Water

Recycled Water
West Marin Water

Oceana Marín Sewer

GROSS PROJECT OUTLAY

FY21 FY22

$4,987,000 $9,835,000
$100,000 $100,000

$1,485,000 $1,040,000
$290,000 $1,i40,0æ

$6,862,000 $12,715,000

LESS FUNDED BY LOANS/GRANTS/OTHER
a. Olficeffard Buildi no Refurbish lNote

Gallao her Ranch Streambank Stabilizationb.

($1.000.000) ($7.000.000)
ts385 000)

($700,000)

$700,000

f Note 3l

c. WM Novato Water Loan to WM rl¡ote ¿l

d. WM Novato Water Loan to WM r¡lote ¿l

e. OM Treatment Pond Rehab
TOTAL LOAN/GRANT FUNDS

SUMMARY - NET PROJECT OUTLAY
Novato Capital lmprovement Net Project Outlay

Recycled Water
West Marin Water

Oceana Marin Sewer
NET PROJECT OUTLAY

Total Number of District Projects

S-Year Average of lnternally Funded Projects FY2Q|21-FY24125

$3,987,000
$100,000

$'1,100,000

$3,535,000
$100,000
$340,000

$65,000 $290,000
$5,252,000 $4,265

3,530,000

28JJ
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NORTH MARIN WATER DISTRICT

CAPITAL IMPROVEM ENT PROJECTS

FY21 FY22

NOVATO POTABLE WATER DEBT SERVICE

a. STP SRF Loan $1.044,000 $1,044,000
b. AEEP Bank Loan $483.000 $482.000
c. Advanced Meter lnfo Retrofit Loan $377,000 $378,000
d. Admin Building Renovation Loan (ruote t) $422,000 $563,000

$2,326,000 $2,467,000
NOVATO RECYCLED WATER DEBT SERVICE

e. Deer lsland Facilitv SRF Loan $273,000 $273,000
f. RW North Expansion SRF Loan $282,000 $282,000
g. RW South Expansion SRF Loan $332,000 $332,000
h. RW Central Exp SRF Loan (¡¡etottr¡cc) $276,000 $227,000

$1,163,000 $1,1 14,000

WEST MARIN WATER DEBT SERVICE
i TP Solids Handllno Bank Loan $71,000 $71,000

$71,000

t:\ac\budget\ry-2020.21\budget finâl fy 20-21 \supporting schedules fy 20.21\5 yt cip 1y2o.21.xlsxl5 yr cip

FY21 Proiect Description

OCEANA MARIN SEWER DEBT SERVICE
CIP Financino

$71,000

$18,000
$0 $18.000

TOTAL DEBT SERVTCE $3,560,000 $3,670,000

NET PROJEGT O[.'TLAY & DEBT SERVICE $8,812,000 $7,935,000
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NORTH MARIN WATER DISTRICT

CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PROJECTS

STUDIES & SPECIAL PROJECTS
a Local Water S r rnnlv Enhancement Studv

t:\ac\budget\ry-2020.21\budget final fy 20.2 1 \supporting schedules ry 20 21\15 y( Èip fy2a.21.xlsxls yr cip

FY21 Project DescriPtion

b Novato Water Master Plan Uodate

FY21 FY22

$25.000 $100,000
$95,000
$50

1.4057.00

1.7039.02

'1.4059.00

1.4077 .O0

1.7140.O1

1.4050.00

1.6501.43

c Stafford Lake Water R hts 000

o. Potter FERC Relicen 000

e. Stafford Dam EAP & lnudation M aooino Uodates $10,000
r. Urban Water M ent Plan
g. Electronic Docu ment Manaoement Svstem 000

h. Oceana Marin Sewer Plan
t. Stafford Lake Sediment Su fVeV leverv 10 vrs)

j. West Marin Water Rate Siuclv $35,000
x. Desion Rennrt lFanle Dr. & Havd en Hvclro-P Svstem Uoorades) $20,000
I. Lvnwood/San Marin Zone2 Pumoinq Studv $30,000
m lqmp$fic,!_elSylHyq!3t¡tq 

qludy _ $30,000
$320 000 s385.000

Note 1 - $15M OffÌcel/ard Renovation is proposed to be funded bY 20year 3-5% Bank Loan.

Note 2 - project developed as pad of October 2017 Feasibility Assessment prepared by Prunuske Chatham, lnc.

Note 3 - $385K funded by others ($310K NRCS, $50K MALT, $25K MMWD)

Note 4 - Loan from Novato Water - to be paid back with inteÍest.

Note b - p roject to be funded at 75% by grants. Eligible project costs are budgeted at $2.2M (7 5%=ü .a25M). Also includes loans for capìtal projects of $250K in FY22.

5 $50
$60

000
000
000
000
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ATTACHMENT 2

22 Budget

$8,450

$4,265

$12,715

21 Budget

$1,610

$5,252

$6,862

20 ela

$o

$3,764

$3,764

l9
$o

$3,871

$3,871

18

$7,090

$3,901

$10,992

17

$6,351

$5,999

$12,350

16

$4,285

$1,341

$5,625

15

$12,676

$3,321

$15,997

14

$3,062

$1,393

$4,456

FY t3-zzAverage Total CtP = S8.5 million
FY t3-22Average lnternally Financed Expense = S3.5 million

13

$7,308

$1,429

$8,736

rDebVGrant Financed

tlnternally Financed

Total

4ßOn0

Thousands
NMWD Capital Improvement Project Expenditures

All Districts Combined

$20,000

$15,000

$10,000

$5,000

$o

t:\ac\budgely-2020.2 1\budgetfinal fy 20.21\supporting schedules ry 20.21V5 yr cip ry20.21.xlsxlchart data



NORTH MARIN WATER DISTRICT

EQU IPMENT EXP EN DITU RES

Fiscal Year 20/21 Budget

12106.01 00 a Metals Analyzer $85,000 Replace 21-year old metals analyzer as its repair components are no longer available.

121oe.o1.oc b. Meter Maintenance Program $57,000 Equipment to test meters up to 2".

$142,000

ATTACHMENT 3

12144.O1.00

12144.01.00

'12104.01.00

12104 01 00

2 VEHICLE & ROLLING EQUIPMENT EXPENDITURES
a S-Yard Dump Truck $135,000
b 9,000 GVWR Hyd Dump Trailer $1 1,000

c. 14,000 GVWR Tilt Deck Trailer $17,000
d Cart-Away 1 Yard Concrete Mixer $25,000

$r88,000

Total $330,000

Rollino Stock to be Transferred & Auctioned or Description

Replace #44 Dump Truck (over 1 10K miles and non-CA exhaust compliant)

Needed for building and grounds maintenance.

Needed for Construction Department to transport BobCat track loader.

Needed for Construction Department for more reliable transport of cement.

RECAP

Adopted
Budget
2019t24

Estimated
Actual

2019t20

Proposed
Budget
2020t21

Rolllng

Equipment $247,000 $244,000 $142,000

$188,000Stock $186,000 $138,000
$433,000 $382,000 $330,000

T:\AC\Budget\FY-2020.21\Budget Final F/ 20-21\suppoding Schedules FY 20.21\Equipzo.21Êqúp20.21



ATTACHMENT 4

4/3O/2020

10 Year History of Equipment Purchases
t:\ac\budgetvy-2020.21 \budget f nal fy

20.21 \supporting schedu¡es fy

s45o,ooo

54oo,ooo

s350,000

s3oo,ooo

s25o,ooo

5200,000

S15o,ooo

sloo,ooo

S5o,ooo

so

10 YearAverage - FY11-FY20
lnfo Systems $11,000
Rolling Stock $108,000
Other Equipment

Total 181

21 Budget

so

S188,ooo

s142,ooo

S33o,ooo

20 est

so

S138,ooo

$244,000

s382,ooo

19

so

592,730

52s,84e

S118,579

18

58,600

S58,143

$o,r¡r
572,974

17

so

5141,,o44

S77,Bo2

5218,846

16

so

54B,Bt2

526,374

575,187

15

so

5r72,989

523,231

5196,220

'J_4

s8,o5o

S161,834

s32,884

5202,768

13

so

s146,30s

543,764

5190,069

72

$33,346

S1o3,os7

553,724

5790,127

77

$36,375

5t6,67!

s774,672

S167,658

I lnfo Systems

I Rolling Stock

I Other Equipment

Total





Item #13

To:

From:

Subject:

MEMORANDUM

Board of Director

Robert Clark, Operations / Maintenance Superintendent

Wildfire Safety Program - 2020
XiMAINT SUP\2020\BOD\BOD Memo PGE outage plan2020.doc

May 1 ,2020

{/,Ø

RECOMMENDEDAGTION: lnformation

FINANCIAL IMPACT: $58,000 for equipment rental to be included in the
proposed FY20l21 Budget

Summarv

ln 2019, PG&E implemented their Public Safety Power Shutoff (PSPS) program to

minimize the potential for wildfires caused by high voltage power line failures, This PSPS program

continues in 2020 and PG&E will once again proactively turn off power lines to help reduce the

likelihood of a wildfire ignition when extreme fire conditions are forecasted. See the PG&E web site

for more information.(Public Safety Power Shutoff (PSPS) - PGE.com ) PG&E's PSPS program

includes allelectric lines that pass through high fire{hreat areas, both transmission and distribution.

Specifically, PG&E will consider the following factors before proactively shutting off power lines:

. A red flag warning

. Low humidity levels, generally below 20%

. Forecasted sustained winds above 25 mph and gusts in excess of 45 mph

. Condition of dry fuel on the ground

. On-the-ground, realtime observations by PG&E

Since last year the District has increased the number of large generators from 4 to 6 units (3-

45kw,2-100kw, 1-250kw,) and have purchased 10 smallmobile backup powergenerators (1-6kw,

9-3kw) that can be transported and placed at key facilities to maintain at least a minimum water

supply for our customers' health and wellbeing during these PSPS events. However, in order to

maintain the District's readiness to respond to the challenges posed by wildfire and the potential

impacts of PG&E's PSPS plan, additional backup power resources will still be required. We propose

to provide these additional resources for the 2020 wildfire season using a fleet of additional mobile

generators that will be purchased and rented. ln our current FY 19120 budget plan, we have two



small 6kw light tower generators that will be purchased this spring. This summerwe plan to augment

our generator equipment with the rental of five large (3-45kw and 2-100kw) generators and a 500-

gallon diesel fuel tank.

Backqround

During the 2019 PSPS events PG&E's utility grid power supply was shut down for extended

periods throughout our service areas in Novato and West Marin. Backup power supplies are

generally designed to perform minimal operations for short periods of time on occasion while the

utility grid power is restored, and are not generally designed or capable of providing the full range of

operational needs, regular use, or run for prolonged periods of time. We found that we required

three large generators and 9 small generators in 24 hours a day operation at fixed locations during

the extended power outage in the Fall of 2019. With another six large generators and three small

generators being moved around the Novato and West Marin Service areas to supporl our needs

throughout the PSPS events.

Generator and Staffino Needs

For planning our response this year, we reviewed our lessons learned from last fall that included

a range of system operating parameters from low winter water use periods to high summer

demands. Our typical operating procedures for the summer months are to maintain a minimum

storage level of 75% of full capacity. From our review of last fall, we were able to maintain a 90%

capacity in all of our storage facilities with a 2417 response plan. From our lessons learned about

working at night in 2019 we are planning full coverage 16 hours per day staffing for day and swing

shifts and three staff on a graveyard shift.

Backup power for the Main office and Yard buildings will be provided by 100kw and 45kw

generators in order to maintain customer service and SCADA control of our facilities. The 250 Kw

generator will be used at the Lynwood Pump station as it was able to maintain capacity throughout

Zone2 with the Slowdown Court zone valve open. We plan to operate the Stafford Treatment Plant

with the new permanent on-site generator. The plan also calls for two 100 Kw generators to be

moved around to the Novato pump stations and one for the West Marin Treatment Plant. We will

need to use four (4) 45 Kw generators for Novato and West Marin. We will also use the ten 3kw

generators for the network of tank SCADA and lnternet services.

The Eagle Drive and Hayden hydro systems will require the most time to operate, with at last 2

pump cycles every hour from 5 am to 1am daily. The plan again requires rental of portable

2



generators at each of these sites along with having Operations or Construction staff available to

refuel these generators throughout the day.

Costs

Six-month rental of the 100Kw generator will be $14,700 and the 45 kw will be $8,400. We will

also reach out through WaterAgency Response Network (WARN) to find these generators although

we were not successful in 2019. Six-month rental of a SOO-gallon temporary diesel storage tank will

be $3,360. Additional costs will include fuel (500gal x $3.90 = $1,950), staffing shift differential and

overtime = $60,000, vehicles = $1,400 for each week we are out of power.

Total estimated equipment costs

Rental 6 months'

100 Kw 2x$14,700 = $29,400

45Kw 3x$9,400 =925,200

Fuel
Tank 1x$3,360 =$3,360

Total Rent = $58,000

Purchases

6kw Light tower

Total Purchases

2x$4,000=$8,000

000$8
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Item #14

To:

From:

Subject:

MEMORANDUM

Board of Directors

Ryan Grisso, Water Conservation Coordinator K6
Public Communications lmplementation Update No. 1

V:\Memos to Board\Kìosk Public Communications Update.doc

May 1 ,2020

RECOMMENDED ACTION

FINANCIAL IMPACT:

lnformation Only

lnformation Only

As a result of the North Marin Water District 2018 Strategic Plan, a series of goals were de-

veloped. Goal 2, Customer Engagement and Service, focused on increased communication with

customers to improve public understanding and support for District policies and to facilitate custom-

er input and engagement. To accomplish this goal, development of a public communications plan

(or public outreach plan), including a strategy for more effective social media outreach was recom-

mended.

To help develop a more comprehensive and strategic communications plan, a consulting

services agreement with Kiosk (a Novato based firm)was approved at the October 15,2019 meet-

ing in an amount not to exceed $60,000. This agreement accompanied the previously approved

Website Development Project for $30,000 (approved at the September 17,2019 Board meeting).

Communications Plan:

The Communications Plan lmplementation Agreement includes a variety of recommended

actions intended to achieve the main goals of the Plan, included in Table 1 (with status update on

each):

Table 1: Communication Plan lmplementation Agreement Actions

Action Status

1) Action: Design of the "Waterline" Newsletter for

both Novato and West Marin.

Status: Kiosk successfully designed a fresh new

look for the Fall 2019 Waterline for Novato and is

in the process of designing the Spring Novato and

West Marin "Waterline" Newsletters.

2) Action: Create an updated working set of District

logos for staff use and for agents to download as

needed.

Status: Completed

3) Action: Create a set of Brand Guidelines, to in-

clude acceptable logo usage, brand fonts and

brand colors.

Status: Completed

4) Action: Create Messaging Guidelines to ensure Status: ln-progress



consistency in the presentation of the District

and the tone of the voice used.

5) Action: Commission photography of the District

Board (portrait style) and District staff in action

and more conceptual lifestyle images that con-

vey the quality and value of NMWD services.

Status: The Board photos were completed. The

staff photos were planned to begin this spring but

have been postponed till after the COVID-19 peri-

od.

6) Action: Create and build out a social media cal-

endar for the year.

Status: ln-progress but delayed due to the COVID-

19 period.

7) Action: Create a branding social media template

and creating a library of branded social media

images

Status: ln-progress but delayed due to the COVID-

19 period,

8) Action: lmplement a campaign to get more fol-

lowers on Facebook and Twitter so more cus-

tomers will see District social media posts.

Status: Not yet commenced

9) Action: Copywriting and content services to cre-

ate and launch onlineisocial media posts to

share District ideas, facts, stats and accom-

plishments, as well as employee profiles.

Status: ln-Progress but delayed due to the COVI-

'19 period. However, Kiosk assisted staff in the

initiation of a Twitter page in March.

10) Action: Create visually interesting infographics,

stats and facts to ensure that the future website

content is more engaging.

Status: ln progress

11) Action: Other outreach and communication ac-

tions as needed.

Status: Ongoing

Public Communications lmplementation Update
May '1, 2020
Page 2

Website Development:

The Website Development Project is in the final stages of development and staff is currently

reviewing the draft template page designs. Staff expects to have an alpha (draft) site to review in

the next week. The launch (or go-live date) of the site has been postponed for a variety of reasons,

mainly to maintain website consistency during the rate study plan and workshop process, and up-

coming rate increase hearings in June.



Public Communications lmplementation Update
May 1,2020
Page 3

Financial Update:

These two agreements were originally projected to exceed the FY20 budget by up to

$3O,OOO, however, with a slight lag in initiating some of the actions, and now from the effects from

the coronavirus (COVID-19) situation, the projected costs are not expected to exceed the budget.

Table 2 references the current agreement amounts and expenditures to date.

Table 2: Kiosk Agreement Amounts and Current (FY20) Expenditures

Ag reement/Project Name Agreement

Amount

Current

Expenditures

Balance

Communications Plan lmplementation Agreement $60,000 $5,1 40 $54,860

Website Development Agreement $30,000 $13,475 $'16,525





Item #15

0

Board Meeting Agenda

¡otlHIAV
wAftn$tto A¡r¡oclAttofl

North Bay
Watershed
Association
Board Meeting Notice

May 1st, 2020

1. Catl to Order
Jack Gibson, Chair

Zoom ortenÍalion - 'tFEl

2. Public Comment

3. Approval ofAgenda
,4c/ion.' Approve
4. Approval of March Summary
AcÍion.' A,oprove
5. Treasure's Report
Aclíon.'Accepl

6. Board Information Exchange
The virus - impacts to members

7. Proposed NBWA 2L/21,n,ragit

Judy Kelly, Ex. Director
Judy will give an overview of the proposed

Budget and answer questions about the
Budget or the Budget Memo.
,4clion.' Approve 20/21 Proposed Budgel

8. Announcements

The public portion of the meeting will end

and the Board will go into Closed Session

9. Personnel ltems

1,0. Adjourn

Zoom call

Next Meeting
June 5th,2020

9:30 am

I rnin.

1 min.

1min.

9:45 am

10:15 am

10:45 am

ll:25 ant

c,





Item #1G
DISBURSEMENTS . DATED APRIL 23, 2O2O

Date Prepared 4121120

The following demands made against the District are listed for approval and authorization for payment in accordance
with Section 31302 of the California Water Code, being a part of the California Water District Law:

Seq Pavable To For Amount

P/R* Employees

lnternal Revenue Service

State of California

CaIPERS

US Bank

EFT*

EFT*

EFT*

EFT*

57551* Kessler, Sue

1 Alphagraphics

2 Amazon Card

American Family Life lnsurance

Arrow Benefit Group

A.S.T.r.

AT&T

Bacciocco, Warren

Baker, Jack

9 Bank of Marin

10 Barry, John & Karen

Net Payroll PPE 4115120

Federal & FICA Taxes PPE 4115120

State Taxes & SDI PPE 4115120

Pension Contribution PPE 4115120

March Bank Analysis Charge (Lockbox $912 &
Other $398, Less lnterest $92)

Payment for Sewing 40 Cloth Masks ($5 eacn¡

Postage for Proposition 218 Public Hearing
Notice (18,223)

Seats (2) ('02 &'15 lnt'l Dump Trucks) ($3S+¡,
Wireless Access Points (2) ($338), High Gain
Antenna ($100¡ & Misc. Office Supplies ($67)

ApTiIAFLAC Employee Paid Benefit

March & April DentalAdmin Fees

Annual Fire Service (62)

Leased Lines (2)

Refund Overpayment on Open Account

Exp Reimb: ACWA Conference in San Diego
1213-1216119. Aidare ($3OZ¡, Transp ($100¡,
Lodging ($Bez¡ & Meals ($48)

Bank of Marin Loan Principal & lnterest (Pymt
102 of 240) Aqueduct Energy Efficiency Project

Refund Backflow lnstallation and Service
Charges

3

4

5

6

7

o

138,598,42

61,109.22

12,757.91

37,105.66

1,218.06

200.00

3,752.12

955.58

3,027.83

587,60

6,320.00

66.06

951.72

1,338.07

46,066.67

698.66

.Prepaid Page 1 of 3 Disbursements - Dated April23, 2020



Seq Pavable To For Amount

11 Bay Area Barricade Service

12 Bold & Polisner

13 Boucher Law

Clipper Direct

Comcast

Core Utilities

14

15

to

17 Davenport, Colin

'18 DeGabriele, Chris

'19 Evoqua Water Technologies

Fedak & Brown

21 Arthur J. Gallagher

22 Grainger

Great Lakes Env

Hildebrand Consulting

"Property of North Marin Water District" Signs
(150) ($773), Spray Chalk (36 cans) ($153) &
Marking Paint (48 cans) ($1OO¡

March Legal Fees-General ($3,192) & Potter
Valley FERC ($80t¡

March Labor & Employment Legal Fees

May Commuter Benefit Program

April lnternet Connection

Consulting Services: March lT Support ($6,000),
SCADA ($2ZS¡, lT & SCADA Support for Novato
Radio/Cell Modem Sites ($950), Upgrades for
CORE Shut-Off Policy ($8ZS¡ & Website
Maintenance ($375)

Exp Reimb: Water TP Operation Course
Package

Progress Billing #8: Consulting Services-Office
Renovation ($1,ZSZ¡ & New Gallagher Well #2
($9tZ¡ (Balance Remaining on Contract $4,862)

Servíce on Deionization System

March Progress Billing on Audit Financial
FY19120 (Balance Remaining on Contract
$16,625)

FY20 Property, Excess Liability, Public Official
Error & Omissions, Employee Fidelity & Auto
Physical Damages (District porlion $119,763 &
Marin County Flood Control portion $16,878)

Misc. Maintenance Supplies

Refund Security Deposit on Hydrant Meter Less
Final Bill

Prog Pymt #10: Water Rate Study (Balance
Remaining on Contract $1 ,715)

Colilert Media (200) ($858) & Coli Comparator
(Lab)

20

1,125.32

4,053.00

2,100.00

107.00

144.92

8,375.00

158.53

2,664.00

340 26

1,500.00

136,641.00

17.49

531.00

3,360.00

882.99

23

24

25

*Prepaid

ldexx Laboratories

Page 2 of 3 Disbursements - Dated April 23, 2020



Seo Pavable To For Amount

26

27

28

29

30

31

32

33

34

35

36

37

38

39

lxom Watercare

Lincoln Life Employer

Madruga lron Works

Mutual of Omaha

Nationwide Retirement Solution

Pace Supply

Parkinson Accounting Systems

Point Reyes Prop Mgmt Assn

Quadient

SMART

Tamagno Green Products

Thatcher Chemical

TPx Communications

VWR lnternational

Repair & Maintenance on Solar Bee Mixers on
Stafford Lake

Deferred Com pensation 41 1 5120

Annual Fire Service Replacement Vault Lids
DCA Repair (6)

May Group Life lnsurance Premium

Deferred Com pensalion 4l I 5l2O

Angle Meter Stops (25) ($2,637), Corp Stops (9)
(92,144) & 4" Flange Spools (2) ($299)

Accounting Software Support

April HOA Dues (25 Giacomini Rd)

May Postal Meter Rental

License Fee for Easement Access @ Golden
Gate Crossing for 0412020-0312021

Sludge Removal @ STP (945 yds)

Chlorine (4,000 lbs) (STP)

April Telephone Charges

Measuring Cylinders (2) (Lab)

TOTAL DISBURSEMENTS

8,904.94

9,391.72

12,544.78

983.65

920.00

5,079.69

1,500.00

75.05

143.09

835.58

900.00

1,705.20

586.01

27.06
520,350.E6

The foregoing payroll and accounts payable vouchers totaling $520,350.86 are hereby approved and

authorized for payment.

ito nt Date

a Õ2.)
General Manager

*Prepaid

Date

Page 3 of 3 Disbursements - Dated April 23, 202O



DISBURSEMENTS - DATED APRIL 30, 2O2O

Date Prepared 4128120

The following demands made against the District are listed for approval and authorization for payment in accordance
with Section 31302 of the California Water Code, being a part of the California Water District Law:

Se Pavable To For Amount

*90274 CalPERs

*90275 US Bank Card

Allen, Erika

Athens Administrators

AT&T

Bearings & Hydraulics

CDW-Government

Cummings Trucking

Eudy, lngeborg

Fishman Supply

Fisher Scientific

Grainger

12

Hach

Harrington lndustrial Plastics

Home Depot13

May Health lnsurance Premium (Employees
10,505.96, Retirees $1 1 ,879.45 & Employer
Contri butio n $48,294.32)

Brown, Caldwell & Craigslist G/M Chief
Engineer Position Postings ($5ZS¡, Aatrix-
Quarterly State Payroll Tax & 941 Filing ($50),
GFOA Online Training "Budgeting During a
Recession" ($35), CSMFO Membership
Renewal (Blue) ($1tO¡, Supplies for face
coverings - Credit ot $232 pending ($254) &
Skillpath "Business Grammar & Proofreading"
Seminar ($1 19)

Refund Overpayment on Closed Account

February Bill Review Fees

April lnternet Connection (STP)

Parts for Dam Bubblers (4)

Cable for Front Office Network (3)

Rock (33 yds) ($1 ,422) & Sand (16 yds)
($1,ozs¡

Novato "Toilet Rebate" Program

Safety Gloves (600)

Petri Dishes (1,200) (Lab)

Adjustable Beam Light ($387), Utility Pump
(STP) ($271), Hose for Pressure Washer ('19
Ditch Witch) ($2ZS¡ & Misc Maintenance
Supplies ($7+S¡

Glycine Reagent (Lab)

2" BallValve (STP)

Rapid Set Concrete (50-60 lb bags)

2

3

4

5

o

$70,679.73

1,092.69

198.00

9.64

96.30

63.10

392.30

2,447.66

200.00

46.68

275.06

1,678.11

58.52

209.84

706.87

7

B

o

10

11

*Prepaid Page '1 of 3 Disbursements - Dated April 30, 2020



Seq Pavable To For Amount

14 lntellaprint Systems Quarterly Maintenance on Engineering
Copier/Scanner

John's Plumbing & Sewer Service lnspect & Repair Hot Water Heater lgnition (25
Giacomini Rd)

16 Kiosk Creative Marketing Communication & Outreach Services
(Balance Remaining on Contract $54,560)

17 Lazure, Alan Novato "Smart lrrigation Controller" Program

1B McAghon, Andrew Lawn Be Gone Sheet Mulching Program (36
Grande Vista)

19

15

20

21

25

447.00

814.31

3,915.00

206.14

572.00

44.17

200.00

830.00

1,435.47

8,395.62

750.00

436,457.59

100.00

'10,748.08

7,373.00

2,869.76

22 Pace Supply

23 Rauch Communication
Consultant

24 Roy's Sewer Service

Sonoma County Water Agency

Spaulding, James

SPG Solar Facility

Lab Door Knob

Novato "Toilet Rebate" Program

Novato "Toilet Rebate" Program & Refund
Alternative Compliance Reg 15 Deposit ($630)

Strap Saddles (1 1)

Prog Pymt#7: Consulting Services: Outreach
Support (Balance Remaining on Contract
$12,785) ($6,0a0¡ & Prog Pymt#8: Consulting
Services Related to SB 998 Residential Water
Shut-off (Balance Remaining on Contract
$11,075) ($'1,709)

Perform Maintenance & lnspection of 25
Giacomini Rd Septic Tank

lVarch Contract Water

Novato "Toilet Rebate" Program

March Energy Delivered Under Solar Services
Agreement

Environmental Lab Accreditation Program
Annual Certification Fees

Refund Excess Advance for Engineering Over
Actual Job Cost-Spring Brook Green Homes

McMaster-Carr Supply

Ngo, Chris

Olivar, Santiago Carcamo

26

27

28 SWRCB Accounting Office

29 Stonehenge Properties

.Prepaid Page 2 of 3 Disbursements - Dated April 30, 2020



Seq Pavable To For Amount

30 VBS

31 VWR lnternational

32 White & Prescott

Bond Paper (2) (36" x 150'& 36" x 500') (Eng
Plotter)

Safety Gloves (100) ($128), Buffers (2) ($101) &
Chlorite (Lab)

Prog Pymt#4: Jerry's Deli Water Line Easement
(Balance Remaining on Contract $32,130)
($1SS¡, Prog Pymt#S: AEEP Easement Support
82 Reach A (Balance Remaining on Contract
$31,905) ($225) & Prog Pymt#6: PRE Tank 4A
Easement Agreements (Balance Remaining on
Contract $30,425) ($1,+aO¡

TOTAL DISBURSEMENTS

185.25

286.03

1,840,00
$555,623.92

The foregoing payroll and accounts payable vouchers totaling $555,623.92 are hereby approved and
authorized for payment.

lu ,r

lrrQ, ß-ht"- Vlsz Jaoto
Øl¿ itor-Controller

n Manager

Date

Date

*Prepaid Page 3 of 3 Disbursements - Dated April 30, 2020
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t:Vinance\pay\[bod payroll chart.xlsx]043020

Baker

Reg Meeting 41712020 241,.00

Reg Meeting 412U202O 24L.00

*ACWA Conference 72/3-12/6/79 940.00

**Extra Meeting 4/6&4127 741.40

Total 1,663.00

BOARD OF DTRECTOR'S 4/30/20

APRIL MEETINGS

Fraites Grossi

$241.00 s241.00

5241.00 5241.00

5241.0O

482.O0 723.00

*NBWRA Meeting

on 4/27 /20

Joly

5241,.00

s241.00

482.00

Petterle

s241..00

241.00

482.00

% *Attended ACWA

Conference in San

Diego 12/3-

12/6/Is (a days)

*xwAc/TAc

Meeting on

4/6/20



To:

From:

Subject:

RECOMMENDED ACTION

FINANCIAL IMPACT:

MEMORANDUM

Board of Directors

Nancy Holton, Accounting Supervisor¡{$,

Hydrant Damage History
t.\f¡nance\memos\hydrant damage history 201 Ldoc.docx

May 1 ,2020

None

Average Annual Unreimbursed Expense of $2,000

Attached is a listing of damaged hydrants from the previous seven years. As shown, on

average, six hydrants are damaged annually - with an average cost to repair of $3,167 each.

The District recovers 89% of the repair cost, primarily through claims against the responsible

driver's auto insurance. The uncollected costs arise due to either hit and run accidents or

uninsured drivers.



Hydrant Damage - 7 Year History 5t1t2020

\\nmwdserverl \administration\finance\[hydrant damage history.xls]0501 20

Date H rant Location
1000 c
842 Reichert Ave
San Marin High School
5720 Nave Dr.
lndian Valley & lndian Springs
Cambridge & Buchanan
San Antonio Rd
lgnacio Blvd
Clav Ct

Re ir Cost Reimbursed Reason not Reimbursed
1,359 Yes

FY
7122t2013
8t20t2013
916t2013
1t14t2014
3t26t2014
4t4t2014

411012014
6t9t2014

6t25t2014

$628
$1,168

$7e1
93,712
$5,336
$4,421
$2,023

$697

Hit and Run

Yes
Yes
Yes
No

Yes
Yes
Yes
Yes I

12t13t2014
11812015

1t16t2015
4t9t2015

4t22t2015
5t17 t2015

20 Woodfern Ct
396 Bel Marin Keys Blvd
20 Woodfern Ct
12073 Shoreline Hwy
2045 Novato Blvd
School Rd

9727
$1,427
$3,1 98
$5,066

$944
$4,681

Hit and Run

Yes
Yes
Yes
No

Yes
Yes o

10t29t2015
12t10t2015
12t21t2015
12t31t2015
212312016

1730 Novato Blvd
lgnacio Blvd
1725 Novato Blvd
H Lane & Bugeia

$1 ,151

$2,222
$2,760

$12,032

Yes
Yes
Yes
Yes
Yes55F Lane

1111812016 Grant Ave-Lucky Store
121912016 15 Thorsson Ct
312312017 481 lndian Sprinss

161

,058
$1,208
$6,147

Yes
Yes
Yes

5

J
8t14t2017
812412017
11t24t2017
12t28/2017
1t22t2018
2t1612018
3t6t2018

120 Landing Ct
35 Rowland
1400 Donna St
449 Grandview Ave
2045 Novato Blvd
1761 Grant Ave
lqnacio Blvd

$3,1 09
$1,192
$5,920
$3,527
$1,692
$3,810
$4.051

Yes
Yes
Yes
Yes
Yes
Yes
Yes 7

7t10t2018
7t24t2018
9t2112018
1t12t2019
5t6t2019

$3,400
$5,422
$1,029
$1,557
$6,842

55 Monte Vista Dr
16 Estates Dr
2645 Petaluma Blvd South
396 Bel Marin Keys Blvd
91 Mesa-Pt Reyes Station

Yes
Yes
Yes
Yes
Yes 5

711612019 San Antonio Rd
1011912019 Atherton Place
111412019 5820 Nave Drive
121312019 100 Wood Hollow

1212212019 200 Cutlass Dr

$4,822
$1,878
$1,304
$4,051
$1,169

Yes
Yes
Yes
No
No

Hit and Run
Hit and Run 5

Amount Not Collected
Percent Collected:

Total Cost: $126,692

$13,998
89%

Avg Cost per Hydrant
Avg # per Year
Avg Annual Unreimb Cost

$3, I 67
6

$2,000



To:

From

Subj:

MËMORANDI.,'M

Board of Directors

Nancy Willianrson, Senior Accountant

lnformation - FY20 3rd Quarter Labor Cost Report

May 1 ,2020

REco;ïå* Jïåff * 
"''ìn,o,*ation 

onry

FINANGIAL lnnPACT: [!one

Total labor cost increased $391,930 (6.7%) from the prior fiscal year. Attached in

graphical format is a five-year comparative summary of total labor cost (Attachment A), overtime

cost (Attachment B) and temporary employee cost (Attachment C) expended during each fiscal

year. Also attached is a sumrrìary of total labor cost vs. budget (Attachment D), which shows

that labor was 4.7o/o under budget through the end of the third quarter of the fiscal year.

Administration
Ëngineering
Operations/Maint
Construction/Mlaint

$73,489
s14,222

$239,338
$64 BB1

4.9o/o

1.5%
11.2%
5A%

Net I ncrease/(Decrease) $391,930 6.7%

Comment on Chanqe from Prior Year

Administrafion; Labor Cost increased $73,489, or 4.9o/o. The increase was due to ten 5% step

increases, the 2.7o/o cost of living adjustment (COLA) effective October 1,2019, and a one-time

equity adjustment of 0.5% effective July 1, 2CI19. Overall the administration department is under

budget due to the Human Resource/Safety Manager position being vacant the entire fiscal year.

Engineering: Labor Cost increased $14,222, or 1.5%. The increase is due to three 5% step

increases, the October 2019 COLA and the one-time 0.5% equity adjustment. The increase is

offset by the resignation of the Chief Engineer on February 4,202A and that position remaining

vacant.

tperationslMaintenänce." Labor Cost increased $239,338, or 11.2%. The increase was

primarily due to fourteen 5% step increases, the October 2A19 COLA and equity adjustments

effective July 1,2019 ranging frorn 0.5% to 10.5%. The increasewas offset bythe resignation

of a Chemist ll on February 21,2020 and that position remaining vacant.

Canstructian/Maintenance: Labor Cost increased $64,881, or 5.4o/o. The increase was due to

eight 5% step-increases, the October 2019 COLA and equity adjustments effective July 1,2019

ranging from 0.5% to 6.5%.

lncrease / (Decrease) in
Labor Cost vs prior FY % GhanqeDepartment



56,20L,87B
FTE 52.0

Jul 19 - Mar 20

52,381,685

51,264,740

51,s78,877

s976,575

Sa,zot,sts

S5,809,948
FTE 52.0

Jul 1-8 - Mar 19

52,208,727

5r,239,s64

S1,528,335

S975,085

S5,809,948

Jul77 - Mar 18

s2,1-s6,34s

5r,r29,136

5L,6r7,9L4

S1,001,561

S5,805,849

S5,805,849

FTE 53.0

Ops/Maint
Const/Maint
Admin
Engineering

Total 25%

5 Year Avg

Growth Rate

3.2%

43%
L.t%
1.2%

5s,793,433

Jul 16 - Mar t7

52,788,743

51,087,7s4

St,667,Bot

s946,756

55,793,433

S5,609,670

FTE 5I.7

Jul 15 - Mar 16

52,14L,608

S1,099,583

5t,523,172

s932,4s6

$5,609,670

r Ops/Maint

r Const/Maint

r Admin

I Eng

I Total

5i1120 Total Labor Cost

NMWD Fiscal Year through March
5-Year Comparison

t:\f¡nance\hrsrptw20 3rd qtr labor æst report\all hrs $ chart.xls

ST,ooo,ooo

S6,ooo,ooo

S5,ooo,ooo

S4,ooo,ooo

S3,ooo,ooo

S2,ooo,ooo

Sl,ooo,ooo

So

r Ops/Ma¡nt I Const/Maint r Admin I Eng I Total

ATTACHMENT A



S190,366

Jul l-9 - Mar 20

s102,848

Sso,g:z

S3o,s82

S190,366

Jul 18 - Mar 19

596,t42

S54,750

s35,489

5186,380

S186,380

Jul t7 - Mar 18

582,17!

549,682

517,87O

5749,723

5!49,723

5124/.84

s724,t84

Jul 16 - Mar 17

573,285

s38,475

5!2,425

5152,t}t

Jul 15 - Mar 16

573,7s9

s65,758

Srz,sor

s84

S152,101

r ops/Maint

r Const/Maint

I Admin

I Eng

I Total

5t1t20
tvinanæ\hrsrptw2o 3rd qtr labor cost report\ot $ chart

Overtime Cost

NMWD Fiscal Year through March
S-Year Com ar¡son

S2oo,ooo

S18o,ooo

S16o,ooo

s140,000

S12o,ooo

51oo,ooo

s8o,ooo

s6o,ooo

54o,ooo

s2o,ooo

so

r Ops/Maint r Const/Maint r Admin r Eng r Total

ATTACHMENT B



572,szo

I

Jul 19 - Mar 20

s13,380

5o

518,883

S4o,2s7

572,szo

...lI
Jul 18 - Mar 19

512,926

522,67r

55o,077

5t6,t26

Sloi-,800

S1o1,8oo

574,1s6

I
I

Jul t7 - Mar 18

56,644

s21,318

526,084

s2O,L70

574,156

5r9,7t3

555,814

Sss,8i.4

Jul 16 - Mar 17

512,298

5r5,7L4

S8,08s

s104,308

I

L I
Jul 15 - Mar 1-6

S31,416

525,982

St4,z52

532,659

$104,308

r Ops/Maint

r const/Maint

r Admin

I Eng

r Total

5t1t20
t\finanæ\hrsrpt\FY2o 3rd qtrlabor @st report\temp $ chart.xls

Temporary Employee Cost

NMWD Fiscal Year through March

5120,000
S-Year Com rison

s100,ooo

sSo,ooo

S6o,ooo

s40,000

s20,000

so

r Ops/Maint r Const/Maint r Admin t Eng I Total

ATTACHMENT C



5t1t20
Total Labor Cost vs. Budget

NMWD Fiscal Year through March

t:\f¡nance\hrsrpt\labor cost compared to budget fy2o\salary chart.xls

ST,ooo,ooo

S6,ooo,ooo

S5,ooo,ooo

s4,000,000

S3,ooo,ooo

s2,000,000

Sl,ooo,ooo

so

So,srr,ooo
56,20!,877

I

s2,381,685
52,442,000

II
5t,s7 8,877 S 1-,695,000

5t,264,740 S1,3oo,ooo

r r 5s7',s7s s1'074'ooo

Administration Constr/Maint Engineering Ops/Maint Total

ATTACHMENT D



To:

From:

Subject:

MEMORANDUM

Board of Director" .(A
Tony Arendell, Construction/Maintenance Superintendent I'
2020 Flushing Program Update
KICONST SUP\2020\2020 Flushing 2.doc

May 1 ,2020

RECOMMENDED ACTION

FINANCIAL IMPAGT:

lnformation

None

The 2Q20 Novato system flushing program kicked off January 13th and was completed by

March 4th. The lower part of the system (Zone 1) was flushed this year. The program was performed

by the Construction/Maintenance Department. All lines were flushed continuously with high velocity

water (2,5 cfs). As part of our National Pollutant Discharge Elimination System (NPDES) Permit,

measurements of the free chlorine residual levels in the discharge water were taken to ensure no

chlorine entered the storm drains. This year Zone l appeared to be much "cleaner" than years past

and the brown water would clear quíckly. The flushing plan to alternate between Zone 1 and the

upper zones annually is still the appropriate plan for now.

The Novato flushing program used just under 5.1 million gallons (MG) of water, with Zone 1

main distribution lines using 4,0 MG, and the smaller branches using 1.1 MG, requiring 617 staff

hours. Also, during the 2020 program there were no blow-off assembly or hydrant repairs in Novato

and 3 þroken blow-offs assembly repairs in Point Reyes.

The Pt. Reyes system was flushed in late April. The flushing was performed by members of

the Operations Department. 48 hours were charged to the flushing program, Due to salinity intrusion

issues, the Pt. Reyes system was not flushed in 2019. The water was much dirtier than usual and it is

not recommended to skip flushing in this area, if possible. The flushed water was dechlorinated with

Vita-D-chlor tablets to ensure no chlorine entered into the drains. The staff followed NMWD flushing

guidelines. 383,000 gallons were flushed in total.

There were no water quality complaints reported with 2 calls into the office about water in the

street and about why we pedorm the flushing. ln the Paradise Ranch Estates (PRE) system, one

customer lost water pressure. That customer's home is much higher in elevation than their meter, so

while the pressure at main and meter remained above 20 psi, there was little to no pressure in the

house. The customer understood the situation and Water Quality staff were in contact. The flushing

crew in the field responded to multiple consumer inquires daily, with questions about what they were

doing.



MEMORANDUM

To: Board of Director" iA
From: Tony Arendell, Construction/Maintenance Superintendent I , I

Subj: Spoils Pile Removal
klconst sup\2020\m6mos\bod momo spo¡ls removal from back lot 2020.dod

May 1,2020

RECOMMENDED ACTION:

FINANCIAL IMPAGT:

lnformation

$24,500 Savings

The spoils pile in the back lot is where the construction department temporarily stores

excavated dirt and oil asphalt from District pipeline construction jobs. When the pile gets big, the

District then has pay someone to haul off the unwanted material, Most recently, the District crews

have been hauling spoils dirt to Valley Memorial Park Cemetery however this is no longer

available. The cost to dispose of the dirt at the landfill is $40 per yard plus hauling cost. The last

time the District paid to have the dirt hauled out of the yard was in 2015 at a cost of $15 a yard.

The current price is about $35 a yard.

ln the summer o12019, Ghilotti Construction was awarded the construction job to widen

Highway 101 through Petaluma. ln talking with their project manager, lwas able to get their

commitment to haulthe dirt from the back lot at no cost. On March 27,2020, Ghilotti Construction

hauled about 700 yards out of the back lot at no cost saving the District $24,500 (see attached

photos).
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MEMORANDUM

To: Board of Directors

From: Brad Stompe, Distribution and Treatment Plant Supervisor

Subject: Annual Aquatic lnvasive Species (AlS) Report for Stafford Lake, 2019
X:WAINT SUPPO20tsODVBOD Memo Staffotd AIS Rpt 2020.doc

Ø

May 1 ,2Q20

RECOMMENDED ACTION:

FINANGIAL IMPAGT:

lnformation only

None at this time

Overview:

Stafford Lake is a 231-acre drinking water reservoir located west of Novato and is owned and

operated bythe North Marin Water District (NMWD). Swimming, wading and boating are prohibited,

but fishing is allowed. Stafford Lake Park is operated by Marin County and the rangers work with the

District in enforcing the no water contact rule. There are occasions when we will have the need for

contractors to have a boat on the lake. When this occurs, District personnel perform an inspection of

the boat and all equipment that will be in contact with the water, ln addition, a survey is also filled out

which includes information on; where the boat was last used, how long it has been out of the water,

was it disinfected, has the boat ever been used in a body of water known to have Aquatic lnvasive

Species (AlS) and if so, what species.

AIS lnspections:

AIS inspections began in 2Q14 when NMWD was contacted by Catherine Mandella, Environmental

Specialist, Aquatic Species Program, California Department of Fish and Wildlife. From 2014to2017

water samples were taken monthly if possible and analyzed for AIS in planktonic form, Due to the

lakes low risk of exposure and all samples coming up negative, Catherine changed our monitoring

procedure to substrate and surface surveys. This includes two inspection sites on the lake (see

attachment #1) where small pieces of pipe (see attachment #2) are suspended by rope from an

anchored buoy at approximately 10 and 20 feet in depth. The pipe is inspected monthly for any signs

of AIS with special attention for the presence of quagga and zebra mussels. A visual inspection of the

shoreline at the launch site is also performed. All inspections for 2019 revealed no signs of AlS.
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State Water Board Adopts Monthly
Water Use Reporting Requirements

Board Action Promotes Transparency and Water Efficiency

April 21,2020 Gontact: George Kostyrko
Georqe. Kostyrko@waterboa rds. ca.qov

SACRAMENTO 
-California's 

largest urban retailwater suppliers will now be required

to report monthly water use, as was mandatory during the last drought but has been

voluntary since November 2017.

At its meeting today, the State Water Board adopted a requlation that builds on the

state's water efficiency leadership by requiring California's 400 largest water systems -
representing 90 percent of the state's population - to report monthly water use totals.

These data will help water managers, policy makers, researchers, and Californians alike

track statewide and localwater use, and, when needed, take quick action to respond to

changing water supply and climatic conditions.

During the last drought, the State Water Board passed emergency regulations that
mandated, for the first time, monthly reporting requirements. Between June 2015 and

March 2017, when mandatory water conservation was in place, California's water use

dropped by 22.5 percent - enough to serve 34 percent of the state's population for a
year.

Since the drought, Californians continue to use on average 20 percent less water than

what was used in 2013, the pre-drought baseline. More than 75 percent of water
systems have continued to voluntarily report this data since mandatory reporting ended

"As we continue to see, the quality, timeliness, and gathering of data are critical to

managing California's water in the 21't century," said State Water Board Chair E.

Joaquin Esquivel. "Urban monthly water use data have driven enduring, widespread,
public awareness and understanding of water use, conservation and efficiency in our

state. Although challenging and difficult, the state's last drought changed the way

Californians view their everyday role in ensuring a resilient water supply. As Californians

have come to know, efficiency is a way of life when the next drought is always around

the corner."

STATE WATER RESOURCES CONTROL BOARD
l00l I Slrgat, Sacramento, CA 95814. Malllng Addre$: P.O. Box 100, Sacramonto, CA 95812-0100 . s,ww.w¡terborrds.cs.govs ^t
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The permanent reporting requirements are part of a lonq-term plan to better prepare the

state for future droughts and Make Conservation a California Way of Life through

improved water resiliency, which relies on having comprehensive and up to date water
use data. The plan will improve water conservation and drought planning by

emphasizing efficiency and stretching existing water supplies in the cities and on farms.

Efficient water use is the most cost-effective way to achieve long term conservation
goals, as well as provide the water supply reliability needed to adapt to the longer and

more intense droughts climate change is causing in California.

Following the Board's adoption, the permanent regulation mandating monthly reporting

will undergo review by the state's Office of Administrative Law and is expected to take

effect Oct. 1 ,2020.

To learn about the actions the state has taken to manage our water system and cope

with the impacts of drought, and how your community efforts further water conservation,

visit the State Water Board's Water Conservation Portal. To learn more about the

state's efforts to build long-term water resilience, visit the Climate Cha page

#
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FOR IMMEDIATE RELEASE

April22,2020

CONTACT
Barry Dugan

Principal Programs Specialist
707-547-1930
707-331-2040
barry.du gan(ôscwa.ca. gov

Board approves budget w¡th emphasis on reliable water delivery
and infrastructure improvements

Santa Rosa, CA - On Tuesday, April 21, 2020 the Sonoma County Water Agency Board of
Directors unanimously approved a $59-million Water Transmission system budget for 2020-21.
The budget includes a S.3-percent rate increase in wholesale water rates for Santa Rosa and
Petaluma aqueduct customers and a 5.57-percent increase for Sonoma aqueduct customers,
which will result in an estimated 2-percent increase for households and businesses served by
Sonoma Water.

For example, a typical Santa Rosa household will pay an additional $0.96 per month as a direct
result of the increase in the Water Agency's wholesale rate increase, or an overall increase of
about $11.50 per year. Sonoma Water's wholesale rates are only a portion of the overall rates set
by its retail customers (cities and water districts), and rates for retail customers will vary among
those cities and water districts.

"We are painfully aware of the financial strain many residents are feeling due to the COVID-19
pandemic and the economic outfall from that," said Board Chair Susan Gorin. "This is a prudent
rate increase that takes into account the current health emergency and still provides funding to
maintain and operate our critical water supply infrastructure. During a pandemic or other
emergency, we must be able to rely on our water delivery system and funding ongoing critical
projects is essentialto provide that assurance."

ln 2019, the Sonoma County Civil Grand Jury investigated the risk of a major earthquake in
Sonoma County and the effect that it could have on residents, due to impacts on water
supplies. ln direct response to the Grand Jury's recommendations, Sonoma Water prepared a

$59 million water transmission system budget that will help fund critical infrastructure
improvement projects, including construction of three earthquake hazard mitigation projects: the
Russian River, Mark West Creek, and Santa Rosa Creek pipeline crossings.

"These projects are critical for Sonoma Water to prepare for earthquakes, just as we prepare for
any other natural disaster," said Gorin. "We are working closely with our water retailers, and they
are working closely with their customers during this health emergency. These rate increases were

t



not arrived at in a vacuum. We had widespread support among our water contractors, who have
input into developing these budgets."

The Grand Jury Report acknowledged that Sonoma Water and its water contractors maintain a
well-designed system and have made significant progress in mitigating earthquake risks, while
ongoing efforts are needed to reduce remaining risks. The Grand Jury also noted that ongoing
capital improvements are being made while Sonoma Water continues to keep rates low compared
to other California water agencies.

The water transmission budget includes costs associated with operating, maintaining and funding
nearly 100 miles of water supply pipelines, pumps and storage facilities that provide drinking
water to more than 600,000 residents in portions of Sonoma and Marin counties. The budget also
includes those costs associated with implementing critical habitat restoration and fishery recovery
efforts within the Russian River Watershed as required by the Russian River Biological
Opinion. Other budgeted maintenance projects include the recoating of interior and exterior
surfaces of water tanks, and replacement of the cathodic protection system to prevent pipeline
corrosion.

Wholesale water rates will increase based on the aqueduct in which a city receives its water, as
noted below:

' 5.3 percent for Santa Rosa and Petaluma aqueduct contractors, which includes the
cities of Santa Rosa, Town of Windsor, Petaluma, Rohnert Park, and Cotati

' 5.57 percent for Sonoma aqueduct contractors, which includes the city of Sonoma
and the Valley of the Moon Water District. This rate is slightly higher than the above
aqueducts to help pay down costs associated specifically with this aqueduct,

' 5.17 percent for the Marin Municipal Water District
' 6.79 percent for the North Marin Water District

Wholesale water rates are created by using a calculation outlined under a legally binding
agreement between Sonoma Water and its water contractors. This document, called the
Restructured Agreement for Water Supply, requires Sonoma Water to set rates based on
budgeted operations and maintenance costs and past water sales.

For more information about wholesale water rates, please visit www.sonomawater.org.

###

The Sonoma Water provideswater supply, flood protection and sanitation servrces for portions of Sonoma and Morin

counties. Visit us on the Web ot wwwsonomowotenorq

Barry Dugan
Principal Programs Specialist
Community and Government Affairs
Sonoma Water
404 Aviation Boulevard
Santa Rosa, CA 95403
P 707-547-1_930

M707-33L-2040
barrv.dugan (@scwa.ca.gov

sonomacou ntvwater.o rg
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CI-AM wins bid to develop Coast Guard property for affordable
housing
By Blerclcn Carlrvrigìrt
o4/rglzoz<l

The Community Land Trust Association of West Marin has won the bid to develop the former Coast Guard property in
Point Reyes Station, in partnership with Eden Housing. The Board of Supervisors unanimously supported the joint
ploposal over BAH Housing because of CLAM's dedication to comtnunity involvement. "While there are technical
reasons that one may be better than the other, I think the community part of this proposal is really, to me, one of the
most important elements," Supervisor Dennis Rodoni said on Tuesday. Hundreds of commenters echoed the sentiment.
"CLAM is the community in structule, function and people," said Mark Switzer, who managed EAH's 14 duplexes,
cailed Point Reyes Family Homes, from zooT to zo16. He said EAH, as an ever-expanding organization, is unable to
create comrnunity. "EAH is inherently disconnected, an agency forever adapting generalized policies tcl diverse
localities," he said. Inverness resident Marshall Livingston, a founding member of CIAM's board, argued that EAH,
despite owning multiple local properties, has not had a visible presence in community affairs. "On the other hand,
CLAM is built from the ground up by this West Marin community, frorn conversational concept to fully operating
housing organization," he said. Though some raised concerns about the joint venture, Andrea Osgood, Eden's vice
president of leal estate clevelopment, said the gloups have a memorandum of unclerstanding ancl emphasizecl that Eden
has paltneled with community-based organizations 14 other times. Eden, based in Haywald, will have 5r percent

ownership of the property, and plans to build a septic system based on recommendations in a county wastewater study
contracted last year. EAH had argued that it had a quicker path to realizing housing because it <¡wns the neighboring
Point Reyes Famiìy Homes, whose septic system could be shared with the Coast Guard property through a secondary
treatment system. But Superwisor Rodoni was skeptical of this advantage. "I do know enough about septic work in West
Marin and the region to know that the regulatory requirements can be quite restrictive, and it doesn't always work out
that you get what you had set out to do," he said. With a developer selected, county staff will work with CLAM and Eden
to reach a development agreement, which coulcl cliffer from the original proposal. The agreement could be clelayed, with
county staff stretchecl for time clue to Covid-rg, plannel Leelee Thomas said. And although the agt'eement is a pr-iority,

there are still many steps before the project is complete. "We're in this for the long haul," she said.
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Sonoma water might be Marin drought backup

MMWD

Major purchase considered above usual amount received

By Will Houston

w ho us t o n@,m ar in i,i . c o m @Iïtil I _S *Ho us t o n o n Tw it t e r

Following poor rainfall this winter and rising water demand in recent years, the Marin Municipal
Vy'ater District is considering a major purchase of Sonoma County water as insurance for a
potential dry period.

"That's part of our plan rnoving forward is a very aggressive take of water frorn Sonoma," Paul

Sellier, MMWD engineer and operations director, told the board of directors this week. "ln fact,
we're setting up to take potentially the greatest amount of water that we've ever taken from
Sononra in the nexf 72 to 15 months."

MMWD purchases about 20o/o to 25% of its water supply from Sonoma Water. Typically, the

district purchases about 5,300 acre feet per fiscal year. For the upcoming2020-2021 fiscal year,

MMWD is projecting purchasing as much as 9,900 acre feet. The largest amount it has ever
purchased in one year was 8,300 acre feet, Sellier said.

WATER> PAGE2

Water

FROM PAGE 1

Whether MMWD ends up actually buying that much water from Sonoma will be made more
clear early next year.

"By January we should know what kind of winter we're in and what kind of water supply we can

expect going forward," Sellier said.

The district has already begun ramping up its purchases in recent months, with purchases up by
l16% in January and 192o/o in February year-over-year, Sellier said.

Sonoma Water is set to raise MMWD's wholesale water purchasing rates by 5.17% in July

1,



Rainfall has been "significantly below avetage," Sellier saicl, but water levels in the district's
seven reservoirs are at about 89%. The reservoirs have about two years' worth of supply under
normal use.

Between July 1 and Thursday, the district recorded 32.62 inches of rain at Lake Lagunitas. This
is less than half of the 66.76 inches recorded during the same period last year. The average

annual rainfall is 52.65 inches.

Nearly 20Yo of the state, including Marin, is experiencing severe drought conditions, according
to tlre U.S. Dlought Monitor. Last year at this time, there were no drought conditions in Marin
and much of the state.

At the same tirne, water consumption has risen by about 20o/o among MMWD customers since

2016, Sellier said.

MMWD board member Larry Russell suggested the district staff look into whether this is a result
of weather or change in attitude of ratepayers towarcl conservation.

"I think that one needs a little more head-scratching about exactly what's going

on there," he said

In an effort to better prepare for future droughts, the state water board voted this week to
reinstate mandatory water use reporting by urban suppliers as had been occuruing during the
previous drought. The reports have been voluntary since November 2017. The new requirement
is set to undergo review by the state Office of Administrative Law and take effect in October.

MMWD board membel Cynthia Koehler called for a discussion about improving both the
district's and ratepayers water conservation efforts.

"I'd certainly like to see us agendizing soon some of the next-generation water use efficiency
measures we've been talking about for quite a long time and we really haven't gotten there," she

said.

Russell asked whether the district should consider purchasing more water from Sonoma sooner,
saying it would be riskier to wait too long.

"The problern is that the clock's ticking and we have no way of winding the clock back," Russell
said.

In response, Sellier said MMWD's data from 1995 to present show there is a70Yo chance of the

district receiving about 50o/o of average rainfall this coming year.

"What we try not to do is to purchase water at a time when we're very uncertain about the
futufe," he said.

2



Boalcl member Larry Bragman suggestecl looking into Sonoma Water's storage and consurnption

as well to determine whether it would be prudent to buy water earlier.

"lf their consumption is f lat or going down, what is the harm in waiting as proposed?" he said,

"I just don't see any downside as to watchful waiting."

Friday, 0412412020 Page.A0l
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V¡RUS LOCKDOWN

Ban lifted on some activities in Marin
Stay-home rule extended, but some restrictions eased

By Matthew Pera
mpera@marinii.com @MatthewRPera on Twitter

Marin County released a new public health order on Wednesday that extends stay-at-
home restrictions through May 31, but allows construction, gardening and certain
outdoor activities to resume on Monday.

Golf courses, tennis courts, skate parks and athletic fields will be able to reopen, but
users must follow social-distancing guidelines. Sports that involve physical contact or
shared equipment will not be allowed, unless players live in the same household.
Marin's parks, beaches and trails will remain restricted to only those who can access
them on foot or by bicycle.

Outdoor businesses, including gardening services, car washes and plant nurseries,
will be able to operate, and all construction will be allowed to resume. Public
swimming pools will remain closed. Restaurants and bars with outdoor seating will not
be allowed to serve customers onsite, but all dining establishments can continue to
sell takeout orders.

Real estate transactions will be permitted, but only limited in-person viewings will be
allowed "if a virtual viewing is not feasible," the order says. A maximum of two people
who live in the same household will be allowed to attend a viewing appointment, in

addition to one person showing the listing, and the current occupant must not be
present.

Anybody who is working will have access to child care services, including summer
camps, but children within those programs will only be allowed to gather in groups of
up to 12, and those groups will not be allowed to mix.

All businesses that were deemed "essential" in the initial stay-at-home order,
including grocery stores, medical clinics and pharmacies, can continue to operate.
Restrictions will stay in place for most industries, which will continue to elevate the
economic toll of the pandemic.

BAND PAGE2
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FROM PAGE 1

"Outside of these new measures, everyone should continue to stay home, except for
essential travel such as going to the grocery store or pharmacy," said Marin County
Public Health Officer Dr. Matt Willis, who issued the stay-at home order. The order
mirrors restrictions that were released Wednesday in six other Bay Area jurisdictions

- Alameda, Contra Costa, San Francisco, San Mateo and Santa Clara counties and
Berkeley, which has its own health depaftment.

The public health officers from those jurisdictions, who banded together last month to
release regional "shelter in place" mandates, gave notice earlier this week that the
new restrictions would be issued to replace the stay-at-home order that expires
Sunday, but did not provide details on which mandates would be lifted until the new
orders were released Wednesday.

"The shelter-in-place order is not an 'on-off' switch," Willis said Wednesday in a video
announcement, noting that health officials expect to see a spike on coronavirus cases
correlated to the relaxing of regulations. "The number of activities we can engage in
... will increase slowly and sequentially over time."

Jeff Jungsten plans to reopen his Mill Valley-based Jungsten Construction on Monday
for the first time since Marin's initial stay at- home order took effect on March 17.
"lt's a good step," he said of the new order, "but we're taking it extremely cautiously."
Marin has had 235 coronavirus cases, 13 deaths and 43 hospitalizations (1 current),
with 174 recovered and 3,485 tested.

Wednesday's order lays out health and safety guidelines that construction workers
must follow, including requirements that they do not carpool to job sites, do not
congregate and that they frequently wash their hands. Jungsten hopes the guidelines
will help prevent coronavirus transmission among his employees and his clients.

"lt's going to be a torrent starting out," he said. "There's a lot of pent-up demand. But I

think the people taking this seriously will self-police."

Dan Ross, president of Ross Painting in San Rafael, has had a handful jobs over the
past month, but business is down more than B0% and his roster of 20 employees is

down to five. He's eager for an uptick in contracts that will likely come along with
construction operations resuming, but isn't counting on business returning to where it
was before the coronavirus pandemic - at least not right away.

"Until homeowners find out where their finances are, things will be a little iffy," he said.
Marion Trau has several landscaping jobs lined up for next week when his San
Rafael-based Marion Landscaping starts up again.

2



"lt's about the safest work there is," he said. "We're out in the fresh air, under the sun,
not in a closed environment."

Though demand is high right now, Trau isn't sure how long the trend will continue as
the economy drags and unemployment claims skyrocket.

"l know it's not going to be normal," he said

The Atherton Place construction site sits empty in Novato on April 1. All construction
will be allowed to resume under revisions in the coronavirus restrictions.
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GRAND JURY

Report: Public agencies fail on pay transparency
By Will Houston
w h o u sto n @-m a ri n i i. co m @Wiil_S_Hou ston on Twitter

Most Marin County government agencies are still failing to be fully transparent on how
much they pay their officials and employees, according to a new civil grand jury
report.

"The public should be able to access this information easily and quickly rather than
having to dig through meeting minutes or policy manuals that may or may not be easy
to find on a website," the watchdog panel said in the report, which was released
Wednesday.

The problems persist despite state mandates and previous recommendations made
by the grand jury, according to the report.

"The Grand Jury has focused on these issues for more than six years, without
satisfactory resolution," the report states. "Perhaps with this follow- up report,
agencies will come to understand the vital importance of public transparency and will
be more forthcoming with this information and finally improve their websites."

The grand jury analyzed the disclosures made by the county, 1 '1 cities and towns, '10

sanitary districts, nine fire districts and three water districts on their websites.

State law requires agencies with websites to post the annual compensation of their
employees and elected officials. The websites must also include a link to the State
Controller's Office public pay website in a "conspicuous location."

Many public agencies are required to report compensation figures annually to the
State Controller's Office. Some agencies were not reporting board member
compensation because they had been informed by the state that it was not required
"unless aW-2 form for the compensation was issued," according to the report.

"Some elected officials are paid fees for which W-2 forms are not issued," the report
states. "State officials have now confirmed that the elected officials' compensation
must be reported regardless of how they are paid."

Some agencies were only posting links to the Transparent California website rather
than the controller's site, according to the grand jury. Transparent California is a

website created by the Nevada Policy Research lnstitute, a nonprofit organization
promoting private solutions over government solutions to public issues.

L



To improve transparency, the grand jury is recommending that agencies place a link
to the controller's database on their websites where it can be found within three clicks
of the home page and within five minutes of searching.

The report says the entities not properly disclosing this information are Marin County,
Mill Valley, Sausalito, Tiburon, six fire districts and authorities, four sanitary districts
and the Stinson Beach Water District.

PAY D PAGE 4

Pay
FROM PAGE 3

"We're always interested in increased transparency," Dan Eilerman, assistant county
administrator, said Wednesday in response to the reporl. "The county is a large
organization and just last year won a national award for its digital infrastructure and
information transparency. We'll review the grand jury's suggestions to find
straightforward ways of best communicating information to the public."

The county's Department of lnformation Services and Technology placed fourth in its
county-size category in the Digital Counties Survey Center run by the Center for
Digital Government and the National Association of Counties.

The grand jury is calling on agencies to look to the Marin Municipal Water District and
the Norlh Marin Water District for examples of detailed compensation data. That said,
the grand jury still sees room for improvement and is recommending these two
districts and several other agencies to post a link to the state controller's website on
their board web pages. ln addition, the report recommends that agencies publish
annual reporls listing how much their elected officials were paid in the previous fiscal
year.

"We appreciate the grand jury's recognition of our transparency and attention to
detail," said Ben Horenstein, general manager of the Marin Municipal Water District,
"and we were pleased to see our work used as an example of best practices in these
areas. We understand the importance of transparency in keeping the public's trust,
and we are carefully reviewing the report and the recommendations."

COVID-19 changes
State law requires the local governments and agencies to respond to the grand jury
recommendations within 90- to 120day windows. However, the grand jury has
expressed concern about whether the COVID-19 pandemic's strain on staff time will
allow them to comply with these laws.

1



Each grand jury reporl being issued in the coming weeks will include a statement
acknowledging the coronavirus crisis and its potential impact on agencies.

"Whether the deadlines are extended or not, it is our expectation that Marin's public
agencies will eventually be able to return to normal operations and will respond to this
report," the grand jury reporl states. "ln the meantime, however, public health and
safety issues are of paramount importance and other matters might need to wait."

Foreperson Lucy Dilworth said the jury has shifted exclusively to online meetings.
Presiding Judge Andrew Sweet has extended members' terms through Sept. 30, with
no plans to impanel a new jury "until matters become clearer," she said in an email.

Thursday, 30 April 2020
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